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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

A ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Commission file number 001-16783

VCA Antech, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specmed in its cegrt

Delaware 95-409799¢&

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. employer

incorporation or organization) identification no.)

12401 West Olympic Boulevard, 90064-1022
Los Angeles, California (Zip code)

(Address of principal executive offict

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (310) 5-6500
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per st Nasdaq Global Select Mark

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e06dturities Act.  Yesd No

O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act.  YesO
No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastiig9s. Yes™ No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation Sduring the preceding 12 months (or for such srguerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). Yes™ No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-KIX]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting

company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated filedd Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer[d
O Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reportit
company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yes[O No

4]

The aggregate market value of the voting commoiitegeld by non-affiliates as of June 30, 2011, wpproximately $1.8 billion,
computed by reference to the price of $21.20 pareshihe price at which the common equity wasdakt on such date as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market. For purposes of tlisputation, it is assumed that the shares benlitiald by directors and officers of tl
registrant would be deemed to be stock held bYiatd#s. Non-affiliated common stock outstandindue 30, 2011 was 83,394,675 shares.

Total common stock outstanding at February 23, 2042 87,328,090 shares.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Parts of the definitive Proxy Statement to be dgtd to stockholders in connection with the 201 hual Meeting of Stockholders are
incorporated by reference into Items 10, 11, 12ai@ 14 hereof.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forwardking statements within the meaning of the Pri&geurities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties, al a®assumptions that, if they materialize or growcorrect, could cause our results and the
results of our consolidated subsidiaries to diffexterially from those expressed or implied by thfeseard-looking statements. We generally
identify forward-looking statements in this reposing words like “believe,” “intend,” “seek,” “expg” “estimate,” “may,” “plan,” “should
plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” “prct,” “potential,” “continue,” or similar expresais. You may find some of these statements
below and elsewhere in this report. These forwaokihg statements are not historical facts andrdrerently uncertain and outside of our
control. Any or all of our forwardieoking statements in this report may turn outeéodyong. They can be affected by inaccurate assangive
might make or by known or unknown risks and undgeties. Many factors mentioned in our discussiothis report will be important in
determining future results. Consequently, no fodslaoking statement can be guaranteed. Actual éutesults may vary materially. Factors
that may cause our plans, expectations, futurenilad condition and results to change include thtesas discussed iRisk Factorsn Item 1A
of this annual report.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Company Overview

We are a leading national animal healthcare compaeyating in the United States and Canada. Wegeoxeterinary services and
diagnostic testing to support veterinary care, alediagnostic imaging equipment and other medieahnology products and related service
the veterinary market and we provide various comoaiion, marketing solutions and other servicethéoveterinary community.

Our animal hospitals offer a full range of genenaldical and surgical services for companion anipsssvell as specialized treatments
including advanced diagnostic services, internadioiee, oncology, ophthalmology, dermatology andidogy. In addition, we provide
pharmaceutical products and perform a variety ofymdiness programs including health examinatialisgnostic testing, routine vaccinations,
spaying, neutering and dental care. Our networnahal hospitals is supported by more than 2,5@@rirerians and had approximately
7.1 million patient visits in 2011. Our networkadterinary diagnostic laboratories provides sojutastd testing and consulting services used
by veterinarians in the detection, diagnosis, eatédn, monitoring, treatment and prevention of d&ses and other conditions affecting animals.
Our network of veterinary diagnostic laboratoriesvides diagnostic testing for over 16,000 cliemtBich includes standard animal hospitals,
large animal practices, universities and other gowent organizations. Our medical technology bussireells digital radiography and
ultrasound imaging equipment, provides educatiahteaining on the use of that equipment, and presiconsulting and mobile imaging
services. Our VetStreet business, provides serticesterinary practices, pharmaceutical manufacgjrand the pet owning community. Our
services to veterinary practices include subsanstito both our Pro and Consumer Pet Portals. Tthn®& Portal provides an online platform
for the veterinarian to offer secure individualizeattals for pet owners as well as practice webdfiat are branded to the individual veterinary
clinic. We also sell appointment reminder notidest tare sent to pet owners on behalf of theircdinDur services to Manufacturers
predominately involve targeted marketing progranas &ire based upon the detailed data extracteddromal hospitals whom are subscribers
to our Pro Pet Portal.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1P¥0est Olympic Boulevard, Los Angeles, Californlde can be contacted at (310) 571-
6500.
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Company History

Our company was formed in 1986 as a Delaware catiporand has since established a position inniraa healthcare industry through
both internal growth and by acquisitions. By ouettieth anniversary in 2006 we operated a tot&8l7&f animal hospitals, 33 laboratories, ai
supplier of digital radiography and ultrasound imnggequipment. Subsequent to 2006, our companyraged to grow by adding, additional
laboratories, independent animal hospitals, anlroapital chains and other ancillary businessesalle@ving of which were noteworthy:

* OnJune 1, 2007, we acquired Healthy Pet Corp.dltHg Pet”), which operated 44 animal hospitals arsinall laboratory, which
primarily serviced its own animal hospitals, asha acquisition date. This acquisition allowedasgtpand our animal hospital
operations, particularly in Massachusetts, ConoettVirginia and Georgie

* OnJuly 1, 2009, we acquired Eklin Medical Systelms, (‘EKlin"), a leading seller of digital radiography, ultrasowamd! practice
management software systems in the veterinary rhafke combined the operations of Eklin with our B8dT'echnologies, Inc (“ST)"
business unit and the resulting combined compatheisargest supplier of diagnostic imaging equiptraand other medical technolo
products tailored specifically for the veterinarganket.

e OnJuly 12010, we acquired Pet DRx Corporat“Pet DR;"), which operated 23 animal hospitals as of the adoprisdate. This
acquisition allowed us to expand our animal hospiperations in Californie

* OnJuly 11, 2011, we acquired BrightHeart Vetegn@enters (“BrightHeart”) which operated nine anifmaspitals, eight of which
focus on the delivery of specialty and emergencdgioiee. The acquisition will increase our leveloérket recognition in areas where
we have an existing market preser

* On August 9, 2011, we acquired Vetstreet, Incinfnly known as MediMedia Animal Health, LL“Vetstree”), the natior’'s larges
provider of online communications, professional@tion and marketing solutions to the veterinanpownity. The acquisition of
Vetstreet expands the breadth of our product offsrito the veterinary community and is expectgarowide long-term synergies to
our existing businesse

» On January 31, 2012 we expanded our operationsDiat@ada with an increased investment in Associaterihary Clinics
(1984) Limited, which operates 44 hospitals in ¢h@anadian province

Industry Overview

According to American Pet Products Association,dn¢APPA”) 2011-2012 APPA National Pet Owners Surythe United States
population of companion animals is approximatel® hdllion, including about 165 million dogs and €afPPA estimates that over $29 billion
was spent in the United States on pets in 201¢dtarinary care, supplies, medicine and boardingrooming. The survey indicated that the
ownership of pets is widespread with approxima@dymillion, or 62%, of U.S. households owning asteone pet, including companion and
other animals. Specifically, 46 million househotigned at least one dog and 39 million householdseovat least one cat.

We believe that among pet owners there is a groawareness of pet health and wellness, includiad#nefits of preventive care and
specialized services. As technology continues graté from the human healthcare sector into thetipeof veterinary medicine, more
sophisticated treatments, diagnostic tests ancewrnt are becoming available to treat companiomalsi. These new and increasingly
complex procedures, diagnostic tests, includingdatory testing and advanced imaging, and pharnt@e¢siare gaining wider acceptance as
pet owners are exposed to these previously uncemsidreatment programs through their exposure thithtechnology in human healthcare,
and through literature and marketing programs speukby large pharmaceutical and pet nutrition camigs.

Even as treatments available in veterinary medibemme more complex, prices for veterinary sesvigpically remain a low
percentage of a pet owner’s income, facilitatingmpant at the time of service. Unlike the

2



Table of Contents

human healthcare industry, providers of veterirsmwices are not dependent on thpatty payers in order to collect fees. As suchyioiers of
veterinary services typically do not have the peafid of extended payment collection cycles or pgigressures from third-party payers faced
by human healthcare providers. Outsourced laboragsting and diagnostic equipment sales are whlgdsisinesses that collect payments
directly from animal hospitals under standard indupayment terms. Fees for services provided mamimal hospitals are due at the time of
service. In 2011, over 99% of our animal hospital/ices were paid at the time of service. In additover the past three fiscal years our bad
debt expense has averaged less than 1% of toetuev

The practice of veterinary medicine is subjectedasonal fluctuation. In particular, demand for vietay services is significantly higher
during the warmer months because pets spend a&egeeabunt of time outdoors, where they are momdyliko be injured and are more
susceptible to disease and parasites. In additempf veterinary services may be affected by teg€infestation of fleas, heartworms and ti
and the number of daylight hours.

Animal Hospital Industry

Animal healthcare is provided predominately bybeerinarian practicing as a sole practitionem®part of a larger group practice or
hospital. Veterinarians diagnose and treat anitimedses and injuries, perform surgeries, provadgine medical exams and prescribe
medication. Some veterinarians specialize by tyfpaexicine, such as orthopedics, dentistry, ophtlbédgy or dermatology. Others focus on a
particular type of animal. The principal factorsaipet owner’s decision as to which veterinariange include convenient location and hours,
personal recommendations, reasonable fees andyqoitiare.

According to the American Veterinary Medical Assdimn, the U.S. market for veterinary servicesighly fragmented with more than
51,000 veterinarians practicing at the end of 20¥&.have estimated that there are over 22,000 coimpanimal hospitals operating at the
of 2011. Although most animal hospitals are sirgite; sole-practitioner facilities, we believe vétarians are gravitating toward larger, multi-
doctor animal hospitals that provide state-of-thefailities, treatments, methods and pharmacelsio enhance the services they can provide
their clients.

Well-capitalized animal hospital operators have the dppdy to supplement their internal growth witHesgtive acquisitions. We belie!
the extremely fragmented animal hospital industrgansolidating due to:

 the choice of some owners of animal hospitals Yeify their investment portfolio by selling alt a portion of their investment in tl
animal hospital

» the purchasing, marketing and administrative cdsaatages that can be realized by a large, mulisigtion, mult-doctor veterinan
provider;

 the cost of financing equipment purchases and uligaechnology necessary for a successful prac

« the desire of veterinarians to focus on practicietgrinary medicine, rather than spending larg¢iqguus of their time performing tr
administrative tasks necessary to operate an amiosglital; anc

» the appeal to many veterinarians of the benefitsflaxible work schedule that is not typically dehie to a sole practitioner or single-
site provider

Diagnostic Laboratory Industry

Veterinarians use laboratory tests to diagnosenamtor illnesses and conditions through the deiaaif substances in urine, tissue,
fecal and blood samples, and other specimens. the isase with the physician treating a human pgtigboratory diagnostic testing is
becoming a routine diagnostic tool used by thenreean.

Veterinary laboratory tests are performed primaatlyeterinary diagnostic laboratories, universitie at animal hospitals using on-site
diagnostic equipment. For certain tests, on-sigmdstic equipment can provide more timely reghls outside laboratories, but this in-house
testing requires the animal hospital or veterimat@purchase or lease the equipment, maintaircalifsrate the equipment periodically to av
testing errors,
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employ trained personnel to operate it and purctesteng supplies. Conversely, veterinary diagmdstboratories can provide a wider range of
tests than generally are available on-site at moishal hospitals and do not require any up-fromégtment on the part of the animal hospital or
veterinarian. Leading veterinary diagnostic labariats also employ highly trained individuals whesijalize in the detection and diagnosis of
diseases and thus are a valuable resource foethénarian.

Our laboratories offer a broad spectrum of standadicustomized tests to the veterinary marketyeoient sample pick-up times, rapid
test reporting and access to professional congusimvices provided by trained specialists. Prangjdhe customer with this level of service at
competitive prices requires high throughput volumes to the operating leverage associated witheth&ratory business. As a result, larger
laboratories are likely to have a competitive adaga relative to smaller laboratories.

We believe that the outsourced laboratory testiagket is an integral segment of the animal heatthgalustry as a result of:

» the emphasis in veterinary education on diagndéssits and the trend toward specialization in ve#eyi medicine, which are causi
veterinarians to increasingly rely on tests for enaccurate diagnose

» the continued technological developments in vetayimmedicine, which are increasing the breadtlestistoffered; an
« the continued focus on wellness, early detecti@hrannitoring programs in veterinary medicil

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to continue expandingrarket leadership in animal healthcare throughfsumal Hospital, Laboratory,
Medical Technology and VetStreet operating segmé&dg elements to our strategy include:

» Capitalizing on our Leading Market Position to Geneate Revenue Growth. Our leading market position in the animal hospital,
veterinary laboratory and the online communicatio@skets position us to capitalize on favorableaghotrends in the animal
healthcare industry. In our animal hospitals, wekde generate revenue growth by capitalizing engitowing emphasis on pet health
and wellness. In our laboratories, we seek to geéaeevenue growth by taking advantage of the grgwiumber of outsourced
diagnostic tests, the opportunities to expandeh#rtg that we provide and by increasing our maskate. We continually educate
veterinarians on new and existing technologiestast$ available to diagnose medical conditionstheuy we leverage the knowledge
of our specialists by providing veterinarians wetttensive client support in utilizing and undersliag these diagnostic tests. Our
Medical Technology business seeks to leveragetoemgths in the broader veterinary markets by thtging technologies, products
and services to the veterinary market. We seelet@i@ate revenue growth by increasing our markeesirad educating veterinarians
on new and existing technologies. In our VetStemtiness, we seek to generate revenue growth litalizipg on the growing usage
of online media to both aid pet owners in diagngsiimesses and to purchase necessary medicatihsther pet related produc

» Leveraging Established Infrastructure to Improve Margins. We intend to leverage our established Animal Ha$ihd
Laboratory infrastructure to increase our operativaggins. Due to our established networks andikael fcost nature of our business
model, we are able to realize high margins on imemrtal revenue from Animal Hospital and Laboratougtomers. For example, gi\
that our nationwide transportation network sengorur Laboratory customers is a relatively fixedtcave are able to achieve
significantly higher margins on most incrementatseordered by the same customer when picked wubgouriers at the same tin

 Utilizing Enterprise -Wide Information Systems to Improve Operating Effidencies. Our Laboratory and the majority of our
Animal Hospital operations utilize enterprise-wid@anagement information systems. We believe thaetbemmon systems enable us
to more effectively manage the key operating metttat drive our business. With the aid of thestesys, we seek to standardize
pricing, expand the services we provide and in@&atume through targeted marketing progrs
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» Pursuing Selected Acquisitions The fragmentation of the animal hospital indugrovides us with significant expansi
opportunities in our Animal Hospital segment. Degiag upon the attractiveness of the candidategfandtrategic fit with our existir
operations, we intend to acquire independent anlirogpitals each year with aggregate annual revehapproximately $50 million to
$85 million. Our overall acquisition strategy invek the identification of high-quality practicesevd we can create additional value
through the services and scale we can providetypical candidate mirrors the profile of our exigtianimal hospital base. These
acquisitions will be used to both expand existirgykets and to enter into new geographic areadditian, we also evaluate the
acquisition of animal hospital chains, laboratoneselated businesses if favorable opportunitrespgesented. We intend primarily to
use cash in our acquisitions but, depending otitiieg and amount of our acquisitions, we may uselksor debt

Business Segments

We report our results of operations through tworggble segments: Animal Hospital and Laboratonyr Qetstreet and Medical
Technology operating segments did not meet therabitg requirements to be presented as separptatable segments. Accordingly, they are
grouped into an “All Other” category.

Information regarding revenue and operating incaateiputable to each of our reportable segmestsduded in th&&egment Resudt
section withinManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operatiors)d within Note 14l.ines of Business,
of ourNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementdhich are incorporated herein by reference.

Animal Hospital

At December 31, 2011, we operated 541 animal halspgerving 41 states. Our Animal Hospital reveaceounted for 77%, 76% and

76% of total consolidated revenue in 2011, 201020QD, respectively.
Services

In addition to general medical and surgical sewjiege offer specialized treatments for companidmalts, including advanced diagnos
services, internal medicine, oncology, ophthalmglatgrmatology and cardiology. We also provide pfereutical products for use in the
delivery of treatments by our veterinarians andgueters. Many of our animal hospitals offer additibservices, including grooming, bathing
and boarding. We also sell specialty pet productainanimal hospitals, including pet food, vitasiitherapeutic shampoos and conditioners,
flea collars and sprays, and other accessory pteduc

Animal Hospital Network

We seek to provide quality care in clean, attracfacilities that are generally open between 105tdiours per day, six to seven days per
week. Our typical animal hospital:

 islocated in a 4,000 to 6,000 sqt-foot, freestanding facility in an attractive loaati
* has annual revenue between $1 million and $3 mil

 is supported by three to five veterinarians;

» has an operating history of over 10 ye:
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As of December 31, 2011, our network of freestagdinll-service animal hospitals had facilitiesdbed in the following states and one
Canadian province:

California 10€ North Caroline* 7
Texas 48  Minnesotg* 6
Washingtor* 33  New Mexico 6
Florida 30 Alaska 5
New York* 26  Delaware 4
Massachusett 25  New Hampshire¢ 4
Pennsylvanii 23 Wisconsin 4
lllinois 19  Hawaii 3
Virginia 18  Missouri 3
Georgia 18  Nebraske 3
Colorada 17  Rhode Islan¢ 3
Connecticu 16  South Carolin: 3
Arizona 14 Louisiana* 2
Indiana 13 Vermont 2
New Jersey 13 Kansa< 2
Ohio 12  Alabama 1
Michigan* 11  Kentucky 1
Maryland 11  Tennesse 1
Oregon* 10  Utah 1
Oklahoma 8  West Virginia* 1
Nevada 7

Alberta, Canad* 1

* States and Canadian province with laws, rules agdlations which require that veterinary medicalctices be owned by licens
veterinarians and that corporations which are mated by licensed veterinarians refrain from pravigior holding themselves out as
providers of, veterinary medical care. In theséestarovince we provide management and other adtrative services to veterinary
practices rather than owning such practices orighoy such care

Marketing

We direct our marketing efforts toward increasing humber of annual visits from existing clientotigh customer education efforts and
toward attracting new clients to our network of pitels through online and offline initiatives. W&orm and educate our clients about pet
wellness and quality care through mailingsiefalthyPet Magazinewhich focuses on pet care and wellness. We atehthrough targeted
demographic mailings regarding specific pet heigties and collateral health material made availabeach animal hospital. With these
internal marketing programs, we seek to leverageeristing customer base by increasing the numbeiirgtensity of the services received
during each visit. We send reminder notices todase awareness of the advantages of regular, chemmige veterinary medical care,
including preventive care such as early diseasectieh exams, vaccinations, dental screening aridtge care. We also have expanded our
online capabilities both internally and through eaguisition of VetStreet. Our internal efforts éhwe offering increased convenience for our
clients to book appointments or find detailed Heedlated materials on our hospital websites. Ve ahter into referral arrangements with
local pet shops, humane societies and veterinattaingrease our client base. We seek to obtaarnas from veterinarians by promoting our
specialized diagnostic and treatment capabilibegeterinarians and veterinary practices that caafier their clients these services. Through
our acquisition and integration of VetStreet, wd e able to provide more robust health and welnaformation to the pet owning
community that we expect will attract additiondeals to both VCA and non-VCA hospitals.
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Personnel

Our animal hospitals generally employ a staff diteeen 20 and 30 full-time-equivalent employees etheling upon the facility’s size and
customer base. The staff includes administrativetaohnical support personnel, three to five vateians, and a hospital manager who
supervises the day-to-day activities of the fagilit

We actively recruit qualified veterinarians andheicians and are committed to supporting contingdgcation for our professional st¢
We operate post-graduate teaching programs forimatéans at 23 of our facilities, which train appimately 152 veterinarians each year. We
believe that these programs enhance our reputatitre veterinary profession and further our apii@ continue to recruit the most talented
veterinarians.

We seek to establish an environment that suppogtsdterinarian in the delivery of quality medicanad fosters professional growth
through increased patient flow and a diverse casgaontinuing education, state-of-the-art equipireamd access to specialists. We believe our
animal hospitals offer attractive employment oppoities to veterinarians because of our professi@maronment, competitive compensation,
management opportunities, employee benefits natrgdly available to a sole practitioner, flexiblenk schedules that accommodate personal
lifestyles and the ability to relocate to differeagions of the country.

We have established a medical advisory board tpatipur operations. Our advisory board, underdihection of our Chief Medical
Officer, recommends medical standards for our ngtwb animal hospitals and is comprised of vetaiaras recognized for their outstanding
knowledge and reputations in the veterinary fi@dr advisory board members represent both therdiffegeographic regions in which we
operate and the medical specialties practiced byeterinarians; and three members are faculty neesndit highly-ranked veterinary colleges.
Additionally, our regional medical directors, a gpoof highly experienced veterinarians, are alsseally involved in the development and
implementation of our medical programs.

Laboratory

We operate a full-service, veterinary diagnostimtatory network serving all 50 states and cema@as in Canada. Our Laboratory
revenue accounted for 18%, 20% and 21% of totada@aated revenue in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respEytiWe service a diverse customer
base of over 16,000 clients including animal ha@dpitve operate, which accounted for 14%, 12% af€ dDtotal Laboratory revenue in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Services

Our diagnostic spectrum includes over 300 diffetests in the area of chemistry, pathology, endobtogy, serology, hematology and
microbiology, as well as tests specific to particudiseases. We do not conduct experiments on &ima

Although modified to address the particular requieaits of the species tested, the tests performedrimeterinary laboratories are sim
to those performed in human clinical laboratoried atilize similar laboratory equipment and teclogiés. We believe that the growing
concern for animal health, combined with the mowvenoé veterinary medicine toward increasing spézagion, may result in the migration of
additional areas of human testing into the veteyifield.

Given the recent advancements in veterinary meticainology and the increased breadth and degkhmfledge required for the
practice of veterinary medicine, many veterinarigolicit the knowledge and experience of our spistiato interpret test results to aid in the
diagnosis of illnesses and to suggest possibléntiera alternatives. Our diagnostic experts incluekerinarians, chemists and other scientists
with expertise in pathology, internal medicine, ology, cardiology, dermatology, neurology and emthwtogy. Because of our specialists
involvement, we believe the quality of our senfigeher distinguishes our laboratory services pseaniere service provider.

7
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Laboratory Network
At December 31, 2011, we operated 53 veterinargrdiatic laboratories. Our laboratory network inesd
» primary hubs that are open 24 hours per day aret afful-testing menu
» secondary laboratories that are open 24 hoursgyeand offer a wic-testing menu servicing large metropolitan aread;

» shor-term assessment and treatm¢STAT") laboratories that service other locations with dednsufficient to warrant neart
laboratory facilities and are open primarily durih@ytime hours

We connect our laboratories to our customers wiatwve believe is the industry’s largest transpmmanetwork, picking up requisitions
daily through an extensive network of drivers amiependent couriers. Customers outside our tratajmor network use FedEx to send
specimens to our laboratory just outside of Memphinessee, which permits rapid and cost-effidesting because of the proximity to the
primary sorting facility of FedEx.

In 2011, we derived approximately 83% of our Lab@narevenue from major metropolitan areas, wheeeoffer twice-a-day pick-up
service and same-day results. In addition, in tlaesas we generally offer to report results withiree hours of pick-up. Outside of these areas,
we typically provide test results to veterinaridmesore 8:00 a.m. the day following pick-up.

Sales, Marketing and Client Service

Our full-time sales and field-service representsimarket laboratory services and maintain relakigors with existing customers. Our
sales force is compensated via salary plus comonissid organized along geographic regions. We stippo sales efforts by strengthening
our industry-leading team of specialists, develgpimarketing literature, attending trade shows,igigdting in trade associations and providing
educational services to veterinarians. Our clasrtsice representatives respond to customer irgiprovide test results and, when appropt
introduce the customer to other services offerethbyaboratory.

Personnel

Each of our primary and secondary laboratory loecetincludes a manager, supervisors for each deeattand personnel for laboratory
testing. In addition, we employ or contract witlespalists to interpret test results to assist vedetans in the diagnosis of illnesses and to
suggest possible treatment alternatives.

We actively recruit qualified personnel and are outted to supporting continuing education for owfpssional staff. We have internal
training programs for routine testing proceduresrtprove the skill level of our technicians andrgprove the overall capacity of our existing
staff. We sponsor various internship and certaieioeducational programs. These programs serveilth dwareness of our company with
students, who may seek employment with our compaligwing graduation.

Systems

We use an enterprise-wide management informatistesyto support our Animal Hospital operations. #i#eide whether or not to place
newly acquired animal hospitals on this networkelolasn a cosbenefit analysis. In addition, a majority of ouiraal hospitals utilize consiste
patient accounting/point-of-sale software and weeadle to track performance of hospitals on a perise, per-veterinarian and per-client
basis.

We use an enterprise-wide management informatistesyto support our veterinary laboratories. Albaf financial data, customer
records and laboratory results are stored in coengigtabases. Laboratory technicians and spesialistable to electronically access test
results from remote testing sites. Our softwarb@atdata in a data warehouse enabling us to pr@xgedient results via fax or through our
Internet online resulting system.
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Competition

The companion animal healthcare industry is higlonpetitive and subject to continual change inntia@ner in which services are
delivered and providers are selected. We beliegettte primary factors influencing a customer’'sstbn of an animal hospital are convenient
location and hours, personal recommendations, nede fees and quality of care. Our primary contpegifor our animal hospitals in most
markets are individual practitioners or small, ogil multi-clinic practices. In addition, some oathl companies in the pet care industry,
including the operators of super-stores, are dgieipnetworks of animal hospitals in markets tinatude our animal hospitals. We also
compete with sellers of pet-related products aadmbstic services delivered via the Internet. AQvagress in our integration of VetStreet we
expect to position ourselves and other indepenaleimal hospitals to better compete in the onlineketa

Among veterinary diagnostic laboratories, we baiévat quality, price, specialist support and thretrequired to deliver results are the
major competitive factors. There are many clinlabratories that provide a broad range of diagodssting services in the same markets
serviced by us, and we also face competition frewesal providers of on-site diagnostic equipmeat #ilows veterinarians to perform various
testing. Our principal competitor in most geogragbtations in the United States is IDEXX Laborasr

Government Regulation

Certain states and provinces have laws, rulesegudations which require that veterinary medicalgtices be owned by licensed
veterinarians and that corporations which are mgtenl by licensed veterinarians refrain from pravigior holding themselves out as providers
of, veterinary medical care. In these states andipces, we provide management and other admitiistraervices to veterinary practices ra
than owning such practices or providing such cafe provide management and other administrativeiGEs\o veterinary practices located in
these states and provinces. At December 31, 204 pravided management and administrative servic&3® animal hospitals in 15 states,

1 animal hospital in 1 Canadian province, underagament agreements with these veterinary practiiéesonsolidate these veterinary
practices for financial reporting purposes. Althbwge have structured our operations to comply withunderstanding of the veterinary
medicine laws of each state and province in whietoperate, interpretive legal precedent and regylgiuidance varies by jurisdiction and is
often sparse and not fully developed. A determamathat we are in violation of applicable restoat on the practice of veterinary medicine in
any jurisdiction in which we operate could have aernial adverse effect on our operations, partituibwe were unable to restructure our
operations to comply with the requirements of jhesdiction.

In addition, all of the states in which we operiat@ose various registration requirements. To fulfiese requirements, we have regist
each of our facilities with appropriate governméatgencies and, where required, have appointezkaded veterinarian to act on behalf of ¢
facility. All veterinarians practicing in our animaospitals are required to maintain valid statetises to practice.

Our acquisitions may be subject to pre-merger st-pterger review by governmental authorities fdi-tmst and other legal complian
Adverse regulatory action could negatively affeat operations through the assessment of finesrmalfies against us or the possible
requirement of divestiture of one or more of oueigions.

Employees

At December 31, 2011 we employed or managed onlfoefithe professional corporations to which we\pde services approximately
9,900 full-time-equivalent employees. At that datene of these employees were a party to a colkebiargaining agreement.

Availability of Our Reports Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC")

We maintain a website with the address http://itmegcaantech.comWe are not including the information containedoom website as
part of, or incorporating it by reference into,sthinnual report on Form 10-K. We
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make available free of charge through our websiteamnual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd-orm 106 and current reports on Fa
8-K, and amendments to these reports, as soon ameddyg practicable after we electronically file tthaaterial with, or furnish that material-
the SEC.

The SEC maintains an Internet site that contaiperte, proxy and information statements, and oitifermation regarding issuers that
file electronically with the SEC. Copies of our ogs filed electronically with the SEC may be assgson the SEC’s website www.sec.gov
The public may also read and copy any materiasl fitith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Rabh®0 F Street NE, Washington, DC
20549. Information on the operation of the Publefdence Room may be obtained by calling the SH80&) SEC-0330.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Various sections of this annual report contain fandviooking statements, all of which are basedwment expectations and could be
affected by the uncertainties and risk factors dlesd below and throughout this annual report. @atual results may differ materially from
these forward-looking statements.

The current economic environment may continue tousa a decline in our Animal Hospital same-store eswe growth and the rate of
our Laboratory internal revenue growth and have aaterial adverse effect on our profitability.

The continued economic uncertainty has had, andaoaginue to have, an adverse impact on our revandeour profitability. Consumer
spending habits, including spending for pet healtbcare affected by, among other things, prexg#iconomic conditions, levels of
employment, salaries and wage rates, consumerdeoidé and consumer perception of economic conditiRacently, these factors have
caused consumer spending to deteriorate significant! may cause levels of spending to remain dspkfor the foreseeable future. These
factors may cause pet owners to elect to forgomsipe treatment options or to defer treatmentHeirtpets altogether. We have experienced a
decline in the frequency of visits to our animaspitals and the number of orders placed in our ahiraspitals. These factors have contributed
to a decline in our Animal Hospital same-store maeegrowth and the recovery rate of our Laboraitoigrnal revenue growth. While we
continue to employ cost control measures, our pnedirgins may continue to decline until our buséeasreturn to historical growth rates.

In addition, the economic downturn may exacerbageeffect of the risks discussed below, includimgimpact on our growth strategy,
changes in demand for our products and servicessdirying value of our goodwill and other intarigéy our ability to service our substantial
indebtedness and sales of our medical imaging etgnip

If we are unable to effectively execute our grovwdtrategy, we may not achieve our desired econorofegcale and our profitability may
decline.

Our success depends in part on our ability to eseeour revenue and operating income through admedaprogram of organic growth
initiatives and selective acquisitions of estatdidlanimal hospitals, laboratories and related lessies. If we cannot implement or effectively
execute on this strategy, our results of operatwitide adversely affected. Even if we effectivatyplement our growth strategy, we may not
achieve the economies of scale that we have exmerkin the past or that we anticipate occurrinthéenfuture. We experienced a decline in
same-store revenue growth in our animal hospitalsein consecutive quarters, which ended durind 2@hen we experienced an increase in
same-store revenue growth in our third and fouudrtgrs. Our Laboratory growth has also been afteahd became negative during certain
guarters of the three year period ending Decembg2@L1. Our Animal Hospital same-store revenugisaed for differences in business days,
has fluctuated between a decline of 3.2% and groivh2% for 2007 through 2011. Our Laboratory ing revenue growth, adjusted for
differences in billing days, has fluctuated betw8émnand 13.5% over the same years. Our internalthronay continue to fluctuate and may
below our historical rates. Any reduction in theeraf our internal growth may cause our revenueaggetating income to decrease. Investors
should not assume that our historical growth rateseliable indicators of results in future pesiod
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Changes in the demand for our products and servicesild negatively affect our operating results.

The frequency of visits to our animal hospitals daslined and may continue to decline. We beli&e the frequency of visits is
impacted by several trends in the industry, in gaoldito the continuing financial crisis. Client itssmay be negatively impacted as a result of
preventative care and better pet nutrition. Denfandaccinations will be impacted in the futurepaistocols for vaccinations change. Our
veterinarians establish their own vaccine protacstsme of our veterinarians have changed theiopodé and others may change their
protocols in light of recent and/or future litereguThe demand for our products and services ngyddcline as a result of the eradication or
substantial declines in the prevalence of cert@aabes. Also, many pet-related products traditipsald at animal hospitals have become
more widely available in retail stores and othearatels of distribution, including the Internet,ukiig in a decline in demand for these
products at our animal hospitals.

Due to the fixed cost nature of our business, fluations in our revenue could adversely affect owmogs profit, operating income and
margins.

A substantial portion of our expense, particulaggt and personnel costs, are fixed and are bageari on expectations of revenue. We
may be unable to reduce spending in a timely mattneompensate for any significant fluctuation®im revenue. Accordingly, shortfalls in
revenue may adversely affect our gross profit, afieg income and margins.

Any failure in our information technology systemdijsruption in our transportation network or failurg¢o receive supplies could
significantly increase testing turn-around time, deice our production capacity and otherwise disruqir operations.

Our Laboratory operations depend on the continmelduainterrupted performance of our informatiornteogy systems and
transportation network, including overnight delivservices provided by FedEx. Sustained systemré&slor interruption in our transportation
network could disrupt our ability to process laliorg requisitions, perform testing, provide testulés in a timely manner and/or bill the
appropriate party. We could lose customers andwex@s a result of a system or transportation m&tfedure. In addition, any change in
government regulation related to transportationgasor specimens could also have an impact obusiness.

Our computer systems are vulnerable to damagdenription from a variety of sources, includingetmmmunications failures,
electricity brownouts or blackouts, malicious huna&ts and natural disasters. Moreover, despitearktsecurity measures, some of our
servers are potentially vulnerable to digital bréak computer viruses and similar disruptive peof. Despite the precautions we have taken,
unanticipated problems affecting our systems coalgse interruptions in our information technologgtems. Our insurance policies may not
adequately compensate us for any losses that ntay dae to any failures in our systems.

Our Laboratory operations depend on a limited nunabemployees to upgrade and maintain its custechcomputer systems. If we
were to lose the services of some or all of thespleyees, it may be time-consuming for new emplsytedbecome familiar with our systems,
and we may experience disruptions in service dutiege periods.

Our operations depend, in some cases, on theyatiiltingle source suppliers or a limited numbeswgfpliers, to deliver products and
supplies on a timely basis. Some of these sup@iersmaller companies with limited capital researand some of the products that we
purchase from these suppliers are proprietary, lwedefore, cannot be readily or easily replacedlt®rnative suppliers. We have in the past
experienced, and may in the future experiencetapes of or difficulties in acquiring products asrdéupplies in the quantities and of the
quality needed. Shortages in the availability afdurcts and/or supplies for an extended periodcheé tivill disrupt our ability to deliver produc
and provide services in a timely manner, couldltésuhe loss of customers, and could have a ristadverse impact on our results of
operations.
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Difficulties integrating new acquisitions may impesncreased costs, loss of customers and a dedtirgperating margins and
profitability and other risks that we may not antjate.

Our success depends in part on our ability to tnaeld cost-effectively acquire, and integrate mtio business, additional animal
hospitals, laboratories and related businesse)1f, we acquired 27 animal hospitals, includimgeniith the acquisition of BrightHeart, one
laboratory and Vetstreet. In 2010, we acquiredriifhal hospitals, including 23 with the acquisitiohPet DRx. In 2009, we acquired 27
animal hospitals, two laboratories and Eklin. Wpent to continue our animal hospital acquisitioogsam and, if presented with favorable
opportunities, we may acquire animal hospital chad@boratories or related businesses. Our expaisio new territories and new business
segments creates the risk that we will be unsuiddashe integration of the acquired businesées are new to our operations. Any
difficulties in the integration process could resnlincreased expense, loss of customers andlmé&t operating margins and profitability. In
some cases, we have experienced delays and indreasts in integrating acquired businesses, péatiguvhere we acquire a large number of
animal hospitals in a single region at or aboutsiti@e time. We also could experience delays ineximg the systems of acquired businesses
into our systems, which could result in increagadf and payroll expense to collect our resultsvali as delays in reporting our results, bott
a particular region and on a consolidated basighEr the legal and business environment prevateméw territories and with respect to new
businesses may pose risks that we do not anticgratedversely impact our ability to integrate neadquired operations. In addition, our fi
management may spend a greater amount of timeratibeg these new businesses and less time managirgxisting businesses. During these
periods, there may be less attention directed tietiag efforts or staffing issues, which couldeaff our revenue and expense. For all of these
reasons, our historical success in integrating iaeduusinesses is not a reliable indicator ofahility to do so in the future.

The significant competition in the companion animakalthcare industry could result in a decreasednr prices, an increase in our
acquisition costs, a loss of market share and comidterially affect our revenue and profitability.

The companion animal healthcare industry is higioignpetitive with few barriers to entry. To compstecessfully, we may be required
to reduce prices, increase our acquisition andatiper costs or take other measures that could aaagverse effect on our financial condition,
results of operations, margins and cash flow. ihitaah, if we are unable to compete successfully,may lose market share.

A significant component of our annual growth stggténcludes the acquisition of independent aninueditals. The competition for
animal hospital acquisitions from small nationad aagional multi-clinic companies may cause usitwéase the amount we pay to acquire
additional animal hospitals and may result in feagguisitions than anticipated by our growth stygtéf we are unable to acquire a requisite
number of animal hospitals annually or if our asifion costs increase, we may be unable to effelgtivnplement our growth strategy and
realize anticipated economies of scale.

Some national companies in the pet care industoyuding the operators of super-stores, are deiregdapetworks of animal hospitals in
markets that include our animal hospitals; this mayse us to reduce prices to remain competitiedBing prices may have an adverse effect
on our Animal Hospital revenue, alternatively nedlucing prices may cause us to lose market share.

We compete with clinical laboratory companies ie $ame markets we service. These companies haveextqdditional laboratories in
the markets in which we operate and may continei gxpansion, and aggressively “bundle” their picid and services to compete with us.
Increased competition may adversely affect our kafooy revenue and margins. Several other naticoralpanies develop and sell on-site
diagnostic equipment that allows veterinariansedgrm their own laboratory tests. Growth of thegite diagnostic testing market may have
an adverse effect on our Laboratory revenue.

Our medical technology business is a leader inrtagket for medical imaging equipment in the aniledlthcare industry. Our primary
competitors are companies that are much largeruband have substantially greater capital, matwfiag, marketing and research and
development resources than we do, including conggasuch as Siemens Medical Systems, Philips Mefligsiems and Canon Medical
Systems. The success of
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our medical technology business, in part, is duistibcus on the veterinary market, which allowvwidifferentiate its products and services to
meet the unique needs of this market. If this markeeives more focused attention from these lacgempetitors, we may find it difficult to
compete and as a result our revenues and operatimgins from this business could decline.

The carrying value of our goodwill and other intailgje assets could be subject to an impairment widtavn.

At December 31, 2011, our consolidated balancetshélected $1.2 billion of goodwill and $92.4 niwlh of other intangible assets,
constituting a substantial portion of our totaleisf $2.0 billion at that date. We expect thatagregate amount of goodwill and other
intangible assets on our consolidated balance stitétcrease as a result of future acquisition& continually evaluate whether events or
circumstances have occurred that suggest thaathedlue of our other intangible assets or eaabuofreporting units are below their respec
carrying values. The determination that the falugaf our intangible assets or one of our repgrtinits is less than its carrying value would
result in an impairment write-down. The impairmemite-down would be reflected as expense and cbale a material adverse effect on our
results of operations during the period in whichreeognize the expense. During the quarter endeder 31, 2011, we recorded a $21.3
million impairment charge related to our Medicathreology reporting unit.

Our estimated fair values are calculated in acewdavith generally accepted accounting principéated to fair value and utilize
valuation methods consisting primarily of discowhtash flow techniques, and market comparablestendygplicable. These valuation meth
involve the use of significant assumptions anchesties such as forecasted growth rates, valuatidtipies, the weighted-average cost of
capital, and risk premiums, which are based uperb#st available market information and are comsistith our longterm strategic plans. V
provide no assurance that forecasted growth reédisation multiples, and discount rates will notedimrate. We will continue to analyze
changes to these assumptions in future periods.

We require a significant amount of cash to servioar debt and expand our business as planned.

We have, and will continue to have, a substantraunt of debt. Our substantial amount of debt neguils to dedicate a significant
portion of our cash flow from operations to seniitierest and principal payments on our debt, thereducing the funds available for use for
working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitiansl general corporate purposes.

Our failure to satisfy covenants in our debt instments will cause a default under those instruments.

In addition to imposing restrictions on our bussaad operations, our debt instruments includenabew of covenants relating to
financial ratios and tests. Our ability to complighwthese covenants may be affected by events lobegoncontrol, including prevailing
economic, financial and industry conditions. Thedwh of any of these covenants would result infaulteunder these instruments. An event of
default would permit our lenders and other debtdiddo declare all amounts borrowed from them tdureand payable, together with accrued
and unpaid interest. If we are unable to repay tiebtr senior lenders, these lenders and otheéhdkelers could proceed against our assets.

Our debt instruments may adversely affect our ayilio run our business.

Our substantial amount of debt, as well as theantaes of our subsidiaries and the security intefesour assets and those of our
subsidiaries, could impair our ability to operate business effectively and may limit our abilioytake advantage of business opportunities.
For example, our senior credit facility may:

« limit our ability to borrow additional funds or tabtain other financing in the future for workingpdal, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, investments and general corporatpqaas

« limit our ability to dispose of our assets, crd@as on our assets or to extend cre

* make us more vulnerable to economic downturns addae our flexibility in responding to changing imess and econom
conditions;
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« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our business or indus
» place us at a competitive disadvantage to our ctitopewith less debt; an
* restrict our ability to pay dividends, repurchasesaleem our capital stock or debt, or merge osclidate with another entit

The terms of our senior credit facility allow usider specified conditions, to incur further indelstess, which would heighten the
foregoing risks. If compliance with our debt obligas materially hinders our ability to operate business and adapt to changing industry
conditions, we may lose market share, our reveraye decline and our operating results may suffer.

Any failure by the manufacturers of our medical inging equipment, failure in our ability to developifictional and cost-effective
software for our products, or any product malfunotis could result in a decline in customer purchasasd a reduction in our revenue
and profitability.

We do not develop or manufacture the medical inggouipment that we distribute, except for thevgafe component of our digital
radiography machines. Our business in large paktjigendent upon distribution agreements with theufsecturers of the equipment, the ability
of those manufacturers to produce desirable equipared to keep pace with advances in technologyability to develop cost-effective,
functional, and user-friendly software for the thdradiography machines, and the overall rateeo¥ development within the industry. If the
distribution agreements terminate or are not redewehe manufacturers breach their covenants utidse agreements, if the equipment
manufactured by these manufacturers or our softvacemes less competitive or if there is a gerdgatease in the rate of new development
within the industry, demand for our products antvises would decrease.

Manufacturing flaws, component failures, desigreded, or inadequate disclosure of product-relatéatmation could result in an unsafe
condition or injury. These problems could resulpioduct liability claims and lawsuits alleging thoaur products have resulted or could rest
an unsafe condition or injury. In addition, an ateeevent involving one of our products could resuteduced market acceptance and demanc
for all of our products, and could harm our repotaind our ability to market our products in tbéufe. Any of the foregoing problems could
disrupt our business and have a material advefset@n our business, results of operations, firdmondition and cash flows.

Our use of self-insurance, self-insured retentiom@ high-deductible insurance programs to cover @t claims for losses suffered and
costs or expenses incurred could negatively impaat business upon the occurrence of an uninsuredddor significant event.

We self-insure and use high retention or high-déblgcinsurance programs with regard to propetisi general, professional and
employment practice liabilities, health benefitsdavorkers’ compensation. In the event that thgUeamcy of losses we experience increases
unexpectedly, the aggregate of those losses coatdrially increase our liability and adversely affeur financial condition, liquidity, cash
flows and results of operations. In addition, wgdmade certain judgments as to the limits on &istiag insurance coverage that we believe
are in line with industry standards, as well abght of economic and availability consideratioffsve experience losses above these limits it
could materially adversely affect our financial dndsiness condition.

We may experience difficulties hiring skilled vetearians due to shortages that could disrupt our &iness.

If we are unable to retain an adequate numberibégdk/eterinarians, we may lose customers, ouemnere may decline and we may need
to sell or close animal hospitals. At December2fll,1, there were 28 veterinary schools in the gguattcredited by the American Veterinary
Medical Association. These schools graduate appratdly 2,500 veterinarians per year. From timéni@ twe experience shortages of skilled
veterinarians in some regional markets in whichoperate animal hospitals. During shortages in theg®ns, we may be unable to hire
enough qualified veterinarians to adequately staffanimal hospitals, in which event we may losek®iashare and our revenue and
profitability may decline.
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If we fail to comply with governmental regulatioregpplicable to our business, various governmentakagies may impose fines, institute
litigation or preclude us from operating in certaigtates.

Certain states and provinces have laws, rulesegdations which require that veterinary medicalgtices be owned by licensed
veterinarians and that corporations which are motenl by licensed veterinarians refrain from pravigior holding themselves out as providers
of, veterinary medical care. At December 31, 20dd provided management and administrative sert@&30 animal hospitals in 15 states
and 1 animal hospital in 1 Canadian province, umti@nagement agreements with these veterinary peacincluding 48 practices in Texas,
in Washington, 26 in New York. We may experiend@dlilty in expanding our operations into othertetaor provinces with similar laws, ru
and regulations. Although we have structured o@rafions to comply with our understanding of theexieary medicine laws of each state and
province in which we operate, interpretive legagadent and regulatory guidance varies by juriggiand is often sparse and not fully
developed. A determination that we are in violatidmpplicable restrictions on the practice of viei@ry medicine in any jurisdiction in which
we operate, could have a material adverse effeaspparticularly if we are unable to restructuse aperations to comply with the
requirements of that jurisdiction.

All of the states in which we operate impose vasicegistration requirements. To fulfill these regquients, we have registered each of
our facilities with appropriate governmental ages@nd, where required, have appointed a licensgdirarian to act on behalf of each
facility. All veterinarians practicing in our animaospitals are required to maintain valid staterises to practice.

MediMedia USA, Inc. provides services to us purstitmthe Transition Services Agreement. When thajréement terminates, we will be
required to replace MediMedia'’s services internatly through third parties on terms that may be léfssorable to us.

Under the terms of the Transition Services Agredrtteat we entered into with MediMedia in connectiith our acquisition of
Vetstreet, MediMedia is providing to us, for a fepecified support services for the Vetstreet lrssnrelating to finance and accounting,
information technology and communications, humaoueces and facilities for periods of up to 12 rherfollowing the date of acquisition.
When the Transition Services Agreement termindfies]iMedia will no longer be obligated to provideyasf these services to us or pay us,
we will be required to either enter into a new agnent with MediMedia or another services providermssume the responsibility for these
functions ourselves. At that time, the economimtepf the new arrangement may be less favorabtettteaarrangement with MediMedia un
the Transition Services Agreement, which may haweterial adverse effect on our business, restiltperations and financial condition.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates clbadversely affect our business, financial conditi, operating results and cash flov

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuation nisKanada as we recently expanded our animal tabgjierations and now operate
over 40 animal hospitals in three provinces, anerate four laboratories, that create market risloeiated with changes in the value of the
Canadian dollar. Currency exchange rates fluctoata daily basis as a result of a number of facodscannot easily be predicted. To date, we
have not hedged against foreign currency fluctuatibowever, we may pursue hedging alternativéisariuture. Our business, financial
condition, operating results and cash flows thesetmuld be materially adversely affected by flattons in the exchange rate between the
Canadian dollar and the U.S. dollar.

Our international operations may result in additi@h market risks, which may harm our business.

We operate over 40 animal hospitals and four labades in Canada as of February 29, 2012. As thpseations grow, they may require
greater management and financial resources. Iitepeaations require the integration of personnigh warying cultural and business
backgrounds and an understanding of the relevant
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differences in the cultural, legal and regulatanyisonments. Our results may be increasingly affiédiy the risks of our international
operations, including:

» Fluctuations in currency exchange ra

» Changes in internal staffing and employment iss

 Failure to understand the local culture and mased

» The burden of complying with foreign laws, includitax laws and financial accounting standa

Changes in regulations or user concerns regardingvacy and protection of user data could adversaffect our business.

Vetstreet offers e-commerce services to veteripaagtices through the Pro Pet Portal, and engagesommerce through the
vetstreet.com website. Federal, state and intenmatiaws and regulations may govern the collectise, retention, sharing and security of
that we receive from customers, visitors to the sitels of our customers, and others. In additionhasxe and post on our website our own
privacy policy concerning the collection, use amtibsure of user data. Any failure, or perceivaitlfe, by us to comply with our posted
privacy policies or with any privacy-related law®yvernment regulations or directives, or induselj-segulatory principles could result in
damage to our reputation, or proceedings or actgasnst us by governmental entities or otherwidech could potentially have an adverse
effect on our business.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters and principal execufifiges are located in Los Angeles, Californiaapproximately 50,000 square feet of
leased space. At February 29, 2012, we leased oedfacilities at 639 other locations that houseamimal hospitals, laboratories, our
medical technology business, and our Vetstreenlegsi We own 140 facilities and the remaindereasdd. We believe that our real property
facilities are adequate for our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are currently not subject to any legal procegslisther than ordinarily routine litigation incidahto the conduct of our business.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Sdlsotket under the symbol “WOOF.” The following teldets forth the range of
high and low sales prices per share for our comstock as quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Maftethe periods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2011 by Quarte

Fourth $21.5¢ $14.7:

Third $22.0¢ $15.0C

Seconc $25.51 $19.0¢

First $26.2¢ $22.4¢
Fiscal 2010 by Quarte

Fourth $24.0¢ $19.8¢

Third $26.0: $19.12

Seconc $29.2¢ $24.6:

First $28.0¢ $23.52

At February 23, 2012, there were 291 holders adnetof our common stock.
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The following graph sets forth the percentage changumulative total stockholder return on our coom stock from December 31, 2(
to December 31, 2011. These periods are compatéedive cumulative returns of the NASDAQ Stock Mdrie.S. Companies) Index and the
Russell 2000 Index. The comparison assumes $100mwasted on December 31, 2006 in our common stockin each of the foregoing
indices. The stock price performance on the foltmpgraph is not necessarily indicative of futuecktprice performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN™

Among VOA Antech, Inc., the MASDAL Composite Index, and the Russell 2000 Indax
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Fiscal year ending December 31

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11
VCA Antech, Inc. 100.0( 137.4( 61.7¢ 77.42 72.3% 61.3¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 110.2¢ 65.6¢ 95.1¢ 112.1( 110.8!
Russell 200C 100.0( 98.4: 65.1¢ 82.8¢ 105.1« 100.7¢

Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stk we do not anticipate paying cash dividendbénforeseeable future. In
addition, our senior credit facility places limitais on our ability to pay cash dividends in resmg@ur common stock. Specifically, our senior
credit facility dated August 16, 2011 prohibitsftem declaring, ordering, paying, or setting agary sum for any dividends or other
distributions on account of any shares of any abdisgock, other than dividends payable solelyhares of stock to holders of such class of
stock. Any future determination as to the paymémtividends on our common stock will be restrictgdthese limitations, will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and will depgean our results of operations, financial conditicapital requirements and other factors
deemed relevant by the Board of Directors, inclgdhre General Corporation Law of the State of Dalaywhich provides that dividends are
only payable out of surplus or current net profits.
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Transactions in Our Equity Securities

For the period covered by this report, we haveemgfaged in any sales of our unregistered equityrisies that were not disclosed in a
quarterly report on Form 10-Q or a current reparform 8-K, and we have not repurchased any oéquity securities in the fourth quarter.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table provides our selected consaéddinancial data as of and for each of the yeatise five- year period ended
December 31, 2011. The income statement and aastdiita and the other data for each of the thraesyended December 31, 2011, and the
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2011 andn2@1ieen derived from our financial statementsidtezl elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
other periods presented were derived from our firrstatements that are not included in this FbérK.

The selected financial data presented below imaocgssarily indicative of results of future operasi and should be read in conjunction
with theManagement'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtion and Results of Operatiossction and our consolidated financial
statements and related notes included elsewhehésidO-K.

December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Income Statement Data:

Animal Hospital revenue(2)( $1,150,12! $1,052,46. $ 994,21! $ 959,39! $ 844,34.
Laboratory revenu 316,79° 310,65¢ 310,05° 306,89: 297,69(
All Other revenue(1)(7 80,43( 64,01 48,55 49,23¢ 44,82¢
Intercompany revent (61,98¢) (45,66)) (38,327) (38,059 (30,71)
Total revenue 1,485,36. 1,381,46! 1,314,50 1,277,471 1,156,14!
Direct costs 1,146,90. 1,050,30: 973,27! 934,99¢ 835,46.
Gross profit 338,45 331,16« 341,23. 342,47 320,68:
Selling, general and administrative expens 121,11: 123,54: 95,66¢ 90,56¢ 86,13¢
Goodwill impairment(3’ 21,31( — — — —
Net loss on sale of assets 382 374 4,03¢ 234 1,32¢
Operating income(3)(5)(¢ 195,65 207,24¢ 241,52¢ 251,67t 233,22:
Interest expense, n 16,88¢ 13,63( 21,46¢ 28,55¢ 29,50:
Debt retirement cos! 2,76¢ 2,131 — — —
Other expense (incom 11¢€ (772) (104) (212) 22C
Income before provision for income ta» 175,88 192,26( 220,16t 223,32 203,49¢
Provision for income taxes(! 76,02: 78,10: 84,58( 86,21¢ 78,63¢
Net income 99,86( 114,15t 135,58t 137,11( 124,86.
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 4,45k 3,91¢ 4,15¢ 4,12¢ 3,85(
Net income attributable to VCA Antech, | $ 95,40¢ $ 110,24 $ 131,42¢ $ 132,98 $ 121,01
Basic earnings per she $ 1.1C $ 1.2¢ $ 1.54 $ 1.57 $ 1.44
Diluted earnings per sha $ 1.0¢ $ 1.2 $ 1.52 $ 1.6 $ 1.41
Weighted-average shares outstanding for basicregsmer
share 86,60¢ 86,04¢ 85,07 84,45t 83,89:
Weighted-average shares outstanding for dilutediegs per
share 87,39 87,05: 86,09" 85,70( 85,71¢
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December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands, except percentages)

Other Financial Data:

Consolidated gross marg 22.8% 24.(% 26.(% 26.£% 27.1%
Animal Hospital gross margi 15.€% 16.4% 18.5% 19.2% 19.2%
Laboratory gross margi 45.2% 45.8% 46.2% 46.€% 48.1%
All Other gross margil 26.1% 30.1% 32.6% 35.€% 33.6%
Consolidated operating margin(3)(5) 13.2% 15.1% 18.2% 19.7% 20.2%
Animal Hospital operating marg 13.5% 14.1% 16.5% 16.% 16.€%
Laboratory operating marg 36.6% 37.2% 38.¢% 39.9% 41.5%
All Other operating margin(< (24.2)% 7.2% 6.1% 10.8% 9.2%
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 191,05: $ 168,07: $ 183,47: $ 197,30¢ $ 173,76¢
Net cash used in investing activities $ (271,310) $ (150,17 $ (130,76() $ (210,71) $ (270,56()
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activ

9) $ 47,00: $ (66,140 $ 3,46i $ (8,400 $ 162,55¢
Capital expenditure $ (63,48 $ (61,95) $ (50,80 $ (55,04%) $ (48,719
Balance Sheet Data (at period end
Cash and cash equivalel $ 63,65 $ 97,12¢ $ 145,18: $ 88,95¢ $ 110,86t
Goodwill $1,237,60° $1,092,48 $ 985,67: $ 922,05 $ 821,96
Total asset $1,995,36! $1,776,42. $1,627,40. $1,449,03! $1,286,71:
Long-term debi $ 618,85: $ 527,03t $ 545,05! $ 552,63: $ 560,18(
Total stockholder equity $1,107,87: $ 998,92: $ 875,04 $ 710,98 $ 568,38

(1) On August 9, 2011, we acquired Vetstreet, a provid@nline communications, professional educatiod marketing solutions to tl
veterinary community

(2) OnJuly 11, 2011, we acquired BrightHeart Vigiany Centers (“BrightHeart”), which operated nar@mal hospitals as of the acquisition
date.

(3) In 2011, our operating income and operatinggimawas unfavorably impacted by a $21.3 million ft@sh goodwill impairment charge,
related to our medical technology business. Thegehinpacted our 2011 operating margin by 1.

(4) On July 1, 2010, we acquired Pet DRx Corporatidmcivoperated 23 animal hospitals as of the adiprisilate.

(5) In 2010, our SG&A, operating income and opa@thargin were unfavorably impacted by $14.5 millio consulting and SERP expenses

to be paid in accordance with consulting and SERBeaments entered into on June 30, 2

(6) The 2010 provision for income taxes includesricognition of $5.4 million, or $3.5 million net tax, related to additional state tax
payments required as a result of a tax settlensached

(7) OnJuly 1, 2009, we acquired EKklin, a supplier igitdl radiography equipment to the veterinary isily.

(8) In 2009, our operating income and operatinggimawas unfavorably impacted by a $3.3 million reash charge related to the write-off of

an internal-use software project. The $3.3 mili®net of $1.9 million in cash recovered for cartedsts incurred on this project. The
write-off impacted our 2009 operating margin by 0.

(9) We have reclassed cash paid for partnership buyma®arnouts from investing cash flows to finagaiash flows for years 2007 throu
2010, to conform to the current y’s presentation. The amounts were not mate
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our consolidated financial statements pded under Part 11, Item 8 of this
annual report on Form 10-K. We have included hestatements that constitute forward-looking statetmevithin the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We gelhgiidentify forward-looking statements in this cepusing words like “believe,” “intend,”
“seek,” “expect,” “estimate,” “may,” “plan,” “shoul d plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” “p redict,” “potential,” “continue,” or
similar expressions. You may find some of thederatnts below and elsewhere in this report. Thaseafd-looking statements are not
historical facts and are inherently uncertain angtside of our control. Any or all of our forwarddking statements in this report may turn out
to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccurataraptions we might make or by known or unknown @skuncertainties. Many factors
mentioned in our discussion in this report willibgortant in determining future results. Conseqlyemo forward-looking statement can be
guaranteed. Actual future results may vary matéridtactors that may result in these forw-looking statements in being different than
reflected in this report are described throughdistannual report and particularly in “Risk Factdr®art |, Item 1A of this annual report on
Form 1(-K.

The forward-looking information set forth in thieraual report on Form 10-K is as of February 29, 20&nd we undertake no duty to
update this information. Shareholders and prospeciivestors can find information filed with theCS&fter February 29, 2012, at our website
at http://investor.vcaantech.coon at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov

Overview

We are a leading national animal healthcare compafeyprovide veterinary services and diagnostitrtigservices to support veterinary
care and we sell diagnostic imaging equipment dhdranedical technology products and related sesvio veterinarians. We also provide
both online and printed communications, educatiwhiaformation, and analytical based marketing tohs to the veterinary community.

Our reportable segments are as follows:

» Our Animal Hospital segment operates the largestork of freestanding, full-service animal hosgstai the nation. Our animal
hospitals offer a full range of general medical andyical services for companion animals. We tdésgases and injuries, offer
pharmaceutical and retail products and performrietyaof pet wellness programs, including healthreinations, diagnostic testing,
routine vaccinations, spaying, neutering and desgeg. At December 31, 2011, our animal hospitelak consisted of 541 animal
hospitals in 41 states and 1 Canadian provi

» Our Laboratory segment operates the largest netaforkterinary diagnostic laboratories in the natiOur laboratories provic
sophisticated testing and consulting services bgegkterinarians in the detection, diagnosis, eatédm, monitoring, treatment and
prevention of diseases and other conditions affganimals. At December 31, 2011, our laboratotyaek consisted of 53
laboratories serving all 50 states and certainsare€anade

Our “All Other” category includes the results ofrddedical Technologies and VetStreet operating sagm Each of these segments did
not meet the materiality thresholds to be repairteldvidually.

The practice of veterinary medicine is subjectaasonal fluctuation. In particular, demand for viegry services is significantly higher
during the warmer months because pets spend ageeabunt of time outdoors where they are mordylitebe injured and are more
susceptible to disease and parasites. In additempf veterinary services may be affected by tewéflea infestation, heartworms and ticks,
and the number of daylight hours.

Our revenue has been adversely impacted by therdugconomic recession. We are unable to forebadirning or degree of any
economic recovery. Further, trends in the generahemy may not be reflected in our
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business at the same time or in the same degiiadtes general economy. The timing and degree pfemonomic recovery, and its impact on
our business, are among the important factorsctinat! cause our actual results to differ from amnard-looking information.

Executive Overview

The slow economic recovery continues to have aems@vimpact on our organic revenue and our prdafitatiConsumer spending habits,
including spending for pet healthcare, are affetgdamong other things, prevailing economic cdadg, levels of employment, salaries and
wage rates, consumer confidence and consumer piercex economic conditions. These factors contittuenpact consumer spending and
may continue to cause levels of spending to rerdepressed for the foreseeable future. Addition#iligse factors may cause pet owners to
elect to defer expensive treatment options or tgddreatment for their pet’s altogether. Durin@20continuing through 2011, we experienced
a decline in the number of visits to our animalgitzds and the number of orders placed, as wek agcline in the number of our Laboratory
requisitions. These factors resulted in a declineur Animal Hospital same-store revenue and rélptefit margin. Improvement in our
Laboratory internal revenue growth, in spite of tleeline in requisitions, was offset by increagaddportation costs resulting in a decline in
our profit margin. Our consolidated profit margiasvfurther eroded by lower profit margins initiallyperienced with our acquired businesses.

We believe that our ability to maintain or increasargins in 2012 will be dependent on organic rereegrowth rates. We plan to
continue our growth strategy of acquiring indivilaaimal hospitals and maintain our strong emphassiexpense management. However, our
ability to return to our historical margins will lbeependent on increases in same-store revenuelgmowtir animal hospitals, greater increases
in internal revenue growth in our laboratories andcessful integration of our acquired businesses.

Refinancing Transactions

On August 16, 2011, we amended and restated ostirekisenior credit facility to allow for additiohsenior term notes in the amount of
$100 million and an additional $25.0 million aggaégprincipal amount of revolving commitments. Timeds borrowed from the additional
senior term notes were used to repay in full, ant®borrowed in connection with the August 9, 20tquasition of Vetstreet. Both the senior
term notes and the revolving credit facility arecpd at LIBOR plus 175 basis points, a 50 basistpdecrease from our previous credit facility,
see Note 6l.ong-Term Obligationsin our consolidated financial statements of #riaual report on Form 10-K, for a more detailedulsion
of applicable interest rates on our new debt. mneetion with the amendment we incurred $2.9 miliio financing costs, of which
approximately $865,000 were recognized as paradme from continuing operations and approximas2ly) million were capitalized as
deferred financing costs. In addition, we experikd million of previously capitalized financingste associated with lenders who exited the
syndicate on the amendment date or those thatadeteemined to be extinguished.

Goodwill Impairment

As a result of our October 31, 2011 annual impairinest, we recorded a goodwill impairment chargeur Medical Technology
reporting unit of $21.3 million, or $0.24 per digt share. Our determination of goodwill impairmierthe current period was triggered by
actual results not meeting expectations. This ahusdo revise our forecasted cash flows for tprting unit, which resulted in a reductior
the estimated fair value of the reporting unit &adyoodwill.
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Acquisitions

Our annual growth strategy includes the acquisitibimdependent animal hospitals. In addition, \g® &valuate the acquisition of anir
hospital chains, laboratories or related busine$$agorable opportunities are presented. In 2@t4 acquired 18 independent animal hospitals
with annual revenue of $36.9 million and a chaimiofe animal hospitals with annual revenue of $53illon. The following table summariz:
the changes in the number of facilities operateduryAnimal Hospital and Laboratory segments:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Animal hospitals
Beginning of perioc 52¢ 48¢ 471
Acquisitions, excluding BrightHeart(1) in 2011 aRdt DRx(1) in 201( 18 27 27
BrightHeart 9 — —
Pet DRx — 23 —
Acquisitions relocated into our existing animal jhitels (3) (2 (5)
Sold, closed or merge 1y © _@
End of perioc 541 52¢ 48¢
Laboratories
Beginning of perioc 50 47 44
Acquisitions 1 — 2
Acquisitions relocated into our existing laborags) — — (2
New facilities 2 4 3
Closed or merge i on =
End of perioc _53 _ 50 7

(1) BrightHeart Veterinary Centers (“BrightHeartijps acquired on July 11, 2011 and Pet DRx CorporgtiPet DRx") was acquired on
July 1, 2010

BrightHeart Acquisition

On July 11, 2011, we acquired 100% of the membpiisiberests of BrightHeart for approximately $50liom in cash. BrightHeart
operates nine animal hospitals, eight of which $oon the delivery of specialty and emergency madicThe acquisition will increase our le'
of market recognition in areas where we have astiegi market presence. At the time of the acqoisiBrightHeart had annualized revenue of
approximately $53.4 million. Our consolidated fiogat statements reflect the operating results agfBHeart since July 11, 2011.

Pet DRx Acquisition

On July 1, 2010, we acquired a 70.4% interest tlxRx, a provider of veterinary primary care andaplized services to companion
animals. Pet DRx operated 23 animal hospitals iif@@aia at the time of its acquisition. The acqti@ expands our presence in the California
market. We acquired the remaining interest in FRxBn November 1, 2010. The aggregate purchase fmidoth steps was $41.3 million.
Our consolidated financial statements reflect therating results of Pet DRx since July 1, 2010.

Vetstreet, Inc., formerly known as MediMedia AnimBlealth, LLC (“Vetstreet”)

On August 9, 2011, we acquired Vetstreet, a provad®nline communications, professional educadod marketing solutions to the
veterinary community. The acquisition of Vetstregpands the breadth of our product offerings toviterinary community and is expected to
provide long-term synergies to our existing busséess We acquired Vetstreet for a preliminary pusefarice of $146.4 million, net of cash
acquired. At the time of the acquisition Vetstreatl annualized revenue of approximately $23.0 anillOur consolidated financial statements
reflect the operating results of Vetstreet sincgudst 9, 2011.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe that the application of the followingaanting policies, which are important to our fingh position and results of operatic
require significant judgments and estimates orptré of management. For a summary of all our aciegpolicies, including the accounting
policies discussed below, see NoteSummary of Significant Accounting Policiespur consolidated financial statements of thisuead report
on Form 10-K.

Revenue

Generally, we recognize revenue when persuasivkeree of a sales arrangement exists, delivery eflgbas occurred or services have
been rendered, the sales price or fee is fixecetarthinable and collectability is reasonably assure

We also generate revenue from the sale of digidibgraphy and ultrasound imaging equipment. We géserate revenue from:
(i) licensing software; (ii) providing technicalgoort and product updates on a when-and-if avalabkis related to our software, otherwise
known as maintenance; (iii) providing professiosaivices related to our equipment and softwardydeg installations, on-site training,
education services and extended warranty progrants(iv) providing mobile imaging services. We fueqtly sell equipment and license our
software in multiple element arrangements in whighcustomer may choose a combination of our pitsdutd services.

The accounting for the sale of equipment and theafasoftware licenses and related items is sulisiéyy governed by the requirements
of the FASB’s general revenue recognition rulese @htermination of the amount of software licemsaintenance and professional service
revenue to be recognized in each accounting peeguires us to exercise judgment and use estimatdstermining whether or not to
recognize revenue, we evaluate each of theseiariter

» Evidence of an arrangement We consider a non-cancelable agreement sigpeide customer and us to be evidence of an
arrangement

» Delivery: We consider delivery to have occurred whenullrasound imaging equipment is delivered. We mmrdelivery to have
occurred when the digital radiography imaging emept, including software, is delivered or accetgdhe customer if installation is
required. We consider delivery to have occurredhwéspect to professional services when thosecgerare provided or on a straight-
line basis over the service contract term, basetth@mature of the service or the terms of thereat

» Fixed or determinable fee We assess whether fees are fixed or deterneirzlthe time of sale and recognize revenue ibtalker
revenue recognition requirements are met. We géyeansider payments that are due within six mertthbe fixed or determinable
based upon our successful collection history. Wg oconsider fees to be fixed or determinable ifythee not subject to refund or
adjustment

» Collection is deemed probahle We conduct a credit review for all significardnsactions at the time of the arrangement teraene
the credit worthiness of the customer. Collect®déemed probable if we expect that the customeb&vable to pay amounts under
the arrangement as payments become due. If wendatethat collection is not probable, we deferréenue and recognize the
revenue upon cash collectic

Digital Radiography Imaging Equipment

We sell our digital radiography imaging equipmeiithwnultiple elements, including hardware, softwhcenses and/or services. Tang
products containing software components and nomaoft components that function together to delikertangible product’s essential
functionality are accounted for under the FASB’sapting guidance pertaining to multiple-deliveml#venue arrangements.

Under the guidance sales arrangement consideliatadlocated at the inception of the arrangemeatltdeliverables using the relative
selling price method, whereby any discount in tirarggement is allocated
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proportionally to each deliverable on the basisaxh deliverable’s selling price. The selling pficeeach deliverable is based on vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) if availabtejrd-party evidence (“TPE”) if VSOE is not availabor estimated selling price (“ESP”) if
neither VSOE nor TPE is available. For elementsre/MSOE is available, VSOE of fair value is basadhe price for those products and
services when sold separately by us or the pritsbkshed by management with the relevant authofiBE of selling price is the price of our,
or any of our competitor’s, largely interchangegieducts or services in stand-alone sales to ailyisituated customers. We do not currently
have VSOE for our DR imaging equipment as unitsnatesold on a stand-alone basis without the rélatgport packages. As this is also true
for our competitors, TPE of selling price is als@uailable. We therefore use the ESP to alloca&atrangement consideration related to our
DR imaging equipment.

We recognize revenue when the services are proddatthe time of delivery or installation and tmser acceptance. Generally, at the
time of delivery and installation of equipment thdy undelivered item is the post-contract custosugport (“PCS”). This obligation is
contractually defined in both terms of scope anbpe For the PCS, we recognize the revenue faetservices on a straigliie basis over tr
period of support and we expense the costs of hersgces as they are incurred.

Ultrasound Imaging Equipment

We sell our ultrasound imaging equipment on a stnde basis and with multiple elements, includiagdware, software, licenses
and/or services. We account for the sale of ultraddmaging equipment on a stand-alone basis uhéaequirements of the FASB’s general
revenue recognition rules and recognize revenue dpbtivery. We account for the sale of ultrasoundging equipment with related computer
hardware and software pursuant to the the requinesa# the FASB’s Revenue Recognition — MultiplesBlent Arrangements guidance.

Digital Radiography and Ultrasound Imaging Equipm&old Together

In certain transactions we sell our ultrasound iimg@quipment and related services together withdaital radiography imaging
equipment and related services. In these transetéach element is accounted for pursuant to AA8BFS Revenue Recognition — Multiple-
Element Arrangements guidance.

Other Services

We recognize revenue on mobile imaging, consukliing education services at the time the services hagn rendered. We also generate
revenue from extended service agreements relatedrtdigital radiography imaging and ultrasound ging equipment. These extended ser
agreements include technical support, product @sdat software on a when and if available basisexttended warranty coverage. The
revenue for these extended service agreementsdgnized on a straight-line basis over the terithefagreement.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

We allocate a significant portion of the purchagegfor our acquired businesses to goodwill. Camdywill represents the excess of the
cost of an acquired entity over the net of the ammassigned to identifiable assets acquired aiities assumed. The total amount of our
goodwill at December 31, 2011 was $1.2 billion, gieting of $1.0 billion for our Animal Hospital reging unit, $96.8 million for our
Laboratory reporting unit, $8.2 million for our Miedl Technology reporting unit, and $97.2 milliar bur Vetstreet reporting unit.

We test our goodwill for impairment annually, ooser if circumstances indicate impairment may exisaccordance with goodwill
guidance. We adopted the end of October as ouradimpairment testing date, which allows us timat¢ourately complete our impairment
testing process in order to incorporate the reswultair annual financial statements and timely tlilese statements with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) in accordance with &aegelerated filing requirements. There were no impent charges resulting from the
October 31, 2010 or 2009 impairment tests. As altre$ the October 31, 2011 goodwill impairmenttiieg, we determined that the goodwiill
related to our Medical Technology reporting unisvipaired.
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Accordingly, we recorded a $21.3 million goodwitipairment charge for the fiscal year ended Decer®bgP011. No events have occurred
subsequent to the 2011 testing date which woulitatel any further impairment may have occurredniy @f our reporting units.

The recognition and measurement of a goodwill impant loss currently involves a two-step process:

First we identify potential impairment by comparitig estimated fair value of our reporting unitshithe carrying value of our reporting
units, with carrying value defined as the reportimit’s net assets, including goodwill. If the estimdtddvalue of our reporting units is gree
than our carrying value, there is no impairment tredsecond step is not needed.

If we identify a potential impairment in the firstep, we are then required to measure the amoumipafirment. The amount of the
impairment is determined by allocating the estirddgar value of the reporting unit as determinedtiep one to the reporting unit’s net assets
based on fair value as would be done in an acapisiin this hypothetical acquisition, the residaatimated fair value after allocation to the
reporting units’ identifiable net assets is theneated fair value of goodwill. If the estimatedrfaalue of goodwill is less than the carrying
amount of goodwill, goodwill is considered impairadd written down to the estimated fair value vaitborresponding charge to earnings.
However, if the estimated fair value of goodwillgeeater than the carrying amount of goodwill, geitids not considered impaired and is not
adjusted to the estimated fair value. Determinimgftir value of the net assets of our reportindgswmder this step requires significant
estimates.

Our estimated fair values are calculated in aceurdavith generally accepted accounting principédated to fair value and utilize
generally accepted valuation techniques consigtiirgarily of discounted cash flow techniques andkaticomparables, where applicable.
These valuation methods involve the use of sigaifi@assumptions and estimates such as forecastethgiates, valuation multiples, the
weighted-average cost of capital, and risk premjumtsch are based upon the best available markatnvation and are consistent with our
long-term strategic plans. In 2010 and 2009, werdgihed that the estimated fair value of each ofreporting units exceeded their respective
net book value, resulting in a conclusion that nohtine goodwill of our reporting units was impairdt was noted however, that changes in
estimates, such as, forecasted cash flows, cofddtdahe estimated fair value of our reporting sigihd could have resulted in a goodwill
impairment charge particularly for our Animal Hasppiand Medical Technology reporting units.

In 2011, we recorded an impairment charge in oudib® Technology reporting unit reflecting changesur estimate of forecasted cash
flows. This reporting unit’s remaining goodwill $8.2 million. Our Animal Hospital reporting unithich has $1.0 billion of goodwiill,
marginally exceeded its carrying value and our latwy reporting unit exceeded its carrying valyelsubstantial margin. The recent
acquisition of Vetstreet resulted in reporting wgoodwill of $97.2 million. Negative changes in tirediscounted cash flows related to varia
such as revenue growth rates, margins, or the ulidcate could result in a decrease in the estidnfatie value of our reporting units and could
ultimately result in a substantial goodwill impai&nt charge. The performance of our reporting uaitsl, in turn the risk of goodwill
impairment, is subject to a number of risks andemtainties, some of which are outside of our cdntro

Other Intangible Assets

In addition to goodwill, we acquire other identifla intangible assets in our acquisitions, inclgdat not limited to covenants-not-to-
compete, client lists, lease related assets artdroes relationships. We value these identifiabtangible assets at estimated fair value. Our
estimated fair values are based on generally aedegtluation techniques such as market comparatisEfyunted cash flow techniques or c
to replace. These valuation methods involve theofisggnificant assumptions such as the timing ameunt of future cash flows, risks,
appropriate discount rates, and the useful livaatahgible assets.

Subsequent to acquisition, we test our identifiafif@ngible assets for impairment as part of a theodest for impairment of long-lived
assets under the FASB'’s accounting guidance fgresty, plant and equipment, whenever events orgdgmimn circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. The
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recognition and measurement of an impairment losieuthe FASB’s accounting guidance also involvesastep process:

First we identify potential impairment by estimaithe aggregate projected undiscounted future fbasis associated with an asset or
asset group and compare that amount with the carmalue of those assets. If the aggregate prajexztsh flow is greater than our carrying
amount, there is no impairment and the secondistept needed.

If we identify a potential impairment in the firstep, we are then required to write the assets dovair value with a corresponding
charge to earnings. If the fair value is greatantbarrying value, there is no adjustment. We meageljuired to make significant estimates in
determining the fair value of some of our assets.

Capitalized Software Costs

We capitalize certain software costs in accordavite FASB’s guidance on internal-use software. ¢dn@dance with the capitalization
criteria of the accounting guidance, we capitatixeernal direct costs of materials and serviceswoed in developing and obtaining internal-
use computer software and the payroll-related afstsnployees who devote time to the internal usaputer software project during the
application development stage. Management'’s juddgmseequired in determining the point at whichivas projects enter the stages at which
costs may be capitalized, in assessing the onga@ihg of the capitalized costs, and in determinigestimated useful lives over which the
costs are amortized. We typically estimate a uddéubf three years for our internal-use software.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the FASB’s actiogiguidance for income taxes. We record defetaadiabilities and deferred tax
assets, which represent taxes to be settled ovesew in the future. We adjust our deferred taxissand deferred tax liabilities to reflect
changes in tax rates or other statutory tax promisi Changes in tax rates or other statutory piangsare recognized in the period the change
occurs.

We make judgments in assessing our ability to zedliture benefits from our deferred tax assetsciwimclude operating and capital loss
carryforwards. We believe that our earnings dutimgperiods when the temporary differences becaededtible will be sufficient to realize
the related future tax benefits. Should we deteenttirmt we would not be able to realize all or giparof our deferred tax assets, an adjustment
would be made to the carrying amount through aatadn allowance.

Also, our net deductible temporary differences tndcarryforwards are recorded using the enactecatas expected to apply to taxable
income in the periods in which the deferred takility or asset is expected to be settled or redliAt December 31, 2011, we have a net
deferred tax liability of $74.9 million. Should tleegpected applicable tax rates change in the futuredjustment to the net deferred tax liak
would be credited or charged, as appropriate,dorire in the period such determination was madeekample, an increase of 1.0% in our
income tax rate would cause us to increase owllefetred tax liability balance by $1.9 million withcorresponding charge to earnings.

We also assess differences between our tax babas) are more likely than not to be realized, dralds-filed tax bases of certain assets
and liabilities. We account for unrecognized tardfés in accordance with the FASBaccounting guidance on income taxes, which pitese
minimum probability threshold that a tax positionshmeet before a financial statement benefitdgegaized. The minimum threshold is
defined as a tax position that is more likely thahto be sustained upon examination by the agghkcxing authority, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation, based solelyhentechnical merits of the position. The tax bérnefbe recognized is measured as the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likdlpeing realized upon ultimate settlement. We ditlhrave any unrecognized tax benefits on
December 31, 2011.
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Self-Insured Liabilities

We self-insure and use high retention or high-dédigcinsurance programs for certain losses reltdedorkers’ compensation and
employee health claims. Our self-insured liabilitentain uncertainties because we are requirgthi@® assumptions and to apply judgment to
estimate the ultimate cost to settle reported daamd claims incurred but not reported as of thanoa sheet date. We have not made any
material changes in the reserving methodology tsedtablish our self-insured liabilities during thast three years.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance

A portion of our workers’ compensation insurancéigies are self-insured high retention annual pefichat begin on October 1st. The
policies cover specific annual periods and are adlgnopen for no longer than seven years afteptreod allowing claims for incidents
occurring during the covered period to be submittitelr the end of the policy year.

Under our workers’ compensation insurance policiesare responsible for the first $250,000 in claability per individual occurrence
and we are also subject to an aggregate limit. ¥éeam internal review process to estimate claibillig based on actual and expected claims
incurred and the estimated ultimate cost to s#teclaims. Periodically, we review our assumptiand valuations to determine the adequacy
of our self-insured liabilities. During the fourtfuarter of 2010 and 2009, based upon our inteavaw, we revised our estimate of our claims
liability resulting in a $514,000 and $1.2 milliéevorable impact to our net earnings, respectively.

Beginning with the 2008 policy year we changed @werage from a self-insured retention policy uaranteed policy. However, in
2011, we once again adopted a self-insured reteptiticy due to more favorable terms.

Health Insurance

With the exception of California employees enrolietHMO plans, we are effectively self-insuring @mployee health care benefit by
retaining claims liability risk up to $200,000 pacident and an aggregate claim limit based omtimaber of employees enrolled in the plan
month. We estimate our liability for the uninsugsattion of employee health care obligations thatehaeen incurred but not reported based on
our claims experience, the number of employeesdlledrim the program and the average time from wdetaim is incurred to the time it is
paid. In addition, we perform an analysis of outegmtial liability for open claims.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
The following table sets forth components of owoime statements expressed as a percentage of eevenu
For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenue

Animal Hospital 77.2% 76.2% 75.6%
Laboratory 21.c 22.t 23.€
All Other 5.5 4.6 3.7
Intercompany (4.2 (3.9 (2.9
Total revenu 100.( 100.( 100.(
Direct costs 77.2 76.C 74.C
Gross profil 22.¢ 24.C 26.C
Selling, general and administrative expe 8.2 8.9 7.3
Goodwill impairment 14 — —
Net loss on sale of asst — — 0.3
Operating incom 13.2 15.1 18.4
Interest expense, n 1.2 1.C 1.7
Debt retirement cos! 0.2 0.2 —
Other income — (0.7) —
Income before provision for income tay 11.¢ 14.C 16.7
Provision for income taxe 5.1 5.7 6.4
Net income 6.7 8.3 10.:
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 0.3 0.3 0.3

Net income attributable to VCA Antech, | 6.4% 8.C% 10.(%

Revenue

The following table summarizes our revenue (in gands, except percentages):

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 % Change
% of % of % of
$ Total $ Total $ Total 2011 2010
Animal Hospital $1,150,12 77.2% $1,052,46. 76.2% $ 994,21! 75.6% 9.2% 5.9%
Laboratory 316,79° 21.2% 310,65 22.5% 310,05° 23.6% 2.C% 0.2%
All Other 80,43( 5.5% 64,01: 4.6% 48,557 3.7% 25.6% 31.&%
Intercompany !61,98() (4.2% !45,66:) 3.3% !38,322) (2.9% 35.8% 19.2%
Total revenu $1,485,36. 100.% $1,381,46i 100.(% $1,314,50 100.(% 7.5% 5.1%

Consolidated revenue increased $103.9 million ih128s compared to 2010. The increase in revenugsiraarily attributable to reveni
from acquired animal hospitals and the acquisitibWetstreet, as well as, an increase in our Lalboyaevenue due to internal growth. Our
Animal Hospital same-store revenue declined 0.720ihl. Our Laboratory internal revenue growth wa@8@in 2011.

Consolidated revenue increased $67.0 million in0284 compared to 2009. The increase in revenug@siraarily attributable to the
combination of revenue from acquired animal hosgitacluding Pet DRx acquired
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on July 1, 2010, and increased revenue from owardibsinesses. The increase was partially offset dgcline in Animal Hospital same-store
revenue. Our Animal Hospital same-store revenuw/roadjusted for differences in business daysided|2.5% in 2010. Our Laboratory

internal revenue growth was flat in 2010.

Gross Profit
The following table summarizes our gross profit and gross profit as a percentage of applicablemag, or gross margin (in thousands,

except percentages):
For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 % Change
Gross Gross Gross
$ Margin $ Margin $ Margin 2011 2010

Animal Hospital $179,81( 15.€% $172,39( 16.90 $183,69¢ 18.5% 43%  (6.29%
Laboratory 143,79( 45.&% 142,19¢ 45.8% 143,49: 46.% 1.1% (0.9%
All Other 20,97: 26.1% 19,27: 30.1% 15,83¢ 326 8.8% 21.7%

Intercompany (6,119 (2,699 (1,799
Total gross profi $338,45° 22.8%  $331,16¢ 24.(% $341,23. 26.% 2.2% (3.0%

Consolidated gross profit increased $7.3 millio2@11 as compared to 2010. The increase was plyntlré to gross profit from our
acquisitions and to a lesser extent internal regegrowth at our Laboratory segment, partially dffsga decrease in gross profit from our
same-store animal hospitals, due to decreased s&reerevenue.

Consolidated gross profit decreased $10.1 millioR010 as compared to 2009. The decrease was jlyithae to the decline in Animal
Hospital gross profit. Animal Hospital gross prafit2010 was impacted by a decrease in gross ngggicompared to 2009. This decrease
primarily attributable to a decline in same-stomrAal Hospital gross margins due to the declin&riimal Hospital same-store revenue and to
a lesser extent lower margins of acquired animaphtals. Consolidated gross profit was also imphttea lesser extent by a decline in

Laboratory gross margins.

Segment Results

Animal Hospital Segment
The following table summarizes revenue and grogfitgor the Animal Hospital segment (in thousanescept percentages):

For the Years Ended December 31 % Change
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue $1,150,12 $1,052,46. $994,21! 9.3% 5.9%
Gross profil $ 179,81( $ 172,39( $183,69¢ 4.2% (6.2%
Gross margit 15.6% 16.4% 18.5%

30



Table of Contents

Animal Hospital revenue increased $97.7 millior2011 as compared to 2010, and $58.2 million in 288 08ompared to 2009. The
components of the increases are summarized irotlosving table (in thousands, except percentagesaamrage price per order):

2011 Comparative Analysis 2010 Comparative Analysis
For the Years Ended December 31,
% %
2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

Animal Hospital Revenue:
Same-store facility:

Orders(1)(2 6,17¢ 6,421 (3.9% 6,04( 6,317 (4.9%

Average revenue per order| $ 159.5: $ 154.4: 3.2% $ 154.5¢ $ 151.5¢ 2.C%
Same-store revenue(l $ 985,20( $ 992,41¢ 0.7% $ 933,55 $957,52¢ (2.5%
Business day adjustment( — — 2,12¢ —
Net acquired revenue( 164,92( 60,04 116,78: 36,69!

Total $1,150,12 $1,052,46:. 9.2% $1,052,46:. $994,21! 5.8%

(1) Same-store revenue and orders were calculated using &lrtitaspital operating results, adjusted to exclildeoperating results for new
acquired animal hospitals that we did not own athefbeginning of the comparable period in thermyear and adjusted for the impact
resulting from any differences in the number ofibess days in the comparable periods. Same-steeaue also includes revenue
generated by customers referred from our relocatetmbined animal hospitals, including those menggon acquisitior

(2) The change in orders may not calculate exactlytdweunding.
(3) Computed by dividing sar-store revenue by sal-store orders. The average revenue per order magatmtlate exactly due to roundir
(4) The 2010 business day adjustment reflects the itrgdame additional business day in 2010 as contpr009

(5) Net acquired revenue represents the revenue frogetanimal hospitals acquired, net of revenue fittose animal hospitals sold or clos
on or after the beginning of the comparable penduch was January 1, 2010 for the 2011 Compara&ivadysis and January 1, 2009 for
the 2010 Comparative Analysis. Fluctuations inawefuired revenue occur due to the volume, sizeliaridg of acquisitions and
dispositions during the periods from this date tigto the end of the applicable peri

Contributing to the decline in our volume of sanwera orders is the continued impact of the curesnomic environment and the wide
availability of many pet-related products traditidlg sold in our animal hospitals, in retail stgraed other distribution channels such as the
Internet.

Our business strategy is to place a greater enmpbasiomprehensive wellness visits and advancedcaig@ocedures, which typically
generate higher priced orders. The migration oflopriced orders from our animal hospitals to ottistribution channels mentioned above
and our emphasis on comprehensive wellness viagoher the past several years resulted in a deciedower priced orders and an increase
in higher priced orders.

However, for both the years ended December 31, 26812010 this trend did not continue, as we erpegd a decrease in the numbe
both lower and higher priced orders, which we eliis primarily a consequence of current econorai@dions in the United States, and the
impact of changes in our overall business envirartroa the mix of tests performed.

Price increases contributed to the increase imtieeage revenue per order. Prices at each of @pitats are reviewed regularly and
adjustments are made based on market consideratiemographics and our costs. These adjustmentsibély have approximated 3% to 6%
on most services at the majority of our animal litatppand are typically implemented in Februargath year; however, price increases in
2011 have generally ranged between 3% and 4%.
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Animal Hospital gross profit is calculated as Anirfi@spital revenue less Animal Hospital direct sogtnimal Hospital direct costs are
comprised of all costs of services and productee@atnimal hospitals, including, but not limited $alaries of veterinarians, technicians and all
other animal hospital-based personnel, faciliterst,roccupancy costs, supply costs, depreciatidraarortization, certain marketing and
promotional expenses and costs of goods sold atsdaiith the retail sales of pet food and pet Bepp

Our Animal Hospital gross margin in 2011, 2010 2089 was 15.6%, 16.4% and 18.5%, respectivelyOlri Zand 2010 the gross mar
declined as a result of a decline in our same-s&renue and to a lesser extent lower gross mafiginsour acquired hospitals.

Our Animal Hospital same-store gross margin in 2010 and 2009 was 16.0%, 17.1% and 19.4%, reégpbctThe 2011 and 2010
decrease was primarily attributable to deleveragisi@ result of the aforementioned decline in ssioe revenue.

Over the last several years we have acquired #isgm number of animal hospitals. Many of thessvly acquired animal hospitals had
lower gross margins at the time of acquisition tttasse previously operated by us. We have impraélvese lower gross margins, in the
aggregate, subsequent to the acquisition by impgpoanimal hospital revenue, reducing costs andtreasing operating leverage.

Laboratory Segment
The following table summarizes revenue and grogfitgor our Laboratory segment (in thousands, gxgercentages):

For the Years Ended December 31 % Change
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
Revenue $316,79° $310,65: $310,05° 2.C% 0.2%
Gross profil $143,79( $142,19¢ $143,49: 1.1% (0.9%
Gross margit 45.2% 45.8% 46.2%

Laboratory revenue increased $6.1 million in 208 t@mpared to 2010, and $597,000 in 2010 as compar009. The components of
the increase in Laboratory revenue are detailegvbéh thousands, except percentages and averagepar requisition):

2011 Comparative Analysis 2010 Comparative Analysis
For the Years Ended December 31,
% %
2011 2010 Change 2010(4) 2009(4) Change

Laboratory Revenue:
Internal growth:

Number of requisitions(1 12,39¢ 12,39: 0.C% 12,37( 12,64¢ (2.2%

Average revenue per requisition: $ 2558 $ 25.0i 1.9% $ 25.00 $ 24.57 2.3%
Total internal revenue(; $316,71! $310,65: 2.0% $310,11¢ $310,05° 0.0%
Acquired revenue( 82 — 53€ —

Total $316,79° $310,65: 2.0% $310,65: $310,05° 0.2%

(1) Internal revenue and requisitions were caledlatsing Laboratory operating results, adjustezktbude the operating results of acquired
laboratories for the comparable periods that wendidown them in the prior year and adjusted ferithpact resulting from any differenc
in the number of billing days in comparable peric

(2) Computed by dividing internal revenue by the numdfeequisitions

(3) Acquired revenue in both the 2011 and 2010 CGuoatpve Analyses represents the revenue of thedatrges acquired in each of those
respective year:
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(4) Prior year amounts have been adjusted to confoitimetgurrent year presentation. The changes wermatrial.

Laboratory revenue in 2011 increased as compar2@16 due to an increase in internal revenue, wivizh primarily attributable to an
increase in average revenue per requisition.

Historically, requisitions have been driven by amgoing trend in veterinary medicine to focus onithportance of laboratory diagnostic
testing in the diagnosis, early detection and tneatt of diseases, and the migration of certairs tesbutside laboratories that have historically
been performed in animal hospitals. While theséfachave resulted in significant increases in igtions in the past, the economic downturn,
slow economic recovery, and the effects of incrdasenpetition continue to impact requisitions i turrent year.

We derive our laboratory revenue from services jglexy to over 16,000 independently owned animal halspand shifts in the
purchasing habits of any individual animal hospitakmall group of animal hospitals is not matetgabur laboratory revenues. Other
companies are developing networks of animal holspitewever, and shifts in the purchasing habithe$e networks have the potential of a
greater impact on our laboratory revenues.

The average revenue per requisition increasedtlligh2011 due to price increases which rangethfB%6 to 4% in both February 2011
and February 2010. The average revenue per requigis also impacted by various factors includihgnges in the mix, performing lower-
priced tests historically performed at the anin@ggitals and a decrease in higher-priced testsesu#t of the current economic environment.

Laboratory gross profit is calculated as Laboratemenue less Laboratory direct costs. Laboratagcticosts are comprised of all costs
of laboratory services, including but not limiteq salaries of veterinarians, specialists, techngiand other laboratory-based personnel,
transportation and delivery costs, facilities ratgupancy costs, depreciation and amortizationsapgly costs.

Our Laboratory gross margin decreased slightly0hl2as compared to 2010 due to an increase inircedats, primarily transportation

costs. The decrease in Laboratory gross margif1® 2ompared to 2009 was primarily due to the coatinn of the decline in the rate of our
revenue growth, relative to increasing costs incdgdransportation and repairs and maintenance.

Intercompany Revenue
Laboratory revenue in 2011, 2010 and 2009 inclidegicompany revenue of $44.3 million, $37.0 milliand $32.5 million,
respectively, that was generated by providing latwy services to our animal hospitals. All Oth@ranue in 2011, 2010 and 2009 included
intercompany revenue of $17.7 million, $8.6 milliand $5.8 million, respectively, that was generdtggroviding products and services to
animal hospitals and laboratories. For purposeswéwing the operating performance of our opegatiagments, all intercompany transacti
are generally accounted for as if the transactiaa with an independent third party at current migokiees. For financial reporting purposes,
intercompany transactions are eliminated as pastiotonsolidation.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

The following table summarizes our selling, genarad administrative (“SG&A”") expense and our exgeas a percentage of applicable
revenue (in thousands, except percentages):

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 % Change
% of % of % of
$ Revenue $ Revenue $ Revenue 2011 2010
Animal Hospital $ 24,34 2.1% $ 23,53¢ 2.2% $21,17: 2.1% 3.4% 11.2%
Laboratory 27,86¢ 8.8% 26,24: 8.4% 22,89 7.4% 6.2% 14.6%
All Other 19,13¢ 23.&% 14,50: 22.1% 12,88¢ 26.5%0 31.“% 12.6%
Corporate 49,77( 3.4% 59,25: 4.3% 38,71¢ 2% (16.0% 53.(%
Total SG&A $121,11: 8.2% $123,54: 8.29% $95,66¢ 7.2% 2.0% 29.1%
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Consolidated SG&A expense decreased $2.4 millid0itl as compared to 2010 and increased $27.9miti 2010 as compared to
20009.

The decreased SG&A in 2011 as compared to 201@waso: decreased SG&A at Corporate primarily duiaé prior year accrual of
consulting and SERP expenses mentioned below;tdffsincreases in share based compensation arebsed SG&A in other operating
segments primarily due to growth in those segmasits result of acquisitions.

The increased SG&A in 2010 as compared to 2009dweado: increased SG&A at Corporate, which inclufizd.5 million in consulting
and SERP expenses to be paid in accordance wigemgnts entered into on June 30, 2010 and $3.®miill transaction costs related to the
Pet DRx acquisition; increased SG&A in our Animaldpital segment primarily due to growth in the seghas a result of acquisitions; and
increased Laboratory SG&A due to research and dpuednt costs and costs incurred to support theteftd the sales team.

Operating Income
The following table summarizes our operating incdimehousands, except percentages):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009 % Change
% of % of % of
$ Revenue $ Revenue $ Revenue 2011 2010
Animal Hospital $155,14: 13.5% $148,57¢ 14.1% $161,87. 16.2% 44%  (8.29)%
Laboratory 115,90! 36.€%  115,93: 37.2% 120,58t 38.€% 0.0% (3.9%
All Other (19,507 (24.29% 4,69¢ 7.3% 2,94( 6.1% (515.0% 59.8%
Corporate (49,777 (59,260 (42,07¢) (16.0% 40.t%
Eliminations (6,119 (2,699 (1,799 126.59%  50.4%
Total operating incom $195,65: 13.2% $207,24¢ 15.1% $241,52t 18.4% (5.6% (14.2%

The decrease in our consolidated operating incon2011 as compared to 2010 was due to the nongmasiwill impairment charge
recorded in our medical technology business. Tloeedese was partially offset by a decrease in oaralVSG&A and the increase in gross

profit.

Consolidated operating income decreased $34.3omiifi 2010 as compared to 2009. The decrease \ivaarfly due to the decline in
Animal Hospital margins and an increase in SG&A ggrcentage of revenue.

Write-down and Loss on Sale of Assets

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, we sold assets, and wmta dertain assets for net losses of $382,000, .$804nd $4.0 million, respectively.
The loss in 2009 was primarily related to the atoaundent of an internally-developed software project.

Interest Expense, Net

The following table summarizes our interest expenseof interest income (in thousands):
For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Interest expenst
Senior term note $12,23¢ $10,67- $ 9,88
Interest rate swap agreeme — 382 9,78¢
Capital leases and oth 3,801 2,51t 2,32¢
Amortization of debt cosi 1,44¢ 862 48¢€
17,48t 14,43 22,48:
Interest incom 601 801 1,01¢€
Total interest expense, net of interest ince $16,88¢ $13,63( $21,46¢
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The increase in net interest expense in 2011 apaxd to 2010 was primarily attributable to an é@ase in the average debt balance due
to the amendment of our existing credit and guartatility to provide for a $100 million increase dur senior term notes and the related
increase in debt amortization costs due to thet@agition of additional debt amendment fees. See1§, Long-Term Obligations, in our
consolidated financial statements of this annuyabreon Form 10-K for a more detailed discussiag|uding applicable interest rates on our
debt, which was amended in August 2011.

The decrease in interest expense in 2010 as cothfa®909 was primarily attributable to a decraagbe overall weighted average
effective interest rate primarily due to the grddaairation of all our higher cost fixed-rate swagreements during 2010.
Provision for Income Taxes
The effective rate for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was%4 81.5% and 39.2%, respectively.
The effective rate for 2011 was impacted by a ndodgble charge related to goodwill impairment. Effective rate for 2010 was
impacted by tax expense of $3.5 million, relateddtilement of taxes on 2004 through 2007 taxaigenme.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interegresents our partners’ proportionate sharecafnre generated by those subsidiaries
that we do not wholly-own.

Inflation

Historically, our operations have not been mathriaifected by inflation. We cannot assure that operations will not be affected by
inflation in the future.

Related Party Transactions
ThinkPets Inc. (formerly known as Zoasis Corporatip

On February 1, 2012, we acquired all of the outlitajcapital stock of ThinkPets, Inc. for $21.0lrit, payable by delivery of 473,389
shares of VCA common stock and $10.5 million inhc&he shares of VCA common stock were valued basetie daily volume weighted
average closing sales price of the VCA common sfockhe 10 consecutive trading days ending ortrding day immediately preceding the
acquisition. At the time of the acquisition, BobtAn our CEO and Chairman of the Board, owned 54%h® common stock of ThinkPets, and
served as a director of ThinkPets, and Art Antir, Ghief Operating Officer, owned 8% of the comnstock of ThinkPets. In accordance with
its charter, our Audit Committee is responsiblerfriewing and approving all related-party tranged. Both the Audit Committee and our
Board of Directors unanimously approved the actjaisi Due to the related party nature of the adtjais Bob Antin recused himself from alll
Board meetings wherein the acquisition was disalase did not vote in connection with the acquositi

In addition, we incurred marketing expense for waeeceminders and other direct mail services predidy ThinkPets, Inc.,
(“ThinkPets”). We purchased services of $3.4 milli$2.8 million and $2.7 million in 2011, 2010 a2@09, respectively. Although we receive
certain discounts on these services the aggregatara of the discounts is not material to the friahstatements.

Related Party Vendors

Frank Reddick joined our company as a directorabrbary 2002 and is a partner in the law firm ofPA&ump Strauss Hauer & Feld,
LLP (“Akin™). Akin provided legal services to us during 2011, @@hd 2009. The amount paid by our company to Adirthese legal servict
was $1.6 million, $2.3 million and $1.3 million 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

We generate cash primarily from payments made Byoauers for our veterinary services, payments faoimal hospitals and other
clients for our laboratory services, and from pestereceived from the sale of our imaging equippaher related services and payments
received from participating hospitals for Vetstreebscriptions and reminder notices. Our businederitally has experienced strong liquidity,
as fees for services provided in our animal holpiiee due at the time of service and fees forrktooy services are collected under standard
industry terms. Our cash disbursements are priynfmilpayments related to the compensation of ouysleyees, supplies and inventory
purchases for our operating segments, occupancytaed administrative costs, interest expense, eaysnon long-term borrowings, capital
expenditures and acquisitions. Cash outflows flatetwith the amount and timing of the settlemerthese transactions.

We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short-term and lerg-bbligations of our business
while maintaining financial flexibility and liquitlf. We forecast, analyze and monitor our cash flamsnable investment and financing within
the overall constraints of our financial strategy.

At December 31, 2011, our consolidated cash anll @gsivalents totaled $63.7 million, representirtgarease of $33.5 million as
compared to the prior year, primarily due to thehcased for the Vetstreet acquisition. Cash floarsegated from operating activities totaled
$191.1 million in 2011, representing an increas$2¥.0 million as compared to the prior year. Werg$271.3 million on acquisitions,
investments and capital expenditures during the. yea

We have historically funded our working capitaluggments, capital expenditures and investmemdividual acquisitions primarily
from internally-generated cash flows and we expedb so in the future. During 2011, we amendedrasthted our existing credit and
guaranty agreement to allow for an additional $a0iion of senior term debt and an increase toreuplving credit facility of $25 million.
The amended and restated credit facility bearsestdased on the interest rate offered to our @idtrative agent on the London Interbank
market or LIBOR plus a margin of 1.75%. We haveeasdo an unused $125 million revolving creditlfscmentioned above, which expires
August 2016. Historically, we have accessed théaaparkets to fund acquisitions that could nofilneded out of cash flow. The availability
of financing in the form of debt or equity howeveinfluenced by many factors including our prdfitiy, operating cash flows, debt levels,
debt ratings, contractual restrictions and market@ions. Consequently, there is no assurancent@atill be able to obtain financing on
favorable terms in the future.

Future Cash Flows
Short-term

Other than our acquisitions of animal hospital nbaive historically have funded our working capitajuirements, capital expenditures
and investments in animal hospital acquisitiongifinternally-generated cash flow. We anticipate tha cash on hand and net cash provided
by operations and available funds under our remglaredit agreement and incremental facilities t@lIsufficient to meet our anticipated cash
requirements for the next 12 months. During Jan@ad?, to fund the investment in Associate Vetagir@linics (1981) LTD, (“AVC"), we
borrowed $50 million from our revolver, which waspaid shortly thereafter with $50 million from docremental term loan facility, permitted
under our 2011 Credit and Guaranty Agreement. Tadittagreement was subsequently amended, to &lioan additional $50 million of
available borrowing capacity under the incremelaiah facilities, see Note 16, Subsequent Eventsyirconsolidated financial statements of
this annual report on Form 10-K, for details. Imidn, during February 2012 we acquired ThinkPkts, for $21 million, of which $10.5
million was paid in cash and the remainder in V@ienon stock. If we consummate additional signifiaquisitions of animal hospital
chains during this period, we may seek additiomdtar equity financing.

In 2012, we expect to spend $50 million to $85imnillfor the acquisition of independent animal htapi The ultimate number of
acquisitions is largely dependent upon the attrantss of the candidates and the strategic fit edthexisting operations. From January 1, -
through February 29, 2012, we spent $84.4 million i
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connection with the acquisition of 50 animal hoalgiand one laboratory, which includes $80.8 nmiilli® connection with the AVC acquisitio
which operated 44 hospitals at the date of theiaitgun. In addition, we expect to spend approxieha$80 million in 2012 for both property
and equipment additions and capital expendituresssary to maintain our existing facilities.

Long-term

Our long-term liquidity needs, other than thosated to the day-to-day operations of our busineskjding commitments for operating
leases, generally are comprised of scheduled pahaind interest payments for our outstanding l@mg indebtedness, capital expenditures
related to the expansion of our business and atiquss in accordance with our growth strategy. Sbkeduled payments on our long-term
obligations are included in our contractual obligas table below.

We are unable to project with certainty whetherloag-term cash flow from operations will be suiiict to repay our long-term debt
when it comes due. If this cash flow is insuffidieme expect that we will need to refinance suadebtedness, amend its terms to extend
maturity dates, or issue common stock on our comp@ar management cannot make any assurancesutttatefinancing or amendments, if
necessary, will be available on attractive terrhat all.

Debt Related Covenants

Our senior credit facility contains certain finamatovenants pertaining to fixed charge coveragelewerage ratios. In addition, our
senior credit facility has restrictions pertainbogcapital expenditures, acquisitions and the payroecash dividends. As of December 31,
2011, we were in compliance with these covenantdding the two covenant ratios, the fixed chargeerage ratio and the leverage ratio.

At December 31, 2011, we had a fixed charge coweratio of 1.78 to 1.00, which was in compliancéwthe required ratio of no less
than 1.20 to 1.00. The senior credit facility deBrthe fixed charge coverage ratio as that ratibishcalculated on a last 12-month basis by
dividing pro forma earnings before interest, taxtepreciation and amortization, as defined by @ credit facility (“pro forma earnings”),
by fixed charges. Fixed charges are defined asio#stest expense, scheduled principal paymentiebhobligations, capital expenditures,
provision for income taxes. Pro forma earningsudel 12 months of operating results for businessgsied during the period.

At December 31, 2011, we had a leverage ratiobf & 1.00, which was in compliance with the regdiratio of no more than 3.00 to
1.00. The senior credit facility defines the leggaatio as that ratio which is calculated as tdéddt divided by pro forma earnings.

Historical Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our cash flows fiausands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating activitie: $ 191,05: $ 168,07: $ 183,47:
Investing activities (271,310 (150,179 (130,76()
Financing activitie: 47,00¢ (66,142 3,46’
Effect of currency exchange rate charges on cadltash equivalen (220) 18¢€ 44
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equiv: (33,47 (48,05% 56,22
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 97,12¢ 145,18: 88,95¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of- $ 63,65: $ 97,12¢ $ 145,18:
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increg&28l0 million in 2011, as compared to 2010. Ojegatash flow for the year ended
December 31, 2011 included $99.9 million of nebme and net non-cash expenses of $117.6 milliatiahg offset by net cash used as a
result of changes in operating assets and liadslitif $26.4 million. The changes in operating @saetl liabilities included a $14.1 million
increase in trade accounts receivable, a $12.8milhcrease in inventory, prepaid expense andratbgets and a $5.4 million decrease in
accounts payable and other accrued liabilitiegjglr offset by a $4.6 million increase in accrysaroll and related liabilities. The increase in
accounts receivable was primarily due to an inaéaset revenues from our acquired animal hospéat other businesseBhe increase in
inventory, prepaid expense and other assets wamaply due to the build-up of inventory, increase® to new products and an increase in
lease receivables as a result of executing additicontracts. The decrease in accounts payablethed accrued liabilities and the increase in
accrued payroll and related liabilities were aleault of timing of payment obligations.

Net cash provided by operating activities decre&déd4 million in 2010, as compared to 2009. Casiiged by operating activities of
$168.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2tdrisisted of $114.2 million of net income and man-cash expenses of $78.4 million,
partially offset by net cash used as a result ahgles in operating assets and liabilities of $#ildon. The changes in operating assets and
liabilities primarily included a $12.6 million dezase in income taxes, a $11.9 million increasavantory, prepaid expenses and other ass
$7.0 million increase in trade accounts receivgiéetially offset by a $7.5 million increase in aoats payable and other accrued liabilities.
The decrease in income taxes and the increaseduats payable and other accrued liabilities weiraarily due to the timing of payment
obligations. The increase in inventory, prepaidesges and other assets was primarily due to theé-bpiof inventory and an increase in
service agreements and lease receivables duergagex] marketing efforts. The increase in tradewats receivable was primarily due to an
increase in net revenues.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
The table below presents the components of thegasain investing cash flows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31 Variance
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010

Investing Cash Flows:
Acquisition of independent animal hospitals andblakories(1) $ (34,249 $ (68,629 $ (56,79 $ 34,38 $(11,82%)
Acquisition of BrightHear (23,490 — — (23,490 —
Acquisition of Pet DR — (7,670 — 7,67( (7,670
Acquisition of Vetstree (146,42() — — (146,42() —
Acquisition of Eklin — — (12,509 — 12,50¢
Other (1,647 (3,557) (5,267) 1,91¢ 1,71C
Total cash used for acquisitions(1) (205,799 (79,85)) (74,567 (125,94) (5,289
Property and equipment additions (63,485 (61,95 (50,80)) (1,539 (11,150
Real estate acquired with acquisitions (1,900 (9,289 (4,899 7,38¢ (4,395
Proceeds from sale of assets 46E 93¢ 151 (474 78¢
Other (596) (22) (649) (579 627
Net cash used in investing activities $(271,31()  $(150,179  $(130,76()  $(121,13)  $(19,419)

(1) In conformance with the current year presentatismhave reclassed prior year cash paid for patigeksiyouts and cash paid for e-out
payments to the cash flows from financi

(2) The number of acquisitions will vary from year teay based upon the available pool of suitable clatel$. A discussion of our acquisitit
is provided above in our Executive Overvie

38



Table of Contents

(3) The cash used to acquire property and equipmehvavly from year to year based on upgrade requirgsngnd expansion of our anin
hospitals and laboratory facilitie

(4) Due to the lower return on investment realized couaed real estate we are highly selective indmaision to acquire real estate. 1
decrease in cash used to acquire real estate i® dess real estate purchased in connection Wélatquisition of animal hospita

(5) The increase in proceeds from sale of assets i, 2@mpared to 2009, was due to the sale of ooemwoénimal hospitals

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
The table below presents the components of thegdsain financing cash flows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31, Variance
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010

Financing Cash Flows:
Repayment of lor-term obligations(1 $(98,990)  $(555,52)  $(7,93€) $ 456,53¢ $(547,59))
Proceeds from lor-term obligations(1 150,00( 500,00( — (350,000 500,00(
Proceeds from revolving credit facili 50,00( — — 50,00( —
Repayment of revolving credit facili (50,000 — — (50,000 —
Payment of financing costs( (2,949 (9,112 — 6,16¢ (9,112
Distributions to noncontrolling intere

partners(2 (3,277) (4,247) (4,189 97C (58)
Proceeds from stock options exercise: 3,99¢ 5,51( 15,29] (1,511 (9,787)
Excess tax benefits from stock optic 1,70¢ 37¢ 86€ 1,33( (48¢)
Stock repurchases( (2,677) (2,310 (561) (363) (1,749
Other (819 (832) (10) 13 (822)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 47,00¢ $ (66,147 $ 3,467 $ 113,14t $ (69,609

(1) In 2011, we repaid $50 million borrowed fronr dncremental facilities, as stated below, as pgediunder our August 19, 2010 credit and
guaranty agreement. Additionally, we repaid $22ilion of debt related to scheduled payments andepaid approximately $26 million
of debt related to the BrightHeart acquisition. Tineceeds from issuance of long-term obligatioeired in 2011 included $50 million of
new term loans borrowed pursuant to our incremdatdlities and $100 million of additional borrovga received in accordance with the
amended and restated credit and guaranty agreedaatl August 16, 2011. The payment of financirgm 2011 were related to the
August 16, 2011 debt amendment, see Note 6, -Term Obligations, of this annual report on Forn-K.

The repayment of debt for 2010 was primarily atttétible to the August 19, 2010 debt refinance aag#yoff of debt related to the Pet
DRx acquisition. The proceeds from issuance of {amgh obligations in 2010 were related to the defihance, mentioned above. The
payment of financing costs in 2010 were relatethéoAugust 19, 2010 refinance of our credit andguoiy agreement.

(2) The distributions to noncontrolling interest parseepresent cash payments to noncontrolling istgrartners for their portion of tl
partnership’ excess casl

(3) The number of stock option exercises decreas2810 compared to 2009 due to the increase imtdmet price of our stock during 2009
and the nearing expiration of certain stock optionthat year

(4) The stock repurchases represent cash paiddonie taxes on behalf of employees who electedttle $heir tax obligations on vested
stocks with a portion of the stocks that ves
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Future Contractual Cash Requirements

The following table sets forth the scheduled ppatiinterest and other contractual cash obligatiure by us for each of the years
indicated as of December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Payment due by period

Less than 1-3 35 More than
Total 1 year years years 5 years

Contractual Obligations:
Long-term debf $ 574,33( $29,37: $ 76,32¢ $468,63. $ —
Capital lease obligatior 44,52 3,19¢ 6,804 7,02( 27,50(
Operating lease 992,19:. 59,02 117,60 117,53¢ 698,03:
Fixed cash interest exper 18,56¢ 2,88¢ 5,167 4,207 6,30¢
Variable cash interest expense Term / 47,22 11,54 21,11 14,567 —
Purchase obligations(: 26,17( 18,12¢ 6,471 1,57(C —
Other lon¢-term liabilities(3) 27,45: 3,11: 5,22¢ 4,32¢ 14,78
Earr-out payments(4 82E 728 10C — —

$1,731,28.  $127,99:  $238,80f $617,85! $746,62'

(1) The interest payments on our varie-rate senior term notes are based on rates effeasiod December 31, 201

(2) Our purchase obligations consist primarily of sygmirchase agreements related to our medical témibusiness and constructi
contracts primarily for our animal hospita

(3) Includes future payments under our Supplementatiiikee Retirement Program and Consulting Agreem:
(4) Represents contractual arrangements whereby aslitash may be paid to former owners of acquiresinesses upon attainment
specified performance targe
Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements
Other than operating leases, which are includederContractual Obligations table listed abovefd3exember 31, 2011, we do not have

any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

Description of Indebtedness

Senior Credit Facility

At December 31, 2011, we had $574.0 million priatimount outstanding under our senior term natesha borrowings outstanding
under our revolving credit facility.

We pay interest on our senior term notes and réwgleredit facility based on the interest rate dtbto our administrative agent on
LIBOR plus a margin determined by reference tolLtbeerage Ratio in effect from time to time as setHf in the table in Note 6, Long-Term
Obligations, of this annual report on Form 10-K, which rangesrfrof 1.25% to 2.25% per annum. We pay a commitrfesnbn our revolving
credit facility determined by reference to the Leage Ratio in effect from time to time as set farthhe table mentioned above, which ranges
from 0.20% to 0.50%.

The senior term notes and the revolving credifitganature in August 2016.

Other Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

At December 31, 2011, we had seller notes secuyress$ets of certain animal hospitals and capitelde that totaled $44.9 million, wh
are included in long-term debt in our consoliddtathnce sheet of this annual
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report on Form 10-K. Our seller notes have varimasurities through 2013 and various interest regaging from 9.0% to 10.0%. Our capital
leases have various maturities through 2030 andusinterest rates ranging from 1.4% to 9.9%.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

At December 31, 2011, we had borrowings of $574llam under our senior credit facility with flucating interest rates based on ma
benchmarks such as LIBOR. Changes in interest caigdlsl adversely affect the market value of ouialderate debt. To mitigate our expos
to increasing interest rates we have historicaitgeed into interest rate swap agreements thattefédy convert a certain amount of our
variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. As of Decenttil, 2011 we have no interest rate swap agresirarthe future, we may enter into new
interest rate strategies to hedge against thefiglcreasing interest rates as well as to mairdaaiappropriate mix of fixed-rate and variable-
rate debt. However, we have not yet determined Witete strategies will be or their possible impact.

If LIBOR increases or decreases 1% from Decembg@@11 the additional annual interest expensevinga will amount to $5.6
million.

If LIBOR increases or decreases 1% from Decembg@@10 the additional annual interest expensevinga will amount to $4.8
million, net of the effect of the swap agreemenntizamed below. To reduce the risk of increasingriest rates, we had entered into the
following interest rate swap agreement:

Fixed interest rat 2.64%

Notional amoun $100 million
Effective date 2/12/2008
Expiration date 2/26/201C
Counterparty Wells Fargc
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MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting. Our internal control
over financial reporting is designed to providesmweable assurance regarding the reliability ofrfaial reporting and the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements for external répg purposes in accordance with generally acekateounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

Our management has carried out an evaluation, uhdesupervision and with the participation of @lvief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our immt&l control over financial reporting as of Decem®&, 2011. In performing this evaluation,
management used the criteria set forth by the Cdtmenof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwamn@gsion (COSO) itnternal Control
— Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment of internal control favancial reporting, our management has conclutiat as of
December 31, 2011, our internal control over finaheporting was effective to provide reasonalsisuaance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip

The Company acquired MediMedia Animal Health, LLEdtstreet”) during 2011, and management excluderhfits assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2011, Yett’s internal control over financial
reporting associated with total assets of $149l/Bamiand total revenue of $11.2 million includedthe consolidated financial statements ol
Company and subsidiaries as of and for the yeagdBe:cember 31, 2011.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@al reporting as of December 31, 2011 has beditetlby KPMG LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report, which is included below.

February 29, 2012

/s/ ROBERTL. A NTIN

Robert L. Antin

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Office

/s/ TomAasW. FULLER

Tomas W. Fuller

Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Oféic,
Vice President and Secrete
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
VCA Antech, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of VCA Antech, Inc. and subsidiaries Gbepany) as of December 31,
2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statsméincome, stockholders’ equity, comprehengieeme and cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2011. In conneetitmour audits of the consolidated financial staénts, we also have
audited financial statement schedules of condefisadcial information of registrant and valuatiomdaqualifying accounts. These consolide
financial statements and financial statement sdesdare the responsibility of the Company’s manag@mOur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statemantsfinancial statement schedules based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materéggpects, the financial position of VCA
Antech, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 311 2(d 2010, and the results of their operatiouistiagir cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 201 rifoonity with U.S. generally accepted accountiniggples. Also in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedules, when coreside relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, present fairly,
in all material respects, the information set fahérein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), VCA Antec
Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over finehceporting as of December 31, 2011, based dar@iestablished imternal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regaitd
February 29, 2012, expressed an unqualified opiaiothe effectiveness of the Company’s internatrmbover financial reporting.

/s/  KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
VCA Antech, Inc.:

We have audited VCA Antech, Inc. and subsidiarfe® Company) internal control over financial rapay as of December 31, 2011,
based on criteria establishedlitiernal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission (COSOThe Company’s management is responsible for maimgieffective internal control over financial repog
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offiateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanyinylanagement’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti. Our responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8q&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaymiich other procedures as we considered necesghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, VCA Antech, Inc. and subsidiarieaimained, in all material respects, effective in& control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011, based on criteria establishedernal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

The Company acquired MediMedia Animal Health, LL®dtstreet”) during 2011, and management excludethfits assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2011, Yett’s internal control over financial
reporting associated with total assets of $14918amj and total revenues of $11.2 million includedhe consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of and for the year ended Decenihé03 1. Our audit of internal control over finalaieporting of the Company also
excluded an evaluation of the internal control dirggincial reporting of Vetstreet.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of VCA Antech, Inc.sanx$idiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010thenklated consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, comprehensive incame cash flows for each of the years in the these-period ended December 31, 2011,
and our report dated February 29, 2012 expressedgumlified opinion on those consolidated finahstatements

/s/  KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2012
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except par value)

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for leatible accounts of $14,978 and $13,80
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and ot
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid income taxe
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, r
Notes receivable, ni
Deferred financing costs, n
Other

Total asset
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related liabiliti¢
Other accrued liabilitie
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Redeemable noncontrolling intere
Preferred stock, par value $0.001, 11,000 shard®azed, none outstandir
VCA Antech, Inc. stockholde’ equity:

Common stock, par value $0.001, 175,000 shareoaril, 86,796 and 86,179 shares outstanding

December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, resplc
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total VCA Antech, Inc. stockholde’ equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

December 31,

2011 2010
$ 6365, $ 97,12¢
58,27 49,22
48,66 40,76(
21,88: 21,13
26,31 19,01¢
18,37: 19,04
237,15’ 246,31
370,64¢ 331,68
1,237,60 1,092,481
92,40: 46,98¢
6,20- 6,42¢
5,43¢ 6,70
45,91¢ 35,82¢
$1,99536  $1,766,42.
$ 32570 $ 28,10
37,79: 31,97(
42,65¢ 35,75¢
43,96¢ 45,76¢
156,99 141,59
586,28: 498,93!
101,22 82,13:
25,94; 28,47¢
870,45: 751,13
6,96/ 5,79¢
87 86
361,71 347,84t
745,65 650,25
41¢ 737
1,107,87 998,92
10,07 10,561
1,117,95 1,009,48!
$1,995361  $1,766,42:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Income Statements
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expe
Goodwill impairment
Net loss on sale of asst
Operating incom:
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Debt retirement cos!
Other expense (incom
Income before provision for income tay
Provision for income taxe
Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere
Net income attributable to VCA Antech, |

Basic earnings per she

Diluted earnings per sha

Weighte-average shares outstanding for basic earningshpee
Weighte(-average shares outstanding for diluted earningshpee

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$1,48536  $1,381,461  $1,314,50
1,146,90. 1,050,30. 973,27!
338,45 331,16« 341,23
121,11 123,54 95,66¢

21,31( — —

382 374 4,03¢
195,65: 207,24¢ 241,52t
17,48t 14,43; 22,48:

601 801 1,01¢
2,764 2,131 —

11¢ (772) (104)

175,88 192,26( 220,16

76,02’ 78,10: 84,58(

99,86( 114,15 135,58

4,45¢ 3,91F 4,15¢
$ 9540f $ 110,24  $ 131,42
$ 11C $ 128 $ 15/
$ 10 $ 127 $  15:C

86,60¢ 86,04¢ 85,07’

87,39« 87,05 86,09’

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(In thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling
Paid-In
Shares  Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Interests Total
Balances, December 31, 2008 84,631 $ 85 $ 308,67: $408,58. $ (6,359 $ 8,31¢  $ 719,30
Net income (excludes $632 and $485 related to redbke and
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interestspeetively) — — — 131,42¢ — 3,041 134,46¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — 684 — 684
Unrealized gain on foreign currency, net of — — — — 344 — 344
Unrealized loss on hedging instruments, net o — — — — (815) — (815)
Losses on hedging instruments reclassified to irgorat of tay — — — — 5,97¢ — 5,97¢
Formation of noncontrolling interes — — — — — 3,10¢ 3,10¢
Distribution to noncontrolling interes — — — — — (3,036 (3,03¢)
Restricted stock unit gra — — 1,941 — — — 1,941
Shar-based compensatic — — 7,951 — — — 7,951
Issuance of common stock under stock incentives 951 1 15,29¢ — — — 15,297
Stock repurchase — — (561) — — — (561)
Excess tax benefit from stock optic — — 86€ — — — 86€
Tax benefit and other from stock options and aw — — 947 — — — 947
Balances, December 31, 2C 85,58 86 335,11« 540,01( (169) 11,42¢ 886,47t
Net income (excludes $757 and $419 related to redbke and
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interestspeetively) — — — 110,24 — 2,73¢ 112,98:
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — 482 — 482
Unrealized gain on foreign currency, net of — — — — 18€ — 18€
Unrealized loss on hedging instruments, net o — — — — 1) — Q)
Losses on hedging instruments reclassified to irgorat of ta — — — — 232 — 232
Distribution to noncontrolling interes — — — — — (3,127 (3,127
Purchase of noncontrolling intere — — — — — (484) (484)
Shar-based compensatic — — 9,34( — — — 9,34(
Issuance of common stock under stock incentives 59t — 5,51( — — — 5,51(
Stock repurchase — — (2,310 — — — (2,310
Excess tax benefit from stock optic — — 37¢ — — — 37¢
Tax shortfall and other from stock options and ais — — (189 — — — (189
Balances, December 31, 2C 86,17¢ 8€ 347,84¢ 650,25: 737 10,56 1,009,48!
Net income (excludes $1,555 and $450 related teemable and
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interestspeetively) — — — 95,40¢ — 2,45( 97,85¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — (160) — (160)
Unrealized loss on foreign currency, net of — — — — (159) — (159)
Distribution to noncontrolling interes — — — — — (1,957 (1,952
Purchase of noncontrolling intere — — 262 — — (985) (722)
Shar-based compensatic — — 10,77: — — — 10,77:
Issuance of common stock under stock incentives 617 1 3,99¢ — — — 3,99¢
Stock repurchase — — (2,673 — — — (2,673
Excess tax benefit from stock optic — — 1,70¢ — — — 1,70¢
Tax shortfall and other from stock options and als — — (202) — — — (202)
Balances, December 31, 2C 86,79t $ 87 $ 361,71! $745,65( $ 418 $ 10,07 $1,117,95:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net income(1, $99,86( $114,15¢ $135,58t
Other comprehensive incorr
Foreign currency translation adjustme (260) 482 684
Unrealized (loss) gain on foreign currer (267) 304 563
Tax benefit (expenst 10z (118 (219
Unrealized loss on hedging instrume — 2 (1,335
Tax benefil — 1 52C
Losses on hedging instruments reclassified to i — 382 9,78¢
Tax benefil — (149) (3,80¢)
Other comprehensive (loss) incon (319 90C 6,18¢
Total comprehensive incon 99,54 115,05¢ 141,77!
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliirtgrests(1 4,45k 3,91¢ 4,15¢
Comprehensive income attributable to VCA Antecla, $95,08¢ $111,14: $137,61°

(1) Includes $2.0 million, $1.2 million and $1.1 milfidor 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, relateeteemable and mandator

redeemable noncontrolling interes

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 99,86( $ 114,15t $ 135,58t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:
Goodwill impairment 21,31( — —
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,98¢ 46,06¢ 39,57
Amortization of debt issue cos 1,44¢ 862 48¢
Provision for uncollectible accour 6,742 7,36¢€ 7,04¢
Debt retirement cos! 2,76¢ 2,131 —
Net loss on sale of ass:t 382 374 4,03t
Shar+-based compensatic 10,77: 9,34( 7,951
Deferred income taxe 19,55 13,49: 24,60(
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock opt (1,70¢) (37¢) (86€)
Other (637) (901) (425)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade accounts receival (14,107 (7,04%) (10,009
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other a: (12,29 (11,86¢) (15,59
Accounts payable and other accrued liabili (5,41%) 7,46: (1,979
Accrued payroll and related liabiliti¢ 4,58 (38%) (7,799
Income taxe: 81€ (12,609 84¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 191,05: 168,07: 183,47:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Business acquisitions, net of cash acqu (205,799 (79,85) (74,567
Real estate acquired in connection with busineggisitions (2,900 (9,289 (4,899
Property and equipment additic (63,48%) (61,95 (50,80
Proceeds from sale of ass 46F 93¢ 151
Other (596) (22) (649)
Net cash used in investing activiti (271,310 (150,179 (130,76()

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — (Continued)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Repayment of det
Proceeds from the issuance of I-term debt
Payment of financing cos
Proceeds from revolving credit facili
Repayment of revolving credit facili
Distributions to noncontrolling interest partni
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under &taektive plan:
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock opt
Stock repurchase
Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cadltash equivalen
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equiv:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Supplemental schedule of r-cash investing and financing activitit
Detail of acquisitions
Fair value of assets acquir
Cash paid for acquisitior
Cash paid to bondholders/debt hold
Non-cash note conversion to equity interest in subsic
Contingent consideratic
Holdbacks

Liabilities assumei

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011

(98,99()
150,00(
(2,944)
50,00(
(50,000)
(3,277)
3,99¢
1,70¢
(2,679)
(819)
47,00
(220)
(33,475
97,12
$ 63,65

$ 15,08¢
$ 55,66(

$ 254,78
(203,99)
(26,04¢)

(560)

(1,500)
$ 22,67

2010 2009
(555,52 (7,936)
500,00 —

(9,112) —

(4,247) (4,189)

5,51( 15,29’
37¢ 86¢€

(2,310) (561)

(832) (10)

(66,147) 3,467

18¢ 44

(48,05¢) 56,22:

145,18; 88,95¢
$ 97,12¢ $145,18:
$ 13,35 $ 22,06
$ 77,21 $ 59,13:
$ 139,08t $ 94,51¢

(79,85’) (74,56°)
(29,537) —

— (5,700
(25€) (712)
$ 29,44 $ 13,53

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. The Company

Our company, VCA Antech, Inc. (“VCA”) is a Delawaterporation formed in 1986 and is based in Loselag, California. We are an
animal healthcare company with the following fopecating segments: animal hospitals (“Animal Hadjt veterinary diagnostic laboratories
(“Laboratory), veterinary medical technology (“Medi Technology”) and Vetstreet.

Our animal hospitals offer a full range of genenaldical and surgical services for companion anin@is animal hospitals treat diseases
and injuries, provide pharmaceutical products agrfiopm a variety of pet-wellness programs, inclgdirealth examinations, diagnostic testing,
vaccinations, spaying, neutering and dental car®ekember 31, 2011, we operated 541 animal hdspiteoughout 41 states and 1 Canadian
province.

We operate a full-service veterinary diagnostiofalory network serving all 50 states and certag@asiin Canada. Our laboratory
network provides sophisticated testing and consyibiervices used by veterinarians in the detectimgnosis, evaluation, monitoring,
treatment and prevention of diseases and otheritgmmslaffecting animals. At December 31, 2011,aperated 53 laboratories of various sizes
located strategically throughout the United Stated Canada.

Our Medical Technology business sells digital rgdiphy and ultrasound imaging equipment, providiegation and training on the use
of that equipment, provides consulting and mobiiaging services, and sells software and ancillaryises to the veterinary market.

Our Vetstreet business provides online communinatiprofessional education, marketing solutionsamdcommerce platform for
independent animal hospitals.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements have begpapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United Stal
and include the accounts of our parent companynajority-owned subsidiaries where we have control and cevigtierinary medical groups
which we provide services as discussed below. We biminated all intercompany transactions ancuees.

We provide management and other administrative&Es\o certain veterinary practices in statesa@énadian province with laws, ru
and regulations which require that veterinary maldicactices be owned by licensed veterinarianstlagidcorporations which are not ownec
licensed veterinarians refrain from providing, ofding themselves out as providers of, veterinaeglital care. In these states and the Can
province, we provide management and other admatigér services to the veterinary medical practiéeecember 31, 2011, we operated
animal hospitals in 15 of these states and 1 antiwspital in 1 Canadian province, under managegr@ements with these veterinary
practices. Pursuant to the management agreemeatgeterinary medical practices are each solejyoresible for all aspects of the practice of
veterinary medicine, as defined by their respecdiiate or province.

We have determined that the veterinary medicaltipeg are variable interest entities as definethbyFinancial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”), and that we have a variable inteieghose entities through our management agretanére also determined that our
variable interests in these veterinary medicalfpres, in aggregate with the variable interests gl our related parties, provide us with the
power to direct the activities of these practidest most significantly impact their economic penfiance and obligate us to absorb losses that
could potentially be significant or the right taceéve benefits from the veterinary medical practitteat could potentially be significant. Based
on these determinations, we consolidated the wetgrimedical practices in our consolidated finarstiatements.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, contined

b. Use of Estimates in Preparation of Finan@#htements

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegsts in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffieat the reported amounts of assets and lisdsligind disclosure of contingent assets and
contingent liabilities at the date of our consal@thfinancial statements and our reported amoumsvenue and expense during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from our esttem

c. Revenue and Related Cost Recognition
We recognize revenue, barring other facts, wherfidlh@ving revenue recognition criteria are met:

persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement €

delivery of goods has occurred or services have beedered
the sales price or fee is fixed or determinablel,
collectability is reasonably assur¢

Revenue is reported net of sales discounts anddsslsales taxes.
We generally recognize revenue and costs as follows

For nor-contractual services provided by our business uaftthe time services are render
For the sale of merchandise when delivery of thedgdas occurre:

For services under defined support and maintenameacts, on a straic-line basis over the contract period, recognizingt
as incurred; these services include, but are notdd to, technical support, when-and-if availgimeduct updates for software
and extended warranty covera

For the sale of our digital radiography imaging ipquent and ultrasound imaging equipment sold dmadalone basis at tl
time title and risk of loss transfers to the customvhich is generally upon delivery or upon inst&n and customer acceptance
if required per the sale arrangeme

We account for revenue for certain bundled prodantsservices as follows:
 Digital radiography“DR") imaging equipment and all of its related computgrigment, our proprietary software and service

addition to any other computers sold with our pietary software are accounted for under the FASBEounting guidance
related to multipl-deliverable transaction

Sales arrangement consideration is allocated anteption of the arrangement to all deliverablsisg the relative selling price
method, whereby any discount in the arrangemeaitasated proportionally to each deliverable onlhsis of each deliverable’s
selling price. The selling price for each delivdeais based on vendor-specific objective evidee&QOE") if available, third-
party evidence (“TPE") if VSOE is not available,estimated selling price (“ESP”) if neither VSOE AGE is available. For
elements where VSOE is available, VSOE of fair gdkibased on the price for those products andcesrwhen sold separately
by us or the price established by management Wiéhdlevant authority. TPE of selling price is e of our, or any of our
competitor’s, largely interchangeable productsasviges in stand-alone sales to similarly situatestomers.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, contined

We do not currently have VSOE for our DR imagingipqent as units are not sold on a stand-alone bagiout the related
support packages. As this is also true for our atitgys, TPE of selling price is also unavailabée therefore use the ESP to
allocate the arrangement consideration relateditd® imaging equipment.

In domestic markets we have VSOE for our post-@mtcustomer support (“PCS”) as the support packageld on a stand-
alone basis. Our PCS agreements normally inclugareanty on the receptor plate and technical suppothe software
elements. In foreign markets however, we do noeh&SOE on the receptor plate warranties, accordingl use the ESP.

* In certain transactions we sell our ultrasound img@quipment and related services together wittddgital radiography
imaging equipment and related services. In theses#actions, we account for each item under it literature and allocate
revenue based upon the relative selling pri

* In certain transactions with pharmaceutical comgsmie sell subscriptions to Vetstreet Pro and QuoesiPet portals together
with other marketing related services. We accoanttfese arrangements under the multiple-deliverabtounting, mentioned
above; with the arrangement consideration allocasiag the relative selling price

We defer revenue for certain transactions as falow

» We defer revenue for g-paid services such as our consulting, educationcss or PCS and recognize that revenue on a bt-
line basis over the contract period or as the sesvare provided depending on the nature of thdécse

» We defer revenue for PCS provided as part of thelase of equipment and software and recognized¢hahue on a straic-
line basis over the PCS peric

» We defer revenue when we lack persuasive evidehaeales agreement and recognize that revenuendrdy that evidence
exists.

» We defer revenue on transactions where we partezipa the buyers leasing and recognize that revewer the lease tert

As a result of these policies, we have deferreémae and costs at December 31, 2011 and 2010 tngsi§ the following (in
thousands):

2011 2010
Deferred equipment revenue(1) $ 90¢€ $ 6,49¢
Deferred fixer~priced support or maintance contract reve 2,89( 2,96¢
Other deferred revenue( 3,26% 2,35¢

Total deferred revent 7,05¢ 11,82:
Less current portion included in other accruedilitéds 7,028 8,617
Long-term portion of deferred revenue included in offadilities $ 33 $ 3,20t
Current portion of deferred costs included in preégxpenses and oth $ 25¢ $ 2,961
Long-term portion of deferred costs included in othesets 1,26 4,32¢

Total deferred costs(: $1,52¢ $ 7,28¢

(1) Represents amounts received for sales arrangsrtiat include equipment, hardware, softwareR@8. See above discussion for the
accounting guidance pertaining to revenue recagn— multiple-deliverable transaction
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(2) Represents amounts received in advance for ser
(3) Represents costs related to warranties, equipnmeinhardware included in deferred equipment reve

d. Direct Costs

Direct costs are comprised of all service and pecbdasts, including but not limited to, salariesveferinarians, technicians and other
hospital-based, laboratory-based personnel, anéebdevelopment personnel, transportation andelslicosts, facilities rent, occupancy
costs, supply costs, depreciation and amortizatieriain marketing and promotional expenses ant$ adgoods sold.

e. Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider only highly liquid investments withgirial maturities of less than 90 days to be caslivatents. We maintain balances in
our bank accounts that are in excess of FDIC imbleneels.

f. Inventory

Our inventory consists primarily of finished goaatsd includes imaging equipment, pet food and prisdaied medical supplies. It is
valued at the lower of cost or market using th&tin, first-out method and is adjusted for estiedladbsolescence and written down to net
realizable value based upon estimates of futureadelrtechnology developments and market conditions.

g. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Equiptmeld under capital leases is recorded at thed@ithe present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of themmgent at the beginning of the lease term.

We develop and implement new software to be usednially, or enhance our existing internal softwake develop the software using
our own employees and/or outside consultants. Gastsciated with the development of new softwageeapensed as incurred. Costs related
directly to the software design, coding, testing arstallation are capitalized and amortized oherdxpected life of the software. Costs related
to upgrades or enhancements of existing systemsapitalized if the modifications result in additad functionality.

Depreciation and amortization are recognized orstteght-line method over the following estimatesgful lives:

Buildings and improvemen 5to 40 year

Leasehold improvemen Lesser of lease term or 15 ye
Furniture and equipme! 5to 7 year:

Software 3 years

Equipment held under capital lea: 5to 10 year

Depreciation and amortization expense, includiregainortization of property under capital lease2Gh1, 2010 and 2009 was $43.6
million, $36.7 million and $31.8 million, respeatly.
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Property and equipment at December 31, 2011 and @@isisted of (in thousands):

2011 2010

Land $ 53,42¢ $ 52,56:
Building and improvement 120,22 110,55
Leasehold improvemen 127,79( 113,59:
Furniture and equipme! 216,04: 193,08¢
Software 22,93: 15,98:
Buildings held under capital leas 31,621 20,86¢
Equipment held under capital lea: 1,034 947
Construction in progres 27,68¢ 22,25:
Total property and equipme 600,76: 529,84«
Less— accumulated depreciation and amortiza (230,11)) (198,15)
Total property and equipment, r $ 370,64t $ 331,68

Accumulated amortization on buildings and equipnteriti under capital leases amounted to $5.5 mibioth $4.6 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

h. Operating Leases

Most of our facilities are under operating leagége minimum lease payments, including predetermfixed escalations of the minimum
rent, are recognized as rent expense on a striinghibasis over the lease term as defined in th8B?4 accounting guidance pertaining to
leases. The lease term includes contractual rerapt@ins that are reasonably assured based ofiis@gileasehold improvements acquired.
Any leasehold improvement incentives paid to us gndlord are recorded as a reduction of rentresg@ever the lease term.

i. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of gaieed entity over the net of the fair value ofritlBable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

In accordance with the FASB’s accounting guidaneggining to goodwill and other intangiblese have determined that we have four
reporting units, Animal Hospital, Laboratory, Medlidechnology and Vetstreet, and we estimate ahwalsooner if circumstances indicate
an impairment may exist, the fair value of eaclwfreporting units and compare their estimatedvalue against the net book value of those
reporting units to determine if our goodwill is imiped.

Our estimated reporting unit fair values are caltad using valuation methods consisting primarilgiscounted cash flow techniques,
and market comparables, where applicable. Thesatiah methods involve the use of significant agstizns and estimates such as forecasted
growth rates, valuation multiples, the weightedrage cost of capital, and risk premiums. Consurmpending habits for our business are
affected by, among other things, prevailing ecormoooinditions, levels of employment, salaries andevates, consumer confidence and
consumer perception of economic conditions. Weelelthese factors have and may continue to immasuener spending for our products
services. Deterioration in consumer spending hébiteur business would negatively impact the vadtieur reporting units and could result in
additional goodwill impairment. Any potential impaient charge could be material and would be redtbets expense in our consolidated
statements of income. We provide no assurancddretasted growth rates, valuation multiples, aisdalint rates will not deteriorate in the
near term. We will continue to analyze change$fiés¢ assumptions in future periods.
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We adopted the end of October as our annual imeairtesting date. Our October 31, 2011 impairmesttindicated that we have a
$21.3 million goodwill impairment related to our Meal Technology reporting unit, included in “Alltker” in the below table. Our
determination in the current period that the failue of the reporting unit was now less than itsy@ag value was based upon changes in our
estimate of forecasted cash flows related to atfgtllan our current period results.

The following table presents the changes in theyoay amount of our goodwill for 2011 and 2010 ffimusands):

}-IAQSI,E?;I Laboratory All Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2010 $ 861,86 $ 96,28t $ 27,52: $ 985,67:
Goodwill acquirec 105,79 7 — 105,80:
Other(2) (1,669 52€ 2,14: 1,00¢
Balance as of December 31, 2( 965,99¢ 96,81¢ 29,66: 1,092,48i
Goodwill acquirec 70,16¢ 6 97,17: 167,35:
Goodwill impairment — — (21,310 (21,310
Other(2) (767) (14 (134) (915)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $1,035,40: $ 96,81( $105,39¢ $1,237,60

(1) Net of accumulated impairment losses of $21.3 amilliall related to our medical technology businesduded in“All Other” in the above
table.

(2) In 2011 “Other” primarily includes measurempatiod adjustments, earn-out payments and foraigreccy translation adjustments. In
2010 the “All Other” category includes measurenpariod adjustments primarily related to the valmatf deferred tax assets. The
Animal Hospital 2010 “Other” category includes thigte-off of goodwill related to the sale of onetbe Pet DRx animal hospitals that
occurred during the fourth quart

j-  Other Intangible Assets
In addition to goodwill, we have amortizable intédig assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010, asvio(lim thousands):

2011 2010

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Non-contractual customer relationships $ 82,89 $ (21,147 9$61,74¢ $48,68¢ $ (14,18f) $34,49¢
Covenants n-to-compete 13,03¢ (8,067) 4,96¢ 14,45¢ (8,31 6,14¢
Favorable lease as: 5,571 (3,210 2,361 5,48¢ (2,672) 2,81¢
Technology 16,58¢ (2,342  14,24; 2,18¢ (1,447 742
Trademarks 7,40¢ (2,686 5,71¢ 3,74¢ (98€) 2,76:
Contracts 3,50( (185) 3,31t — — —
Client lists 84 (35) 49 35 (14) 21
Total $129,07" $ (36,679 $92,40: $74,60¢ $ (27,61 $46,98¢
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Amortization is recognized on the straight-line hoet over the following estimated useful lives:

Non-contractual customer relationshi 4 to 25 year:
Covenants n-to-compete 3to 10 year
Favorable lease as: 1to 14 year
Technology 5 years
Trademarks 10 years
Contracts 6 to 9 year:
Client lists 3 years

The following table summarizes our aggregate amatitin expense related to other intangible asgetigusands):
For the Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Aggregate amortization expen $13,39: $9,38( $7,79C

The estimated amortization expense related to giitéenassets for each of the five succeeding yaanisthereafter at December 31, 2011
is as follows (in thousands):

2012 $17,47(
2013 15,207
2014 12,90:
2015 11,04¢
2016 7,82(C
Thereaftel 27,95¢

Total $92,40:

k. Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the FAS&:counting guidance on income taxes. In accoedaitb the guidance, we record defe
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets, which espnt taxes to be recovered or settled in thedute adjust our deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities to reflect changes in tates or other statutory tax provisions. We makiginents in assessing our ability to realize
future benefits from our deferred tax assets, whiclude operating and capital loss carryforwafdssuch, we have a valuation allowance to
reduce our deferred tax assets for the portioneliev® will not be realized. Changes in tax ratestber statutory provisions are recognized in
the period the change occurs. We also assessatiitfes between our probable tax bases and theedddit bases of certain assets and
liabilities.

We account for unrecognized tax benefits also @oetance with the FASB’s accounting guidance oorime taxes which prescribe a
minimum probability threshold that a tax positionshmeet before a financial statement benefitdsgaized. The minimum threshold is
defined as a tax position that is more likely thahto be sustained upon examination by the agghkcxing authority, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation, based solelyhentechnical merits of the position. The tax bénefbe recognized is measured as the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likdlpeing realized upon ultimate settlement. We ditlhrave any unrecognized tax benefits at
December 31, 2011.
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|.  Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are financial instruments issnetié normal course of business and are not madaed. The amounts recorded
approximate fair value and are shown net of vatuagillowances. There were no valuation allowaneesrded as of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010. The notes bear interest atvatgsg from 3.9% to 8.0% per annum.

m. Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are amortized using tifecéfe interest method over the life of the redatiebt. Accumulated amortization of
deferred financing costs was $482,000 and $574a00@cember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

n. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Contation of Risk

The carrying amount reported in our consolidatddrx® sheets for cash, cash equivalents, tradeiatscreceivable, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities approximates fair valuesuse of the immediate or short-term maturity ogéhinancial instruments. Our policy is to
place our cash and cash equivalents in highly-réeaghcial instruments and institutions, which wediéve mitigates our credit risk.
Concentration of credit risk with respect to acdsueceivable is limited due to the diversity of customer base. We routinely review the
collection of our accounts receivable and maingairallowance for potential credit losses, but histdly have not experienced any significant
losses related to an individual customer or grafpsistomers in a geographic area.

Our operations depend, in some cases, on theyatiilgingle source suppliers or a limited numbeswgfipliers, to deliver products and
supplies on a timely basis. We have in the past@epced, and may in the future experience, shestafor difficulties in acquiring products
and supplies in the quantities and of the quakdgded. Shortages in the availability of products supplies for an extended period of time will
have a negative impact on our operating results.

0. Derivative Instruments

In accordance with the FASB’s accounting guidaneggining to derivatives and hedgingll investments in derivatives are recorded at
fair value. A derivative is typically defined as imstrument whose value is “derived” from an ungied instrument, index or rate, has a
notional amount, requires little or no initial irstenent and can be net settled. Our derivativesegr@rted as current assets and liabilities or
other non-current assets or liabilities as appetgri

We use interest rate swap agreements to mitigatexg@osure to increasing interest rates as web asaintain an appropriate mix of
fixed-rate and variableate debt. If we determine that contracts are &ffeat meeting our risk reduction and correlatoiteria, we account f
them using hedge accounting. Under hedge accountiagecognize the effective portion of changethenfair value of the contracts in other
comprehensive income and the ineffective portioeamings. If we determine that contracts do netmlonger meet our risk reduction and
correlation criteria, we account for them undeaia¥alue method recognizing changes in the fdineén earnings in the period of change. If
we determine that a contract no longer meets skraduction and correlation criteria or if theidative expires, we recognize in earnings any
accumulated balance in other comprehensive inctoss)(related to this contract in the period okdeination. For interest rate swap
agreements accounted for under hedge accountingssess the effectiveness based on changes iintiieisic value with changes in the time
value portion of the contract reflected in earninfgécash payments made or received under theraatstare recognized in interest expense.
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Credit exposure associated with neerformance by the counterparties to derivativerimsents is generally limited to the uncollaterad
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgazed in the consolidated balance sheets. We pttemmitigate the risk of non-performance
by selecting counterparties with high credit rasimgnd monitoring their creditworthiness and by diifging derivative amounts with multiple
counterparties.

The contractual or notional amounts for derivatises used to calculate the exchange of contraptyahents under the agreements and
are not representative of the potential for gaifoss on these instruments. Interest rates affectair value of derivatives. The fair values
generally represent the estimated amounts thatouddrexpect to receive or pay upon terminatiorhefd¢ontracts at the reporting date. The
values are based upon dealer quotes when avadlahle estimate using values obtained from indeparulécing services, costs to settle or
guoted market prices of comparable instruments.

p. Marketing and Advertising

Marketing and advertising costs are expensed asrigat. Total marketing and advertising expenseushed in direct costs amounted to
$25.2 million, $21.7 million and $19.9 million f@&011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Total markedind advertising expense included in
selling, general and administrative expense amauiat&3.2 million, $2.8 million and $2.0 millionf@011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

g. Insurance and Self-Insurance

We use a combination of insurance and self-inswavith high retention or high-deductible provisidosa number of risks, including
workers’ compensation, general liability, propdrtgurance and our group health insurance benefits.

Liabilities associated with these risks are estadatt fair value on an undiscounted basis by cenisig historical claims experience,
demographic factors, severity factors and othera@l assumptions.
r. Product Warranties

We accrue the cost of basic product warrantiesided with the sale of our digital radiography inmggequipment and our ultrasound
imaging equipment at the time we sell these upitsur customers. Our warranty costs are primaaiyolir assistance in helping our customers
resolve issues with the warranties they have wighdriginal equipment manufacturers. We estimatenauranty costs based on historical
warranty claim experience. Accrued warranty cosBexember 31, 2011 and 2010 were $50,000 and @86r8spectively.
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s. Calculation of Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividiegincome by the weighted-average number of slmarssanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by diygdiet income by the weighted-average number of comshares outstanding after giving
effect to all potentially dilutive common sharedsianding during the period. Basic and diluted e@$per share were calculated as follow:
thousands, except per share amounts):

For Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Net income attributable to VCA Antech, | $95,40: $110,24: $131,42¢
Weighted average common shares outstant
Basic 86,60¢ 86,04¢ 85,071
Effect of dilutive potential common stoc
Stock options 56C 753 78t
Non-vested share 22€ 24¢ 23E
Diluted 87,39« 87,05: 86,091
Basic earnings per common sh $ 1.1cC $ 1.2¢ $ 154
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 1.0¢ $ 127 $ 1.5¢

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfy] po€ential common shares of 1.2 million, 11,768 48,008, respectively, were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings ghare because their inclusion would have haghérdilutive effect.

t. Share-Based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accoedaith FASB’s accounting guidance on stock compgos. Accordingly, we
measure the cost of share-based payments bashd grant-date fair value of the equity instrumemtd recognize the cost over the requisite
service period, which is typically the vesting peki

Our company’s share-based employee compensation pte described further in NoteShare-Based Compensation

u. Acquisitions

We account for acquisitions based upon the provss@f the FASB’s accounting guidance on businessbamations, accordingly
acquisitions are accounted for at fair value unlderacquisition method of accounting. Acquisitiasts will generally be expensed as incurred;
non-controlling interests will be valued at failwa at the acquisition date; restructuring cost®eiated with a business combination will
generally be expensed subsequent to the acquisiéite; and changes in deferred tax asset valualimwances and income tax uncertainties
after the acquisition date generally will affeat@me tax expense.

v. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the FASB finalized the accountinglgnce for the Presentation of Comprehensive Incdime objective of the new
guidance is to improve the comparability, consisyeand transparency of financial reporting, taéase the prominence of the items reported
in other comprehensive income and to facilitateveogence of GAAP and IFRS. The guidance eliminditeption to present components of
other comprehensive income as part of the stateofaftanges in stockholder’s equity and requires #fi nonowner changes in
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stockholders’ equity be presented either in a simghtinuous statement of comprehensive income twa separate but consecutive
statements. In both choices, an entity is requivgaresent each component of net income alongteith net income, each component of other
comprehensive income along with a total for ott@mprehensive income, and a total amount for congarglkie income. The statement of of
comprehensive income should immediately followstetement of net income. Regardless of which opi@hosen it is required that
reclassification adjustments for items that aréaesified from other comprehensive income to nebine be presented on the face of the
financial statements.

The new guidance does not change the followingitéms that must be reported in other compreherisa@ne; when an item of other
comprehensive income must be reclassified to menie; the option for an entity to present companehfbther comprehensive income either
net of related tax effects or before related tdeat$; and does not affect how earnings per ssazelculated or presented.

The guidance is effective for fiscal years, anéiiimh periods within those years, beginning aftec&eber 15, 2011 and should be apf
retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. Thegtion of the new disclosure requirements willdvao effect on our consolidated financial
statements other than the changes to presentatitneal.

In December 2011, the FASB deferred the effectate dor amendments to the presentation of recleasdns of items out of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The effedite deferral is to allow the FASB to redeliberahether to present on the face of the
financial statements the effects of reclassificgagiout of accumulated other comprehensive incorhe.FASB decided that redeliberation was
necessary based on information received from peepam regard to systems challenges.

In September 2011, the FASB amended the accougtiitance on Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — TresGoodwill for
Impairment. The objective of this guidance is tduge the cost and complexity of performing the ahgoodwill impairment test and to
improve the previous guidance by expanding the @kasrof events and circumstances that an entityldlaonsider in the qualitative
evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impaent. The amendments allow an entity the optioriref &ssessing qualitative factors to
determine whether the existence of events or cistantes leads to a determination that it is méedylithan not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amounte Bxamples of events and circumstances includéeeiamendment that an entity should
consider in performing its qualitative assessméonuawhether to proceed to the first step of thedyall impairment test supersede the
examples in the existing guidance. If it is deteradi that it is not more likely than not that thi fealue of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, then performing the two-step impant test is unnecessary. Under the amendmenésitiy has the option to bypass the
gualitative assessment for any reporting unit in p@riod and may resume performing the qualitatisgessment in any subsequent period. An
entity is no longer permitted to carry forwarddetailed calculation of a reporting unit’s fair walfrom a prior year as previously permitted
under the existing guidance. The amended guidanedctive for annual and interim goodwill impag&nmni tests performed for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adwpfiermitted. The adoption of the amended goodmiplairment testing procedures will 1
significantly impact our consolidated financialtstaents.

w. Reclassifications/Corrections

Certain reclassifications have been made hergiido year balances to conform to the 2011 findrat@ement presentation.

During 2011, we corrected an error related to @fexded revenue and related deferred cost forioegtguipment sales governed by
revised accounting guidance related to multiplenellet arrangements. The correction resulted ingbegnition of $4.0 million of previously
deferred revenue and $3.8 million of previouslyetlefd costs in our Medical Technology operatingrsen that should have been recognized
in prior periods.
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In our consolidated balance sheet as of Decemhe@D, we corrected certain errors in presentdiioreclassifying $5.8 million to
temporary equity (mezzanine) from noncontrollinteiests included in permanent equity, related ttnpaship agreements that contain certain
terms, which may require us to purchase the pa'teguity based upon certain contingencies. Asalaggeements do not contain a mandatory
redemption clause, the balances are now correlethgified in temporary equity (mezzanine). Additily, we reclassified $506,000 from
noncontrolling interests in permanent equity tceotiabilities related to our mandatorily redeengapértnership interests. The change in
classification of our redeemable noncontrollingemests also impacts our consolidated statemerguofyefor the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2010 and 2009, accordingly, certaiouents related to redeemable noncontrolling intsregtre reclassified from the
noncontrolling interests column in the statemeed, Note 12Noncontrolling Interestayhich presents a summary of the amounts recladsifie

3. Related Party Transactions
a. Transactions with ThinkPets Inc. (formerlypWm as Zoasis Corporation)

We incurred marketing expense for vaccine remindadsother direct mail services provided by ThirtkPa company that is majority
owned by Robert L. Antin, our Chief Executive Officand Chairman. We purchased services of $3.4omil$2.8 million and $2.7 million for
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Arthur J. Artiem, Chief Operating Officer, owns an 8% interesthinkPets.

On February 1, 2012, we acquired 100% intereshinKkPets, Inc., for $21 million, payable by deliyef 473,389 shares of VCA
common stock and $10.5 million in cash. The shaf@4CA common stock were valued at $22.18 per shahich was based on the daily
volume weighted average closing sales price o¥@& common stock for the 10 consecutive tradingsderyding on the trading day
immediately preceding the acquisition.

b. Related Party Vendors

Frank Reddick joined our company as a directorabrbary 2002 and is a partner in the law firm ofPA&ump Strauss Hauer & Feld,
LLP (“Akin™). Akin provided legal services to us dng 2011, 2010 and 2009. The
amount paid by our company to Akin for these leggalices was $1.6 million, $2.3 million and $1.3lion in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

c. Transactions with VetSource

In 2006, we entered into a pharmacy distributioreament with Strategic Pharmaceutical Solutions, (fVetSource”) a start-up
pharmacy distribution company. Pursuant to the sefrthis agreement we are entitled to one reptatea on the VetSource Board of
Directors. Under the agreement we promote the fisetSource as the preferred provider of pharmacaluproducts to VCA animal hospitals.
The agreement has a fiyear term and will renew for one year terms unéggser party provides written notice of terminattorthe other part
at least 120 days prior to expiration of the therrent term. The amount paid by our company to Wet&e for pharmaceutical products was
$28.2 million, $41.9 million and $38.3 million ir021, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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On April 8, 2010, pursuant to our warrant agreemenpurchased 34% of the outstanding preferrecksib¥etSource for $1.0 million.
We account for this investment using the cost bagithod. In addition, we entered into a consuliiggeement whereby VCA received a fee of
$1.0 million for advisory services provided to Vet®ce management in 2010.

4. Acquisitions

Our acquisition strategy includes the acquisitibarimal hospitals. If favorable opportunities aresented, we may pursue the
acquisition of animal hospital chains, laboratoneselated businesses. In accordance with thategty, we acquired the following:

Animal hospitals
Acquisitions, excluding BrightHeart(1) in 2011 aRdt DRx(1) in 201(
BrightHeart(1)
Pet DRx
Acquisitions relocated into our existing animal jhitels
Sold, closed or merge
Total

Laboratories
Acquisitions
Acquisitions relocated into our existing laborag¢s)
New facilities
Closed or merge
Total

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
18 27 27
9 _ _
3) ) ©)
_ (11 _ 0 _®
13 39 18
1 — 2
— — @)
2 4 3
— _ O =
3 3 3

(1) BrightHeart Veterinary Centers (“BrightHeartasvacquired on July 11, 2011 and Pet DRx CorpardRet DRx”) was acquired on July 1,

2010.
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Animal Hospital and Laboratory Acquisitions, exdhgiBrightHeart and Pet DRx

The following table summarizes the aggregate cematibn, including acquisition costs, paid by usdor acquired animal hospitals and
laboratories, excluding BrightHeart and Pet DRxd Hre allocation of the purchase price (in thousind

For Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Consideration:
Cash $34,24: $69,45¢ $56,80¢
Non-cash note conversion to equity interest in subsic — — 5,70(
Holdback 1,50( — —
Contingent consideratic 79 2,851 712
Fair value of total consideration transfer $35,82: $72,31: $63,21¢
Allocation of the Purchase Price:
Tangible asset $ 1,23i $ 3,59: $ 8,62¢
Identifiable intangible asse 6,41¢ 9,51( 9,40¢
Goodwill(1) 28,17: 60,83¢ 51,17:
Notes payable and other liabilities assur — (1,628 (5,986
Total $35,82: $72,31: $63,21¢

(1) We expect that $26.4 million, $58.2 million and $#illion of the goodwill recognized in 2011, 2040d 2009, respectively, will be ful
deductible for income tax purposi

In addition to the purchase price listed abovecash payments made for real estate acquired inection with our purchase of animal
hospitals totaling $1.9 million, $9.3 million and.® million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

BrightHeart Acquisition

On July 11, 2011, we acquired 100% of the membpiisitérests of BrightHeart for approximately $50liom in cash. BrightHeart
operates nine animal hospitals, eight of which $oon the delivery of specialty and emergency madicThe acquisition will increase our le'
of market recognition in areas where we have astiexj market presence. Our consolidated finantséments reflect the operating results of
BrightHeart since July 11, 2011.
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The following table summarizes the preliminary garse price and the preliminary allocation of thechase price (in thousands):

Consideration:

Cash $ 23,49(
Cash paid to holders of de 26,04¢
Contingent consideratic 481

Fair value of total consideration transfer $ 50,01¢

Allocation of the Purchase Price:

Tangible asset $21,12¢
Identifiable intangible assets( 7,20¢
Goodwill(2) 42,00«
Other liabilities assume (20,319

Total $ 50,01¢

(1) Identifiable intangible assets primarily inckudustomer relationships. The weighted average tezaton period for both the total
identifiable intangible assets and the custc-related intangible assets is approximately fiverye

(2) We expect that $40.7 million of the goodwill reldt® the BrightHeart acquisition recorded as of &eber 31, 2011 will be full
deductible for income tax purposi

Acquisition-related costs, included in corporatirsg general and administrative expense in oabine statement, for the year ended
December 31, 2011, were approximately $1.3 million.

The preliminary purchase price allocation listedwabis primarily pending the finalization of valuedated to capital leases. Our internal
management review with respect to these items diaget been completed. The final purchase pricethedaluation of net assets acquired are
expected to be completed as soon as practicalilepdater than one year from the date of acqoisitiVe believe that any adjustments would
not be material to the consolidated financial stetiets and we expect this review to be completetthéyend of the first quarter of 2012.

Other Acquisitions
MediMedia Animal Health, LLC (“Vetstreet”)

On August 9, 2011, we acquired 100% of the ownersfiterests of Vetstreet, a provider of online caiminations, professional educat
and marketing solutions to the veterinary commurlitye acquisition of Vetstreet expands the breafithur product offerings to the veterinary
community and is expected to provide long-term sgies to our existing businesses. We acquired k&gtsfor a preliminary purchase price of
$146.4 million,
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net of cash acquired. The following table summarthe preliminary purchase price and preliminalycaltion of the purchase price (in
thousands):

Consideration:

Cash $146,42(
Allocation of the Purchase Price:
Tangible asset $ 7,861
Identifiable intangible assets( 45,81(
Goodwill(2) 97,17
Other liabilities assume (4,42%)
Total $146,42(

(1) Identifiable intangible assets include custonedationships, technology, trademarks, non-compgteements and contracts. The weighted
average amortization period for the total identifintangible assets is approximately nine yearghe customer-related intangible assets
approximately ten years, for the technology andenaarks approximately seven years, for the non-etenggreements approximately two
years and for the contracts approximately eightsu

(2) We expect that all of the goodwill related he Vetstreet acquisition recorded as of Decembg@11 will be fully deductible for income
tax purposes

The preliminary purchase price is pending the faaion of the working capital calculation, whichthis time is under seller review.

The final purchase price allocation is pendingdbmpletion of the internal review of the final vation. The provisional items pending
finalization include, but are not limited to, acotsireceivable, prepaid expenses, deferred incarest computer equipment, accounts payable
and other accrued liabilities.

The final purchase price and the valuation of theassets acquired are expected to be completambasas practicable, but no later than
one year from the date of acquisition. We belidwa iny adjustments would not be material to thesolidated financial statements and we
expect this review to be completed by the end eftliird quarter of 2012.

Acquisition-related costs, included in corporatirsg general and administrative expense in oapine statement, for the year ended
December 31, 2011, was approximately $1.2 million.

Our Vetstreet business is reported within our ‘@ther” category in our segment disclosures combimigd our Medical Technology
operating segment.

Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortiwen for the years ended December 31, 2011 and pedsents, (i) the actual results
operations of our 2011 acquisitions and (ii) thmbmed results of operations for our company and28d1 acquisitions as if those acquisiti
had been completed on January 1, 2010, the figsbfithe comparable prior annual reporting peribide pro forma financial information
considers principally (i) our company’s financiakults, (ii) the unaudited historical financialuks of our acquisitions, and (iii) select pro
forma adjustments to the historical financial résof our acquisitions. Such pro forma adjustmespsesent principally estimates of (i) the
impact of the hypothetical amortization of acquinengible assets, (ii) the recognition of faitumadjustments relating to tangible assets,
(i) adjustments reflecting the new capital sturet, including additional financing or repaymenttslebt as part of the acquisitions and (iv) the
tax
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effects of the acquisitions and related adjustmastié those acquisitions had been completed onaigrl, 2010. The unaudited pro forma
financial information is not necessarily indicatisewhat our consolidated results of operations ddwave been had we completed the
acquisition at the beginning of the comparablemaimual reporting period. In addition, the unaedlipro forma financial information does not
attempt to project the future results of operatiohsur company:

Revenue Net Income
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
Actual from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2 51,00¢ 2,01¢
2011 supplemental pro forma from January 1, 201December 31, 2011(: 1,557,27. 97,71t
2010 supplemental pro forma from January 1, 201Ddcember 31, 2010( 1,496,49. 110,02¢

(1) 2011 supplemental pro forma net income was adjustedclude $2.5 million of acquisiti-related costs incurred in 2011. 2C
supplemental pro forma net income was adjusteddiade these charge

5. Other Accrued Liabilities
Other accrued liabilities consisted of the follogifin thousands):

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred revenue $ 7,02¢ $ 8,617
Accrued health insuranc 5,552 4,97(
Deferred ren 3,62¢ 3,45¢
Customer deposit 2,281 2,96¢
Accrued consulting fee 2,88¢ 2,76(C
Accrued lab service rebat 332 2,53¢
Holdbacks and ea-outs 2,25( 2,447
Other 20,01¢ 18,01¢

$43,96¢ $45,76¢
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6. Long-Term Obligations
Long-term obligations consisted of the followinghecember 31, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2010
Senior term note Notes payable, maturing in 2016, secured by asgstsble

interest rate (LIBOR + 1.75% or 2.0% at December2®11) $573,98: $ —
Senior term note Notes payable, secured by assets, variable intexes{LIBOR +

2.25% or 2.5% at December 31, 2010), repaid in : — 493,75(
Revolving credi Revolving line of credit, maturing in 2016, secul®dassets,

variable interest rat — —

Secured seller notes Notes payable, various maturities through 2013 isetby asset
and stock of certain subsidiaries, various interatsts ranging

from 9.0% to 10.0% 34¢€ 86¢

Total debt obligation 574,33( 494,61¢

Capital lease obligatior 44,52 32,41¢

618,85: 527,03t

Less— current portior (32,57) (28,10

$586,28: $498,93!

The annual aggregate scheduled maturities of ag-term obligations for the five years subsequer¢cember 31, 2011 are presented
below (in thousands):

Capital Lease

Debt
Obligations Obligations Total
2012 $ 29,37 $ 3,19¢ $ 32,571
2013 32,73: 3,37¢ 36,10¢
2014 43,59¢ 3,43( 47,024
2015 47,22 3,62 50,85
2016 421,40t 3,39 424,80:
Thereaftel — 27,50( 27,50(
Total $574,33( $ 44,52 $618,85:

Senior Credit Facility

In August 2010, we entered into a new senior cifaditity with various lenders for $600 million senior secured credit facilities with
Bank of America, N.A. as the syndication agent Whlls Fargo Bank, N.A. as the administrative ageollateral agent, issuing bank and
swing line lender. At the time of entering into tenior
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credit facility, it included $500 million of seniderm notes and $100 million revolving credit fagilwhich may be used to borrow, on a same-
day notice under a swing line, the lesser of $lllaniand the aggregate unused amount of the révpleredit facility then in effect. In
connection with this transaction, we paid finanotgts in the amount of $9.1 million, of which $2aillion, or $1.3 million after tax were
recognized as part of income from continuing openat the remainder was capitalized as deferreahimg costs.

In August 2011, we amended and restated our egisenior credit facility to allow for additionalrser term notes in the amount of $100
million and an additional $25 million aggregatengipal amount of revolving commitments. Bank of Aioa, N.A. and JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A. are co-syndication agents for the amdrs#mior credit facility, while Wells Fargo, N.Aemains the administrative agent, collateral
agent, issuing bank and swing line lender. The aim@senior credit facility called for $581.3 milian senior term notes and a $125 million
revolving credit facility. The funds borrowed fraime additional senior term notes were used to rapéyll, amounts borrowed in connection
with the acquisition of Vetstreet on August 9, 20Ttie terms of the amended and restated senioit &xedity are discussed below in this
footnote. In connection with the amendment we iredi$2.9 million in financing costs, of which appimately $865,000 were recognized as
part of income from continuing operations and appnately $2.0 million was capitalized as deferrgthcing costs. In addition, we expensed
$1.1 million of previously capitalized deferreddincing costs associated with lenders who exitedyhdicate on the amendment date or those
that were determined to be extinguished.

Interest Rate. In general, borrowings under the senior term natesthe revolving credit facility bear interestpat option, on either:

» the base rate (as defined below) plus the appbcalalrgin. The applicable margin for a base rate isan amount equal to the
applicable margin for Eurodollar rate (as definetby) minus 1.00%; c

» the adjusted Eurodollar rate (as defined below3 plunargin of 1.50% per annum for the senior testeiexisting from May 2005 to
August 2010, for the senior term notes existingnfidugust 2010 to August 2011 a margin of 2.25%awerum and for the senior term
notes existing since August 2011 until the datdadivery of the compliance certificate and the ficial statements for the period
ending September 30, 2011, a percentage, per amdaiarmined by reference to the following tabléf éise Leverage Ratio then in
effect were in Level Il below, and thereafter, ageatage, per annum, determined by reference tbaherage Ratio in effect from
time to time as set forth in the following tah

Applicable Margin for Applicable Revolving
Level Leverage Ratio Eurodollar Rate Loans Commitment Fee %
| >2.50:1.0C 2.2% 0.5(%
I < 2.50:1.00 ancz
1.75:1.0C 1.75% 0.37%%
I <1.75:1.00 ancz
1.00:1.0C 1.5(% 0.25%
v <1.00:1.0C 1.25% 0.2(%

The base rate for the previous senior term notessieg from May 2005 to August 2010 is the high&fa) Wells Fargo’s prime rate or
(b) the Federal funds rate plus 0.5%. The basdwoatée senior term notes, existing from August@@ August 2011, and the amended notes
existing since August 2011, is a rate per annunaleguhe greatest of Wells Fargo’s prime rateffaa on such day, the Federal funds
effective rate in effect on such day plus 0.5% thedadjusted Eurodollar rate for a one-month irsteperiod commencing on such day plus
1.0%. The adjusted Eurodollar rate is defined agdte per annum obtained by dividing (1) the cdtaterest offered to Wells Fargo on the
London interbank market by (2) a percentage equa00% minus the stated maximum rate of all reseggairements applicable to any
member bank of the Federal Reserve System in resp&€urocurrency liabilities.”
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Maturity and Principal Payments The amended and restated senior term notegenah August 19, 2016. Principal payments on the
senior term notes are paid quarterly in the amotis7.3 million for the first two years beginning ®ecember 31, 2011, quarterly payments of
$10.9 million for the two years following, and qteaty payments of $14.5 million for the three geastprior to maturity at which time the
remaining balance is due. The following table $etth the remaining scheduled principal paymentofa senior term notes (in thousands):

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Senior term notes $29,06: $32,69¢ $43,59¢- $47,227 $421,40!

The revolving credit facility has a per annum conmneint fee determined by reference to the Leveragm i effect from time to time as
set forth in the table above and is applied toutvesed portion of the commitment. The revolvingddréacility matures on August 19, 2016.
Principal payments on the revolving credit facilitye made at our discretion with the entire unpamdunt due at maturity. At December 31,
2011, we had no borrowings under our revolving itadility.

Guarantees and Security. We and each of our wholly-owned subsidiaries guasathe outstanding debt under the senior crediiitia
These borrowings, along with the guarantees o$tisidiaries, are further secured by substantdlllgf our consolidated assets. In addition,
these borrowings are secured by a pledge of sutatamll of the capital stock, or similar equityterests, of our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Debt Covenants. The senior credit facility contains certain finad@ovenants pertaining to fixed charge coveragkleverage ratios.
addition, the senior credit facility has restrictiopertaining to capital expenditures, acquisitiang the payment of cash dividends on all cle
of stock. At December 31, 2011, we had a fixed ghaoverage ratio of 1.78 to 1.00, which was in glience with the required ratio of no l¢
than 1.20 to 1.00, and a leverage ratio of 2.14.@0, which was in compliance with the requiredoraf no more than 3.00 to 1.00.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In the past we have entered into interest rate agapements whereby we pay the counterparty ambastd on a fixed interest rate and
set notional principal amount in exchange for #eeipt of payments from the counterparty baseduorest LIBOR and the same set notional
principal amount. We use interest rate swap agratsie mitigate our exposure to increasing interagts as well as to maintain an appropi
mix of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt.

During 2010, all of our interest rate swap agredamsbad expired and we have not entered into anyamggeements.

The following table summarizes cash received oh gadd and unrealized gains or losses recognizedesult of our interest rate swap
agreements (in thousands):

For Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash paid(1 $ — $ 382 $ 9,78¢
Recognized gain from ineffectiveness $ — $ — $ (70

(1) Our interest rate swap agreements effectivefywerted a certain amount of our variable-rate deber our senior credit facility to fixed-
rate debt for purposes of hedging against theafiskcreasing interest rates. The above table depash payments to the counterparties on
our swap agreements. These payments are offsettwyesponding decrease in interest paid on ouaarrate debt under our senior
credit facility. These amounts are included iniiegt expense in our consolidated income staterr

(2) These recognized gains are included in other exp@nsome) in our consolidated income stateme
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7. Fair Value

Current fair value accounting guidance includeseaanchy that is intended to increase consistendycamparability in fair value
measurements and related disclosures. The faievaérarchy is based on inputs to valuation teakegghat are used to measure fair value that
are either observable or unobservable. Observaplés reflect assumptions market participants waslklin pricing an asset or liability based
on market data obtained from independent sourcés whobservable inputs reflect a reporting ensitgticing based upon their own market
assumptions. The current guidance establishesa-thered fair value hierarchy which prioritizeg thputs used in measuring fair value as
follows:

* Level 1. Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actaets;

» Level 2. Inputs, other than quoted prices, that are obsé\fabthe asset or liability, either directly adirectly. These includ
guoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesotive markets and quoted prices for identicalimilar assets or liabilities in markets
that are not active; ar

» Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there is little ormarket data, which require the reporting entitgdéoelop its own
assumptions

Non-Recurring Assets

Non-financial assets and non-financial liabiliteeasured on a non-recurring basis are accounteéd &mcordance with FASB’guidanc
on fair value measurement.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, ouriddediechnology goodwill with a carrying amount$#9.5 million was written
down to its implied fair value of $8.2 million, rgting in an impairment charge of $21.3 million, isfhnwas included in earnings in the period.
The fair value of goodwill was calculated using EE8 inputs.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The FASB accounting guidance requires disclosuffaiof/alue information about financial instrumentgether or not recognized in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Faieesulefined by the guidance is the price that dvbalreceived to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement datefaiitvalue estimates of financial
instruments are not necessarily indicative of tim@ants we might pay or receive in actual marketdaations. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies mag hawnaterial effect on the estimated fair value @ms

Cash and Cash Equivalents. These balances include cash and cash equisalgtht maturities of less than three months. Theyaag
amount approximates fair value due to the shont+t@aturities of these instruments.

Receivables, Less Allowance for Doubtful Accoultspunts Payable and Certain Other Accrued Liaksgit Due to their short-term
nature, fair value approximates carrying value.

Long-Term Debt. The fair value of debt at December 31, 2011Redember 31, 2010 is based upon the ask priceddicm an
external source, which is considered a Level 2tinpu

The following table reflects the carrying value daul value of our variable-rate long-term debttfiousands):

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Variable-rate lon¢-term debt $573,98: $573,98: $493,75( $496,21¢
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8. Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stadkwe do not anticipate paying cash dividendhérforeseeable future. In
addition, our senior credit facility places limitais on our ability to pay cash dividends or matteendistributions in respect of our common
stock. Specifically, our amended and restated sengalit facility dated August 16, 2011 prohibitsfaom declaring, ordering, paying, or
setting apart any sum for any dividends or othstridiutions on account of any shares of any classock, other than dividends payable solely
in shares of stock to holders of such class ofkstAny future determination as to the payment efdénds will depend on our results of
operations, financial condition, capital requirentsesind other factors deemed relevant by our BoBdrectors, including the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, whichvidles that dividends are only payable out of swg@ucurrent net profits.

9. Share-Based Compensatior
Stock Incentive Plans

At December 31, 2011, there were stock options;vested shares and restricted stock units outstgndider our existing stock
incentive plans. We maintain three plans: the 19&&k Incentive Plan; the 2001 Stock Incentive Pdandl the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
(2006 Plan™). New options and other stock awards/monly be granted under the 2006 Plan. At DecerBbeP011, the sum of the shares
previously issued pursuant to awards under the Z0@6 and the shares of common stock remainindadolaifor future issuance under the
2006 Plan to our employees, directors, consultamdsthose of our affiliates is 6,697,435 shareg. fltmber of shares of common stock
remaining available for future issuance under @62Plan may increase by any shares of common stwdrlying prior outstanding options
that expire, are forfeited, cancelled or termirfateany reason without having been exercised ih Tule number of shares available for
issuance at December 31, 2011 was 2,646,923. @distaoptions and non-vested shares granted unalgilans typically vest over periods
that range from two to six years, and outstandiptipas typically expire between five and ten yefaosn the date of grant.

Stock Option Activity

A summary of our stock option activity for 2011ais follows (in thousands, except weighted-averagecese price and weighted-average
remaining contractual term):

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Average
Stock Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Price (Years) Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 3,32 $ 16.4f
Granted 894 15.9¢
Exercisec (395) 10.1z2
Forfeited/Cancele (46) 23.2¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,77¢ $ 16.97 2.3 $10,69¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 2,54z $ 17.2¢ 1.1 $ 6,40¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, : 3,72( $ 16.9¢ 2.2 $ 4,097

There were 894,000 stock options granted durind 2@hich had an estimated weighted- average gratetfair value of approximately
$5.21. There were no stock options granted durfip2and 2009. The
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9. Share-Based Compensation, continue

aggregate intrinsic value of our stock options eised during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $5.6 millgh3 million and $7.3 million,
respectively. The actual tax benefit realized otioms exercised during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was ®2ln, $1.3 million and $2.8 million,
respectively. The total fair value of options vestieiring 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2.2 million, $&illion and $72,000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information abowt tptions outstanding at December 31, 2011 (inghds, except per share amounts
and the weighted-average remaining contractuat life

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Avg.
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Avg. Number Avg.
Exercise Price Number Outstanding Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$6.26- $7.97 706,92¢ 1.0 $ 7.01 706,92¢ $ 7.01
$15.33- $30.70 3,069,002 2.3 $19.20 1,835,694 $21.16
3,775,93( 2,542,622

At December 31, 2011, there was $4.2 million ocdktoinrecognized compensation cost related to @mgksiptions. This cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average periayef one year.

Calculation of Fair Value

The fair value of our options is estimated on thgedf grant using the Black-Scholes option pricimadel. We amortize the fair value of
our options on a straight-line basis over the reitpiservice period. The following assumptions wesed to determine the fair value of those
options granted during 2011, there were no optgyrasted during 2010 and 2009:

Expected volatility(1 39.(%
Weightec-average volatility(1 39.(%
Expected dividend 0.C%
Expected term(2 4.3 year

Risk-free rate(3’ 0.7<%

(1) We estimated the volatility of our common stocktba date of grant based on both historical andiedplolatility.

(2) The expected term represents the period of timentbaxpect options to be outstanding. In 2011esténated the expected term ba
upon the weighte-average of our historical experien:
(3) The risk-free interest rate is based on thdiedyield in effect at the time of option grant BnS. Treasury zero-coupon issues with
equivalent remaining term
We use historical data to estimate pre-vestingoogrfeitures. We recognize share-based compeamsatily for those awards that we
expect to vest.
The compensation cost that has been charged againste for stock options was $1.6 million, $2.6liom and $1.9 million for 2011,

2010 and 2009, respectively. The correspondingnectax benefit recognized in the income statemest $0.6 million, $1.0 million and $0.8
million for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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9. Share-Based Compensation, continue

Non-Vested Shares

Additionally, under our 2006 Plan, we have issued-wested stock awards in our common stock to cedaiployees and members of
Board of Directors. The non-vested stock awardsmployees and executives generally vest as foll@®% on the second anniversary of the
grant date; 50% on the third anniversary of thexgdate; and 25% on the fourth anniversary of tiaaigdate. The non-vested stock awards to
members of our Board of Directors generally vestgnal annual installments over three years frogrdtite of grant. Total compensation
expense related to non-vested stock awards wasi§iidn, $6.7 million and $6.0 million in 2011, 20 and 2009, respectively. The
corresponding income tax benefit recognized innlceme statement was $3.6 million, $2.6 million &2d3 million for 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. As of December 31, 2011 there was4b2#llion of unrecognized compensation cost reldtethese nowested shares that will
recognized over a weighted-average period of theaes. A summary of our non-vested stock activityZ011 is as follows (in thousands,
except weighted-average fair value per share:

Grant Date
Weighted-

Average Fair
Shares Value Per Shar¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 687 $ 26.1¢
Granted 1,24¢ $ 19.9¢
Vested (33€) $ 28.81
Forfeited/Cancele (83 $ 21.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,51¢ $ 20.7¢

During 2011, we granted 1,248,046 shares of notedasommon stock. Of these awards 1,234,470 shamesgranted to employees and
13,576 shares were granted to our non-employeetdige The awards to employees will vest as foltaly$57,470 shares will vest in equal
annual installments over four years, while 77,00@raes will vest in equal annual installments overears. The shares awarded to our non-
employee directors will vest in three equal annnstallments.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity

Pursuant to the terms of the 2006 Equity Incerfilan, on April 17, 2009, we awarded 84,757 restdatock units in lieu of cash
bonuses to our four senior executive officers @wges performed in fiscal year 2008. Restrictedls units differ from the non-vested stock
awards mentioned above in that the restricted stodk were fully vested or earned by the emplayeéhe grant date however are restricted
such that the participant will not have any righle, or interest in, or otherwise be consideregl dwner of, any of the shares of common stock
covered by the restricted stock units until sucires of common stock are settled. The restrictazksinits will be settled upon the first to
occur of the following: May 1, 2012, the date of #enior executive’s separation from service, deattisability, or the date of a change in
control. The restricted stock units had a grane dait value of $22.90 per share resulting in altealue of $1.9 million and the grant was
considered a non-cash financing activity in thepyiear. There were no restricted stock grantsndu2D11 or 2010.

10. Commitments and Contingencie

a. Leases

We operate many of our animal hospitals from premibat are leased under operating leases witts témoluding renewal options,
ranging from five to 35 years. Certain leases ideltair-value purchase options that can be exet@seur discretion at various times within
the lease terms.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies, continue:

The future minimum lease payments on operatingeleas December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thowgand

2012 $ 59,02
2013 59,15¢
2014 58,44¢
2015 58,84
2016 58,69:
Thereaftel 698,03

Total $992,19:

Rent expense totaled $55.2 million, $51.9 milliowl 46.7 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respedtfiiRental income totaled $920,01
$726,000 and $564,000 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, c&sphy.

b. Purchase Commitments
Under the terms of certain purchase agreementbawe aggregate commitments to purchase approxiyrts2él.2 million of products ar
services through 2016.
c. Earn-out Payments

We have contractual arrangements in connection egttain acquisitions, whereby additional cash tmayaid to former owners of
acquired companies upon attainment of specifieahfiial criteria as set forth in the respective agrents. The amount to be paid cannot be
determined until the earn-out periods expire ardatitainment of criteria is established. If thecsfied financial criteria are attained, we will be
obligated to pay an additional $925,000.

Contingent consideration, such as earn-out ligdsljtis recognized as part of the consideratiamsfeared on the acquisition date and a
corresponding liability is recorded based on thevialue of the liability if the fair value is knawor determinable. The changes in fair value are
recognized in earnings where applicable at eactrtiag period.

d. Holdbacks

In connection with certain acquisitions, we withthal portion of the purchase price, or the holdbasksecurity for indemnification
obligations of the sellers under the acquisitioreagnent. The amounts withheld are typically payabtkin a 12-month period. The total
outstanding holdbacks at both December 31, 20122846 were $1.5 million and $1.8 million, respeely and are included in other accrued
liabilities.

We paid $1.8 million, $3.3 million and $5.0 milliom 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, to sellerstfe unused portion of holdbacks.

e. Other Contingencies

We have certain contingent liabilities resultingrfr litigation and claims incident to the ordinaguese of our business. We believe that
the probable resolution of such contingencies moll have a material adverse effect on our congelitiinancial position, results of operations
or cash flows.
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11. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is comprised offtiilowing (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Federal:
Current $45,76¢ $51,717 $49,41¢
Deferred 17,33( 11,53¢ 20,91(
63,09¢ 63,25: 70,32¢

State:

Current 10,71(C 12,89: 10,56+
Deferred 2,22 1,957 3,69(
12,93: 14,84¢ 14,25
$76,027 $78,10: $84,58(

The net deferred income tax assets (liabilitief)etember 31, 2011 and 2010 are comprised of fleiag (in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Current deferred income tax asst

Accounts receivabl $ 5,362 $ 4,99¢
State taxe 4,46¢ 5,32¢
Other liabilities and reserwvt 8,112 6,52¢
Other asset 7,04¢ 904
Inventory 1,321 1,262
Total current deferred income tax ass $ 26,31( $ 19,01¢

Non-current deferred income tax (liabilities) ass
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 29,36 $ 31,377
Write-down of asset 1,222 1,21¢
Star-up costs 33t 338
Other asset 31,30¢ 25,82¢
Intangible assel (128,94)) (113,68
Property and equipme (27,13)) (19,109
Unrealized loss on investmer 1,961 1,95(
Shar+based compensatic 6,41¢ 6,11¢
Valuation allowanct (15,759 (16,15¢)
Total nor-current deferred income tax liabilities, 1 $(101,229) $ (82,13))
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11. Income Taxes, continuec

At December 31, 2011, we had Federal net oper&iggy(“NOL") carryforwards of approximately $71.5lin, comprised mainly of
acquired NOL carryforwards. These NOLs expire aious dates through 2029. The utilization of NOkrgforwards to reduce taxable income
is subject to certain statutory limitations. Evetfigt cause such a limitation include, but arelingted to, a cumulative ownership change of
more than 50% over a three-year period. We beliezesome of our acquisitions caused such a chaingwnership and, accordingly,
utilization of the NOL carryforwards may be limitégdfuture years. Accordingly, the valuation allowea is principally related to subsidiaries’
NOL carryforwards as well as certain investn-related expenditures where the realization ofatheefits is not more likely than not to occur.
We believe that it is more likely than not that tienefit from the remaining net deferred tax asaditde realizable.

Our effective tax rate was 44.3%, 41.5% and 39.2%0i11, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
A reconciliation of the provision for income taxesthe amount computed at the Federal statutoeyisads follows:

For Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Federal income tax at statutory rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State taxes, net of Federal ben 4.9 6.C 4.1
Goodwill impairment 4.3 — —
Miscellaneou: 0.1 0.t 0.1
44.2% 41.5% 39.2%

The provision for 2010 income taxes includes tgxemse of $3.5 million, related to additional stabe payments required as a result of a
tax settlement reached.

We are regularly audited by federal and state talaities. Our 2010, 2009 and 2008 taxable yearsarrently open for IRS audit. The
previous four years are generally open for statbtau

12. Noncontrolling Interests

We own some of our animal hospitals in partnershijtls noncontrolling interest holders. We consadl@aur partnerships in our
consolidated financial statements because our @higeinterest in these partnerships is equal greater than 50.1% and we control these
entities. We record noncontrolling interest in im@of subsidiaries equal to our partners’ percentagnership of the partnershipstome. W«
also record changes in the redemption value ofedeemable noncontrolling interests in net incottréatable to noncontrolling interests in
our consolidated income statements. Noncontrollingrest in income of subsidiaries was $4.5 milli$8.9 million and $4.2 million in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, we reftea noncontrolling partners’ cumulative share¢hia equity of the respective partnerships as
noncontrolling interests in our consolidated bataskeets. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, noncbntyahterest was $10.1 million and $1
million, respectively.

a. Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Intertss

The terms of some of our partnership agreementsireegs to purchase the partner’s equity in théngaship in the event of the partner’s
death. We report these redeemable noncontrollirggasts at their estimated redemption value arsbifjathem as liabilities due to the certa
of the related event. We recognize changes inlfigaiion as an interest cost in the consolidatedine statements. At December 31, 2011
2010, these
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12. Noncontrolling Interests, continued
liabilities were $3.1 million and $1.7 million, nesctively, and are included in other liabilitiesaar consolidated balance sheets.

b. Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

We also enter into partnership agreements whetebyninority partner is issued certain “putjhts. These rights are normally exercis
at the sole discretion of the minority partner. ¥port these redeemable noncontrolling interestisedit estimated redemption value and
classify them in temporary equity (mezzanine). \&&ognize changes in the obligation in net incortrébatable to noncontrolling interests.

The following table provides a summary of redeemataincontrolling interests (in thousands):

Income Redeemable
Statemen Noncontrolling
Imgact Interests
Balance as of December 31, 2008 $ 4,00¢
Noncontrolling interes $ 63z
Redemption value chan — 632
Formation of noncontrolling interes 37C
Distribution to noncontrolling interes (641)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 4,36¢
Noncontrolling interes $ 757
Redemption value chany — 757
Formation of noncontrolling interes 1,39(
Distribution to noncontrolling interes (717
Balance as of December 31, 2( 5,79¢
Noncontrolling interes $ 84C
Redemption value chany 71€ 1,55¢
Formation of noncontrolling interes 51C
Distribution to noncontrolling interes (907)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 6,964

13. 401(k) Plan

In 1992, we established a voluntary retirement plager Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Cdtie. plan covers all employees
with at least six months of employment with our gamy and provides the annual matching contributinnaes at the discretion of our Boarc
Directors. Our expense for matching contributiamsr voluntary retirement plan approximated $1illion, $1.6 million and $1.8 million in
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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14. Lines of Business

Our reportable segments are Animal Hospital andbtatbry. Our Animal Hospital segment provides vietety services for companion
animals and sells related retail and pharmaceyticalucts. Our Laboratory segment provides diagnteboratory testing services for
veterinarians, both associated with our animal halspand those independent of us. Our other ojpgraegments included in “All Otheiti the
following tables are our medical technology busineghich sells digital radiography and ultrasoumeging equipment, related computer
hardware, software and ancillary services to theriary market and our Vetstreet business, whioligdes online communications,
professional education, marketing solutions tovierinary community and an ecommerce platformirfdependent animal hospitals. These
operating segments do not meet the quantitativeinements for reportable segments. Our operatiggeats are strategic business units that
have different services, products and/or functiditee segments are managed separately becauseseadtsiinct and different business ven
with unique challenges, risks and rewards. We ajsrate a corporate office that provides generdleaiministrative support services for our
other segments. Although we have animal hospitadsl@boratories in Canada, we have not disclosgdjaagraphic segment information as
our Canadian operations are immaterial to our fiferstatements as a whole.

The accounting policies of our segments are theesasithose described in the summary of signifiaaobunting policies included in
Note 2,Summary of Significant Accounting Policie&/e evaluate the performance of our segments l@asgdoss profit and operating income.
For purposes of reviewing the operating performafaaur segments, all intercompany sales and pgeshare generally accounted for as if
they were transactions with independent third paréit current market prices.
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The following is a summary of certain financial@ébr each of our segments (in thousands):

2011
External revenu
Intercompany revent
Total revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expe
Goodwill impairment
Net loss on sale of ass:t
Operating income (los:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Capital expenditure
Total assets at December 31, 2!

2010
External revenu
Intercompany revent
Total revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expe
Net loss on sale of asst
Operating income (los!

Depreciation and amortizatic
Capital expenditure
Total assets at December 31, 2!

2009
External revenu
Intercompany revent
Total revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expe
Net loss on sale of asst
Operating income (los!

Depreciation and amortizatic
Capital expenditure
Total assets at December 31, 2!

Intercompany
Animal
Hospital Laboratory All Other Corporate Eliminations Total
$1,150,121  $272,46¢ $ 62,77 $ — 8 —  $1,485,36.
— 44,32¢ 17,65’ — (61,986 —
1,150,12 316,79 80,43( — (61,98¢) 1,485,36:
970,31( 173,00° 59,45¢ — (55,872) 1,146,90:
179,81( 143,79( 20,97: — (6,114 338,45
24,34 27,86« 19,13¢ 49,77( — 121,11
— — 21,31( — — 21,31(
327 21 27 7 — 382
$ 15514; $11590! $(19,50) $(49.77) $ (6119 $ 19565
$ 40,31¢ ¢$ 10,21 $ 5022 $ 285 $ (1,317) $ 56,98¢
$ 4575 $ 6,08 $ 6,44¢ $ 7,29¢ $ (2,097 $ 63,48t
$1,439,10: $232,420 $202,18° $142,79: $ (21,139 $1,995,36!
$1,052,46; $273,61¢ $ 55,39( $ — 8 —  $1,381,46!
— 37,03¢ 8,62¢ — (45,66) —
1,052,46. 310,65 64,01 — (45,667  1,381,46!
880,07  168,45! 44, 73¢ — (42,967  1,050,30
172,39( 142,19¢ 19,271 — (2,699 331,16
23,53¢ 26,24: 14,501 59,25: 123,54:
275 22 71 8 — 374
$ 14857¢ $11593: $ 4,69¢ $(59,26)0 $ (2,699 $ 207,24
$ 3245¢ $ 9,73t $ 2437 $ 247/ $ (1,030 $ 46,06¢
$ 5224 $ 517¢ $ 857 $ 551¢ $ (1,84) $ 61,95
$1,320,61! $215,48. $ 69,08 $175,29° $ (14,059 $1,766,42.
$ 994,21! $277,52¢ $ 42,76¢ $ — 8 —  $1,314,50
— 32,52¢ 5,79¢ — (38,329 —
994,21! 310,05 48,55 — (38,329 1,314,50
810,51 166,56! 32,72 — (36,529 973,27!
183,69¢  143,49: 15,83¢ — (1,794 341,23:
21,17« 22,89t 12,88¢ 38,71 — 95,66¢
652 11 11 3,361 — 4,03¢
$ 161,87. $120,58¢ $ 2,94C $(42,070 $ (1,799 $ 241,52
$ 26,76¢ $ 9328 $ 2000 $ 2307 $ (830) $ 39,57!
$ 40,137 $ 7,518 % 91¢ ¢ 399« $ (1,769 $ 50,80
$1,158,89. $207,04: $ 71,01¢ $201,02: $ (10,579 $1,627,40.
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15. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited

Quarterly Results

The following table sets forth selected unauditedrterly results for the eight quarters commendiaguary 1, 2010 and ending

December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

2011 Quarter Ended

2010 Quarter Ended

Dec. 31(1) Sep. 30(2) Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30(3) Jun. 30(4) Mar. 31

Revenue $368,99¢  $385,13¢ $376,10! $355,12! $338,11: $358,70: $353,91¢ $330,73:
Gross profil $ 71,71 $ 90,137 $96,83: $ 79,77¢ $69,58¢ $ 85,29¢ $ 93,48 $ 82,79¢
Operating incom: $ 14,197 $ 57,84 $ 70,10¢ $ 53,50¢ $ 40,12 $ 58,04: $ 52,45 $ 56,63(
Net income $ (2,060 $31,35¢ $ 40,06F $ 30,49¢ $22,12: $ 2858 $ 30517 $ 32,93
Net income attributable to VC

Antech, Inc $ (3,21 $ 30,16¢ $ 39,612 $ 28,83¢ $ 21,47 $ 27,43. $29,40¢ $ 31,93t
Basic earnings per common sh $ (00H) $ 03t $ 04€¢ $ 03 $ 022 $ 03z $ 034 $ 0.37
Diluted earnings percommonshi $ (0049 $ 03t $ 04t $ 03z $ 028 $ 032 $ 0342 $ 0.37

(1) Included in fourth quarter operating income is 4.82million nor-cash goodwill impairment charge, or $0.25 per ddushare, related
our medical technology busine:

(2) Included in third quarter net income is $2.8lion, or $0.02 per diluted share, related to castsirred in conjunction with the refinance of
our senior credit facility, see Note Long-Term Obligations.

(3) Included in third quarter net income is $2.6lion, or $0.02 per diluted share, related to castsirred in conjunction with the refinance of
our senior credit facility, see Note l6gng-Term Obligations The third quarter net income also included tagpesse of $3.5 million, or
$0.04 per diluted share related to settlementxafdan 2004 through 2007 taxable inco

(4) Included in second quarter operating income isSidillion in consulting and SERP expenses to bd paaccordance with consulting a
SERP agreements entered into on June 30, !

Although not readily detectable because of the thphacquisitions, our operations are subjecetssnal fluctuation. In particular, our
Animal Hospital and Laboratory revenue historic&lBs been greater in the second and third quaht@nsin the first and fourth quarters.

The demand for our veterinary services is signifigahigher during warmer months because pets spegréater amount of time
outdoors, where they are more likely to be injused are more susceptible to disease and pardsiteddition, use of veterinary services may
be affected by levels of infestation of fleas, h&arms and ticks, and the number of daylight hoArsubstantial portion of our costs for our
veterinary services are fixed and do not vary whthlevel of demand. Consequently, our operatingrime and operating margins generally
have been higher for the second and third quathersthat experienced in the first and fourth qerart

16. Subsequent Eventt

On January 31, 2012, we increased our investmehssociate Veterinary Clinics (1981) LTD, (“AVC”ytapproximately CDN
$81 million becoming the sole non-veterinarian shatder of AVC. AVC is a leading animal healthceoenpany in Canada, with 44 hospitals
in three Canadian provinces, offering services irenfrom primary care, to specialty referral seed@and 24-hour emergency care.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

16. Subsequent Events, continue

On January 25, 2012, we amended our senior credllity to replenish the aggregate amount of NewnTeoan Commitments available
under the Credit Agreement, to a maximum of $100oni after giving effect to the January 24, 2Gu8ding of $50 million of New Term
Loan Commitments in connection with our increaseestment in AVC, detailed above.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information of Regtrant

VCA Antech, Inc. (Parent Company)
Condensed Balance Sheets
(In thousands)

Assets:
Investment in subsidiarie
Intercompany receivab
Total asset

Stockholder’ equity:
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive i

Total stockholder equity

December 31

2011

$1,031,62
76,25
$1,107,87

87
361,71!
745,65t

41€

$1,107,87

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheadensed financial statements.
See accompanying Report of Independent RegisterblicFAccounting Firm.
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2010

$936,54(
62,38¢
$998,92:

86
347,84
650,25

737
$998,92:
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information of Reagtrant — (Continued)

VCA Antech, Inc. (Parent Company)
Condensed Statements of Income
(In thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Revenue $ — $ — $ —
Direct costs — — —
Gross profit — — —
Selling, general and administrative expe — — —
Loss on sale of asse — — —
Operating incom: — — —
Interest income, ne — — —
Equity interest in income of subsidiari 95,40¢ 110,24: 131,42¢
Income before provision for income tay 95,40¢ 110,24: 131,42¢
Provision for income taxe — — —
Net income 95,40¢ 110,24 131,42¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere — — —
Net income attributable to VCA Antech, | $95,40¢ $110,24: $131,42¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheadensed financial statements.
See accompanying Report of Independent RegisterblicFAccounting Firm.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information of Reagtrant — (Continued)
VCA Antech, Inc. (Parent Company)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 95,40¢ $ 110,24 $ 131,42¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casll irs@perating activities
Equity interest in earnings of subsidiar (95,40 (110,249 (131,429
Increase in intercompany receiva (3,999 (5,510 (15,299
Net cash used in operating activit (3,999 (5,510 (15,297
Cash flows provided by investing activitie
Other — — —
Net cash provided by investing activiti — — —
Cash flows provided by financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under stptiin plans 3,99¢ 5,51( 15,297
Net cash provided by financing activiti 3,99¢ 5,51( 15,29;
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ — $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheadensed financial statements.
See accompanying Report of Independent RegisterblicFAccounting Firm.
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VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information of Reagtrant — (Continued)

VCA Antech, Inc. (Parent Company)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
Note 1. Guarantees

The borrowings under the senior credit facility gtmranteed by VCA Antech, Inc. (“VCA”) and its wlyeowned subsidiaries. Vicar
Operating, Inc. (“Vicar”), a wholly-owned subsidyasf VCA, may borrow up to $125 million under a ofving line of credit under the senior
credit facility. VCA's guarantee under the seniggdit facility is secured by the assets of its ijrolwned subsidiaries in addition to a pledge
of capital stock or similar equity interest of wholly-owned subsidiaries.

See Note 6L.ong-Term Obligationsin our accompanying consolidated financial staets of this annual report on Form 10-K for a five-
year schedule of debt maturitit

Note 2. Dividends from Subsidiaries

The senior credit facility has restrictions on #iglity of Vicar and its consolidated subsidiariegransfer assets in the form of cash,
dividends, loans or advances to VCA. In 2011, 284 2009, VCA did not receive any cash dividendmfits consolidated subsidiaries.

See accompanying Report of Independent RegisterblicFAccounting Firm.

87



Table of Contents

VCA Antech, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(In thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged tc Charged tc
Beginning of Balance
Costs and Other at End

Period Expenses Accounts Write -offs Other(1) of Period
Year ended December 31, 2C

Allowance for uncollectible accounts( $ 13,80 $ 6,747 $ — $(6,17¢) $ 61: $14,97¢
Year ended December 31, 2C

Allowance for uncollectible accounts( $ 13,01 $ 7,36¢ $ — $(7,237) $ 657 $13,80!
Year ended December 31, 2C

Allowance for uncollectible accounts( $ 11,02¢ $ 7,04¢ $ — $(5,508) $ 447 $13,01¢

(1) “Other” changes in the allowance for uncollectible accourtkide allowances acquired with animal hospigald laboratory acquisition
(2) Balance includes allowance for trade accounts vabé and notes receivab

See accompanying Report of Independent RegisterblicFAccounting Firm.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosairControls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation required by the S&earExchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934) Amnder the supervision and
with the participation of our chief executive officand chief financial officer, of the effectivesasf the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a)1d(the 1934 Act, as of December 31, 2011. Basetthis evaluation, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer concluded thas of December 31, 2011, our disclosure contmdsprocedures were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information require@ idrlosed by us in the reports that we file dmsii under the 1934 Act is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the pien@ds specified in the SEC’s rules and formstangrovide reasonable assurance that
such information is accumulated and communicatesitananagement, including our chief executiveceffiand chief financial officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosures.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management does not expect that our intermafa@aver financial reporting will prevent all errand all fraud. Internal controls o\
financial reporting, no matter how well conceivediaperated, can provide only reasonable, not atesa@ssurance that the objectives of the
internal control over financial reporting are niedrther, the design of internal controls over ficiahreporting must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints, and the benefits of alsntnust be considered relative to their costsaBee of the inherent limitations in all internal
controls over financial reporting, no evaluatiorcohtrols can provide absolute assurance thabatral issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the company have been detected. These inh&ngitations include the realities that judgmemiglecision-making can be faulty and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple errors stak@s. Additionally, controls can be circumverttgdhe individual acts of some persons,
by collusion of two or more people, or by managenoserride of the controls. Also, projections of/avaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiotise degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Becausleeoinherent limitations in a cost-effective intaroontrol over financial reporting,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur ande detected.

Our management’s report on internal control ovearficial reporting, and the related report of odependent public accounting firm, are
included in Item 8 of this annual report on FormKLOnderManagement’s Annual Report on Internal Control OWarancial Reportingand
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, regpely, and are incorporated by
reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During our most recent fiscal quarter, there warelmanges in our internal control over financigaing (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchang® that has materially affected, or is reasonaidgly to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Information regarding our directors and executiffecers will appear in the proxy statement for 8.2 annual meeting of stockholders
and is incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensation wihear in the proxy statement for the 2012 annuaitimg of stockholders and is
incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding security ownership of certia@neficial owners and management and related lsobadr matters will appear in the
proxy statement for the 2012 annual meeting ofi$toltlers and is incorporated herein by this refegen
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions will appear in the proxy statdrf@rthe 2012 annual meeting of
stockholders and is incorporated herein by thisrefce.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding principal accountant fees senvices will appear in the proxy statement fer2012 annual meeting of
stockholders and is incorporated herein by thisrexfce.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — See Item 8 of this annual report on Forn-K.
REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINFKERM — See Item 8 of this annual report on FormKLO
(2) SCHEDULE |— CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION— See Item 8 of this annual report on Forn-K.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS — Ze Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

All other schedules have been omitted becausedteepot applicable or not required, or the infoiiorats included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

(3) EXHIBITS — See Exhibit Index attached to this annual repoffomm 1(-K.
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Number

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

List of Exhibits

Exhibit Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRegistrant. Incorporated by reference to Extblt to the Registra’s

annual report on Form -K filed March 29, 2002

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of Registrant. Incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to the
Registrar’s current report on Forn-K filed July 16, 2004

Certificate of Correction to the Certificate of Antiment to the Amended and Restated Certificataadrporation of
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhil#itt8.the Registra’s current report on Forn-K filed July 16, 2004

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registracdrporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Btegn’s current repot
on Form &K filed May 1, 2006

Specimen Certificate for shares of common stodRegistrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhilgtté. Amendment No. 3 t
the Registrar' s registration statement on Fori-1 filed November 16, 200:

Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated August 19026¢ and among Vicar Operating, Inc., VCA Anteleit,., certain
subsidiaries of Vicar Operating, Inc., as guara)tearious lenders from time to time partly theydtells Fargo Bank N.A., as
administrative agent, collateral agent, issuingkbeamd swing line lender, Bank of America, N.A.,sgsdication agent, and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., U.S. Bank National Asstimig and Union Bank, N.A., as co-documentationmagiePortions of the
schedules have been omitted pursuant to a requresbrifidential treatment. Incorporated by refeeetaExhibit 10.1 to the
Registrar’s quarterly report on Form -Q filed November 8, 201(

Amended and Restated Credit and Guaranty Agreedaged August 16, 2011, by and among Vicar Operatirg, VCA
Antech, Inc., certain subsidiaries of Vicar Opergtilnc. as Guarantors, the Lenders party thereta fime to time, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Associatioms Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent, IssuBgnk and Swing Line Lender, Bank of
America, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., asS@odication Agents, and U.S. Bank National Ass@miaand Union
Bank, N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents, concermiegly acquired assets of the Company. Incorporayeeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registre’s current report on Forn-K filed August 22, 2011

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit &r&uty Agreement dated January 25, 2012, by anshgizar
Operating, Inc., VCA Antech, Inc., certain subsitia of Vicar Operating, Inc. as guarantors, andis\Feargo as Administrati\
Agent, Collateral Agent, Issuing Bank and Swingd_lrender. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Registrant’s
current report on Form 8-K filed January 27, 200241 Employment Agreement, dated as of Novembe22®]1, by and
between VCA Antech, Inc. and Robert L. Antin. Inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the regti&in statement of Vicar
Operating, Inc., on Form-4 filed February 1, 200:

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 27, 200 and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Arthur J.iAnincorporatec
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the registraticatestnent of Vicar Operating, Inc., on Fori-4 filed February 1, 200:
Employment Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2004and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Tomas W.dfulhcorporate:
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the registraticatestnent of Vicar Operating, Inc., on Fori-4 filed February 1, 200:

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2004, bylmetdieen VCA Antech, Inc. and Robert L. Antin. Inparated by reference
to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registr¢ s annual report on Form -K filed March 12, 2004

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2004, bylmeidieen VCA Antech, Inc. and Arthur J. Antin. Ingorated by reference
to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registr¢ s annual report on Form -K filed March 12, 2004
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Number

10.8*
10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17%
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*
10.21*
10.22*

10.23*

Exhibit Description
Letter Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2004, bykmetdieen VCA Antech, Inc. and Tomas W. Fuller. hpooated by reference

to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registr¢ s annual report on Form -K filed March 12, 2004

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2008, bgt batween VCA Antech, Inc. and Neil Tauber. Incogbed by reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registre’s current report on Formn-K filed April 28, 2008.

Pos-Retirement Medical Benefits Coverage Agreementdlateof December 27, 2007, by and between VCA Antec. anc
Robert L. Antin. Incorporated by reference to Exthil.15 to the Registrant’s annual report on F&O¥K filed February 29,
2008.

Pos-Retirement Medical Benefits Coverage Agreementdlateof December 27, 2007, by and between VCA Antec. anc
Arthur J. Antin. Incorporated by reference to Exhi®.16 to the Registrant’'s annual report on F&O¥K filed February 29,
2008.

Pos-Retirement Medical Benefits Coverage Agreementdlateof December 27, 2007, by and between VCA Antec. anc
Neil Tauber. Incorporated by reference to Exhibiti¥ to the Registra’s annual report on Form -K filed February 29, 200¢
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Coverage Agreerdated as of December 27, 2007, by and between X@&ch, Inc. and
Tomas W. Fuller. Incorporated by reference to EixHiB.18 to the Registrant’s annual report on F&¥K filed February 29,
2008.

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employiggaement, effective January 1, 2009, by and bet¢CA Antech,
Inc. and Robert L. Antin. Incorporated by referetm&xhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s annual remort~Form 10K filed Februar
26, 2010

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employiggaement, effective January 1, 2009, by and bet¢CA Antech,
Inc. and Arthur J. Antin. Incorporated by referetzéxhibit 10.19 to the Registrant’s annual report~orm 10-K filed
February 26, 201(

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employiggaement, effective January 1, 2009, by and bet¢CA Antech,
Inc. and Tomas W. Fuller. Incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.20 to the Registrant’s annual remport~orm 10-K filed
February 26, 201(

VCA Antech, Inc. 2007 Annual Cash Incentive Plarcdrporated by reference to Annex A to the Regit's proxy statement ¢
Schedule 14A filed on April 27, 200

Supplemental Executive Retirement Program Agreenadieictive as of June 28, 2010, by and between Watech, Inc. ant
Robert L. Antin. Incorporated by reference to Exthil.1 to the Registra’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(
Supplemental Executive Retirement Program Agreenséfictive as of June 28, 2010, by and between Watech, Inc. and
Arthur J. Antin. Incorporated by reference to Exhi®).2 to the Registra’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(
Supplemental Executive Retirement Program Agreenadieictive as of June 28, 2010, by and between Watech, Inc. and
Neil Tauber. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit3lto the Registra’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(
Supplemental Executive Retirement Program Agreenadieictive as of June 28, 2010, by and between Watech, Inc. ant
Tomas W. Fuller. Incorporated by reference to EixHiB.4 to the Registra’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(
Consulting Agreement, effective as of June 28, 20¥0and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Robert L.iAnincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Regist’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(

Consulting Agreement, effective as of June 28, 286ytand between VCA Antech, Inc. and Arthur J.iAntncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Regist’s current report on Forr-K dated July 7, 201(
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Number Exhibit Description

10.24* Consulting Agreement, effective as of June 28, 20%0and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Neil Taulbmcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Regist’s current report on Forn-K dated July 7, 201(

10.25* Consulting Agreement, effective as of June 28, 20¥0and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Tomas W.dtulhcorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Regist’s current report on Forr-K dated July 7, 201(

10.26* Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Agreement, effechs of September 30, 2010, by and between VCi#&dn Inc. and Ne
Tauber. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Registra’s quarterly report on Form -Q filed November 8, 201(

10.27* Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Agreement, eififecas of September 30, 2010, by and between VCi#dm Inc. and
Tomas W. Fuller. Incorporated by reference to EixHib.5 to the Registrant’s quarterly report onRdr0-Q filed November 8,
2010.

10.28* Summary of Executive Officer Compensation. Incogbed by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Regissaannual report on
Form 1(-K filed February 28, 201

10.29* Summary of Board of Directors Compensation. Inceaifed by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Regmtsaannual report on
Form 1(-K filed February 26, 201(

10.30 Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive PlarG# ¥ntech, Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhilfi.9 to Amendmer
No. 2 to the Registra’s registration statement on Fori-1 filed October 31, 200:

10.31 2001 Stock Incentive Plan of VCA Antech, Inc. Ingorated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Amendnimt2 to the
Registrar’s registration statement on Fori-1 filed October 31, 200:

10.32 VCA Antech, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as anexd on May 22, 2006. Incorporated by referendextabit 4.5 to the
Registrar’s registration statement on Fori-8 filed on December 15, 200

10.33 Stock Option Agreement for VCA Antech, Inc. 2006ufg Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference xbiBit 4.6 to the
Registrar’s registration statement on Fori-8 filed on December 15, 200

10.34 Restricted Stock Award Agreement for VCA Antectt. 18006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 4.7 t
the Registrar’s registration statement on Fori-8 filed on December 15, 200

10.35 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for VCA Antech,.12006 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.29 to
the Registrar's annual report on Form -K filed February 26, 201(

10.36 Corporate Headquarters Lease, dated as of Janua®@9, by and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Weklieffen, Michael

Duritz, Nancy Bruch, Dorothy A. Duritz, Harvey Roderg and Judy Rosenberg (Landlords). Incorportaye@ference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 1 to the Regisf's registration statement on Fori-1 filed October 15, 200:

10.37 Corporate Headquarters Lease, dated as of Jurt®8, By and between VCA Antech, Inc. and Martin@tesed, Trustee of the
Shephard Family Trust of 1998 (Lessor). Incorpatédtg reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registraatiaual report on Form 10-
K filed March 14, 2006

10.38 Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrantgistration statement on Fa
S-1 filed August 9, 2001

14.1 Code of Conduct and Business Ethics of the Registhacorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 te Registrant’s annual report
on Form 1K filed March 12, 2004

211 Subsidiaries of Registrar

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

24.1 Power of Attorney (included in signature pag

93



Table of Contents

Number Exhibit Description

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiginancial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbas

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
**  Furnished, not filec
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on February 29, 2012.

VCA Antech, Inc.

By:/s/ TomasW. FULLER
Tomas W. Fulle
Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accountir
Officer,
Vice President and Secrete

KNOWN BY ALL PERSONS THESE PRESENTS, that each pershose signature appears below constitutes guairgp Robert L.
Antin and Tomas W. Fuller, or any one of them, tla¢iorneys-in-fact and agents with full power obstitution and resubstitution, for him an
his name, place and stead, in any and all capscitiesign any or all amendments to this annuainteggn Form 10-K and to file the same, with
all exhibits thereto, and other documents in cotioetherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@assion, granting unto said attorneys-in-
fact and agents, and each of them, full power anldogity to do and perform each and every act Aijtrequisite and necessary to be done in
and about the foregoing, as fully to all intentsdl @arposes as he might or could do in person, awllying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or either of thentheir substitutes, may lawfully do or cause talbae by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on thegliaicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Robert L. Antin Chairman of the Board, President and Chief February 29, 2012
Robert L. Antin Executive Officel
/s/  Tomas W. Fuller Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accountir February 29, 2012
Tomas W. Fulle Officer, Vice President and Secret:
/s/ John M. Baume Director February 29, 201
John M. Baume
/s/ John Heil Director February 29, 2012
John Heil
/s/  Frank Reddic Director February 29, 201
Frank Reddicl
/s/ John B. Chickering, Jr. Director February 29, 2012
John B. Chickering, J
*By: Director

Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF VCA ANTECH, INC.

The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Comany as of December 31, 2011, omitting subsidiariegich, considered in the aggregate,
would not constitute a significant subsidiary.

JURISDICTION OF

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY ORGANIZATION
Vicar Operating, Inc. Delaware

Antech Diagnostics Canada Ltd Alberta, Canad

Antech Diagnostics, Inc. California

Arroyo PetCare Center, Inc. California

Healthy Pet Corp. Delaware

Indiana Veterinary Diagnostic Lab, Inc. Indiana

Pef's Choice, Inc. Washingtor

Pets Rx, Inc. Delaware

Sound Technologies, Inc Delaware

VCA Animal Hospitals, Inc. California

VCA Canada Ventures, Ltd. British Columbia, Canad
VCA Centers-Texas, Inc. Texas

VCA Cenvet, Inc. California

VCA Maple Leaf, Inc. California

VCA Missouri, Inc. Missouri

VCA of New York, Inc. Delaware

VCA Real Property Acquisition Corporation California

Veterinary Centers of Americe-Texas, Inc. Texas

Vetstreet, Inc. California

West Los Angeles Veterinary Medical Group, Inc California



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
VCA Antech, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements (Nos. 333-139410, 333-8HM 333-107557) on Form S-8
and the registration statements (Nos. 333-10818388-114471) on Form S-3 of VCA Antech, Inc. of ceports dated February 29, 2012,
with respect to the consolidated balance sheet<Cdf Antech, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decembe2®11 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholdensitgogcomprehensive income and cash flows for edche years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2011, and all related finastéaement schedules, and the effectiveness ohadteontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, which reports appear in the dbee 31, 2011 annual report on Form 10-K of VCAe&utt, Inc. and subsidiaries.

Our report dated February 29, 2012, on the effengs of internal control over financial reportasgof December 31, 2011, contains an
explanatory paragraph that states that our audittefnal control over financial reporting of VCAnkech, Inc. and subsidiaries excluded an
evaluation of the internal control over financieporting of MediMedia Animal Health, LLC (“Vetstrigg which was acquired in 2011.

/sl KPMG LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of
Chief Executive Officer
of VCA Antech, Inc.

I, Robert L. Antin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for yle@ar ended December 31, 2011 of VCA Antech, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amnéitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the inGdmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqmbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ Robert L. Antin

Robert L. Antin

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of
Chief Financial Officer
of VCA Antech, Inc.

I, Tomas W. Fuller, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for yle@ar ended December 31, 2011 of VCA Antech, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the inGdmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqmbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ Tomas W. Fulle

Tomas W. Fulle

Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Oféic,
Vice President and Secrete




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of
Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer
of VCA Antech, Inc.

This certification is provided pursuant to Sect@f)6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and accongsathis annual report on Form KO-
(the “Report”) for the period ended December 31,126f VCA Antech, Inc. (the “Issuer”).

Each of the undersigned, who are the Chief Exeeuifficer and Chief Financial Officer, respectivety VCA Antech, Inc., hereby
certify that, to the best of each such officer' swiedge:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requiremenfssection 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Secwitachange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); and

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations
the Issuer.

Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ Robert L. Antin

Robert L. Antin

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Office

/s/  Tomas W. Fulle

Tomas W. Fulle

Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Oféic
Vice President and Secrete




